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FORWARD-LOOKING AND CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains “forward-looking” statements and other information that is based on

s current clath as of the date of this report. Statements thal are not historical facts, including
statements about our beliefs, opinions, or expectations and statements that assume o are dependent upon fulure
events, are forward-looking statements and often contain words such as “expect,” “anticipate,” “intend,” “plan,”
“believe,” “seek,” “see,” "will,” “would,” “may,” “could,” "should,” "goals,” or “target.” Such stalements are based on
management's expectations as of the date of this filing and involve many risks and uncertainties that could cause our
actual results to differ materially from those expressed of implied in our forward-looking statements. Such risks and
'L:?minlies are discussed more fully under the section titled "Risk Factors” and include. but are not limited to the

ng-

« Ihe continuing impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic and related risks,

« general economic conditions, including the potential impact of persistent inflation and increasing interest
rates on Navient and its clients and cuslomers and on the creditworthiness of third parties,

« increased defaults on education loans held by us;

« fhe cost and availability of funding in the capital markets;

« changes in the general interest rate environment, including the availability of any relevant money-markel
index rate, including LIBOR, or the relationship between the relevant money-market index rate and the rate
al which our assets are priced,

«  unanticipated repayment trends on education loans including pr or deferrals g from new

interpretations of current laws, rules of regulations of future laws, executive orders or other polu:y initiatives

which operate to er of require , abolish existing or create additional income-based
repayment or debt forg or other policies and programs which may increase the
prepayment rates on education noans and accelerate repayment of the bonds in our securitization trusts;
our unhedged Floor Income is dependent on the future inlerest rate environmen! and therefore is variable;

a reduction in our credit ratings;

adverse market conditions or an inability to effectively manage our liquidity risk could negatively impact us;

the interest rate characteristics of our assets do nol always match those of our funding arrangements,

our use of derivatives exposes us to credit and market risk;

our ability to continually and effectively alm our cost structure with our business operations;

@ failure or breach of our of information technology systems;

failure by any third party pmvnllng us material services or products or a breach or violation of law by one of

these third parties;

+ changes to applicable laws, rules, regulations and government policies and expanded regulatory and
govemnmental oversight;

« ourwork with government clients exposes us to additional risks inherent in the government contracting

environment;

shareholder activism;

hareholders' p o hip in Navient may be diluted in the future;

reputational risk and social factors,

obligations owed lo parties under various fransaction agreements that were executed as part of the spin-off

of Navient from SLM Corporation {the Spin-Off); and

» acquisitions or strategic investments that we pursue

L ]

Given these risks and uncerlainties, readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on such forward-locking
statements. Readers are urged lo carefully review and consider the various disclosures made in this Form 10-Q and
in other documents we file from time to time with the SEC thal disclose risks and uncertainties that may affect our
business.

The pmnamlwn of our conselidated financial statements also requires managemeant to make certain estimates and

including and about future evenls. These estimales or assumplions may prove
1o be incomect and actual resulls could differ materially. All forward-looking statements contained in this report are
qualified by these cautionary statements and are made only as of the date of this reporl. We do not undertake any
obligation lo updale or revise these lorward-looking statemenls excepl as required by law

Through this discussion and analysis, we intend to provide the reader with some narrative context for how our
i views our d financial i conlext within which to assess our operating
results, and information on the quality and variability of cur eamings, liquidity and cash flows.




AVAILABLE INFORMATION

Our website address is navienl.com. Our Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current
Reporls on Form 8-K, and amendments o reports filed or furnished pursuant to Sections 13(a) and 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the Exchange Act}, are filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC). Copies of these reports, as well as any amendmenis to these reports, are available free of
charge through our website at navient. comfinveslors, as soon as reasonably practicable after they are electronically
filed with, or furnished to, the SEC. The SEC maintains a websile that contains reports, proxy and information

and other our filings at hitps:/iwww. sec. gov.

In addition, copies of our Board idelines, Code of B Conduct {which includes the code of
ethics applicable to our Principal Executive Officer, Principal Financial Officer and Principal Accounting Officer) and
the governing charters for eacrl committee of our Board of Directors are available free of charge on our website at
navient, as well as in prinl to any shareholder upon request 'We intend to
disclose any amancl'nents toor wawers from our Code of Business Conduct (to the extent apphcable to our Principal
Executive Officer or Principal Financial Officer) by posting such information on our website.

Information contained or referenced on the foreg is not incc by ref into and does not
form a part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. thel the Company's references to the URLS for these websites
are intended lo be inactive lextual references only

USE OF NON-GAAP FINANCIAL MEASURES

We prepare financial statements and present financial resulls in accordance with GAAP. However, we also evaluate
our business segments and present our financial results on a basis that differs from GAAP. We refer lo this different
basis of presentation as Core Eamings, which is a non-GAAP financial measure. We provide this Core Eamings
basis of presentation on a consolidated basis and for each business segment because this is what we review
internally when making management decisions regarding our performance and how we allocate resources. We also
include this infarmation in our presentations with credit raling agencies, lenders and investors. Because our Core

is our of profit or Ioss for our segments, we are requued by GAAP lo provide
Core Eamings disclosures in the notes 1o our for our busi

In addition to Core Eamings, we present the following other non-GAAP financial measures: Adjusted Core Eamings,
Tangible Equity, Adjusted Tangible Equity Ratio, Pro forma Adjusted Tanalbie Equity Ratio, Eamings before Interest,
Taxes, Dapradahm and Amortization Expense (EBITDA) (for the and Al for
Loan Losses E ted Future R on Previously Fully Cnaroad-nﬂ Loans. See Manaqemenl s
Discussion and ﬂmalysns of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Non-GAAP Financial Measures” for a
further discussion and a complete reconciliation between GAAP net income and Core Eamings.




Overview and Fundamentals of Our Business

Navient (Nasdag: NAVI) provides technology-enabled education finance and business processing solutions that
simplity complex programs and heip milions of people achieve success. Our customer-focused, data-driven services
deliver exceptional resulls for clients in education, health care and government. Learn more at navient.com

With a focus on data-driven insights, service, compi and support, Navient's business
consists of:
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Business
Processing

Federal Consumer
Education Loans Lending

+ Federal Education Loans
‘We own a portfolio of $43.5 billion of federally guaranteed Federal Family Education Loan Program (FFELP)
Loans, As a servicer on our own portfolio and for third parties, we deploy data-driven appmadws Io support the
success of our customers. Our flexible and scalable infr large
transactions, simplifying the and conli improving

« Consumer Lending
'We help students and families succeed through the college journey with innovative planning tools, student loans
and refinancing products. Our $18.7 billion Private Education Loan portfolio demonstrates high customer
success rates. In 2022, we originated 52.0 biion in Private Education Loans.

« Business Processing
‘We leverage our loan servicing experlise 1o provide business processing solutions for approximately 500 public
seclor and nealrn:m u-roamzauons. and their lens ol millons of clients, patients, and conslituents, Our suite of
. digital ing and revenue cycle solutions enables our clents to defiver
better results for the mopla they serve.

Superior Operational Performance with a Strong Customer Service and Compliance Commitment

We help our ¢ — both and the path to finandal success through
proactive, data-driven, Slleiflad sefvice al'l.d innovative soluhons

«  Delivering superior performance, Whether ) student loan in successiully managing their
loans, designing and implementing omnichiannel contact center solutions for public sector agencies, generating
additional revenue for hospitals and medical systems, or helping a state manage communications or recover
revenue that funds essential services, Navient delivers value for our clients and customers.

We leverage our cuslomer service expertise, dala-driven insights, lechnology . and scale to
value for our clients.

= Scalable, data-driven solutions. Annually, we support tens of millions of people in conducting hundreds of
millions of ransactions and inferactions. Our systems are buill for scale and rapid implementation. We harness
the power of dala 1o build talored programs with analytics that optimize our clients’ results.




+  Simplitying complex processes, On our chents’ behall, we help individuals successfully navigale a broad
spectrum of complex Iransactions. Cur people and platforms simplity complex programs 1o help customers and
constituents achieve their goals.

= Improving cuslomer experience and success, We continually make enhancements lo improve the customer
exnunance drawing from a variety of inputs nua.ulmg customer surveys, lasean:n panels, analysis of cusmmel
data, and I ACross our busi our cush g

repmsanla‘hvss ara trained to provide empathetic, accurate support.

«  Commitment to compliance. We maintain a robust, multilayered compliance management system and
thoroughly understand and comply with applicable federal, state, and local laws. We use a “Three Lines of
Defense”™ idered best practice by the U.S. Federal Financial Institutions: Examination
Council [FFIEC] This framework and other compliance protocols ensure we adhere to key indusiry laws and
regulations including: Fair and Accurate Credit Transactions Act (FACTA), Fair Credil Reporting Act (FCRA), Fair
Debt Collection Practices Act (FDCPA); Electronic Funds Transfer Act (EFTA); Equal Credit Opportunity Act
(ECOA); Federal Inf Secunty Man Act (FISMA); Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act (GLBA); Health
Insurance Portabilty and Accountability Act (HIPAA), IRS Publi 1075; Civil Relief Act
(SCRA), Military Lending Act (MLA), Telephone Consumer Protection Act (TCPA), Truth in Lending Act (TILA),
Unfair, Deceptive, or Abusive Acts and Practices (UDAAP); state laws, and state and city icensing

« Corporate social responsibility. We are committed o contributing 1o the social and economic wellbeing of our
communities; fostering the Success Df our cuswmrs supporting a culture of integrity, inclusion and equality in
our . and 1 Navient has eamed recognition from the Forum of
Executive Wuman Human Rights C. i . and military i VIQTORY, among other
arganizations, for our continued commitment ?ﬂ fostering ﬂ'!\falsﬂ'j' Cur employees are aclive in our communities,
through lecal and national organizations, including a national partnership with Boys & Girls Clubs of America,

Navnam rs mmrrnmd to a suslainable future. We leverage technology thal mmlmm energy use in our office
doption of “paperiess” digital . Navient priorilti

the usage of power-saving features to our buildings to reduce energy usage. Energy efficiency and reducing

C0O2 and CO2 equivalents are among the many factors considered in our growth and real estate decisions.

Strong Financial Performance Resulting in a Strong Capital Return

Our 2022 results continue 1o demansirate the strength of our business model and our abiity to deliver predictable and
meaningful cash flow and eamings in all types of economic envirenments.

Our signi eamings i i capital which allows for a strong capital return to our investors. Navient
expects to continue to return excess capital to shareholders through dividends and share repurchases in accordance
with our capital allocation policy

By capital and allocali caplni Iu highly accretive omonunlljos mduﬁmg organic growth and
acquisitions, we remain well positioned to pay divid and stock, while ining appropriate
leverage that supports our credil ralings and ensures ongoing aooess o caonal markets.

In December 2021, our Board P a share rep 19 the of up lo $1 bilion of
the Company's stock, At D ber 31, 2022 $600 million remained in share repurchase
authorization.

To inform our capital allocation decisions, we use the Adjusted Tangible Equity Ratio'" in addition to other metrics.
Our Adjusted Tangible Equity Ratio'"! was 7.7% as of December 31, 2022

{Dellars and shares in millions} 022 2021
Shares repurchased 248 344
Reduction in shares outstanding 15% 17%
Total repurchases in dollars $ 400 § 600
Dividends paid $ 91 § 107
Total Capital Returned® - 491§ 707
Adjusted Tangible Equity Ratio"! 7% 59%
1 Wem is a non-GAAP financial measure. For a gement’s O and Analysis of

and
Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Mon-GAAP Financlal M-e&ural
@ Capial Returned is defined as share reparchases and dividends paid.




How We Organize Our Business

We operale our business in three primary segments. Federal Education Loans, Consumer Lending and Business
Processing

Private Education
Refinarce Lnam

Private Education
In-School Loars

Federal Education Loans Segment

Nawvient owns FFELP Loans and performs servicing on this portfolio. We also service FFELP Loans owned by other
institutions. Our servicing quality, data-driven strategies and omnichannel education aboul federal repayment oplions
fransiate into positive results for the millions of borrowers we serve, We generale revenue primarily through net
interest income on our FFELP Loans and servicing-related fee income

Navient's portfolio of FFELF Loans as of December 31, 2022 was $43.5 billion. We expect this portfolio fo have an
amortization period in excess of 15 years, with a T-year remaining weighted average life. The segment net interest
margin was 1.01% in 2022. Navient's goal Is to support customers lo successfully pay off their loans while oplimizing
the performance of our FFELF Loan portfolio. As a result of the long-lerm funding slralaq)‘ used for our FF ELP Lmn
porticlio and the guaraniees provided on these loans, the pnrltoln generally and pr
eamings and cash flows. As of D 31, 2022, 92% of the FFELP Loans held by Navient were
Tunded to term with non-recourse, long-lerm securilization debt

FFELP Loans are insured or guaranteed by state or not-for-profit agencies and are prolected by contractual rights lo
recovery from the United Stales pursuant to guaranty agreements among ED and these agencies. These guaranty
agreements generally cover al least 97% of a FFELP Loan's principal and accrued interest for loans that defaull.
Legislation enacted in 2010 discontinued the FFELP program as of July 1, 2010, while keeping terms and conditions
of previous educalion loans made under the program intact. As a result of the FFELP program being discontinued,
this segment is expected to wind down over time.

Consumer Lending Segment

Mavient owns, origi and in-schood and refi Private Education Loans. "In-school” Private Education
Loans are loans originally made to borrowers while they are attending school whereas “Refinance” Frivate Education
Loans are loans where a borrower has refinanced their education loans. We generate revenue primarily through net
interest income on our Private Education Loan portiolio,

Navient helps students and families through the going-1o and paying-for-college joumey. Our digital looks empower
people fo find grants and scholarships, compare financial aid offers and complete the FAFSA. Our Private Education
Loans offer easy-to-understand payment options. After graduation, we offer studant loan refinancing to help people
simplify Inair repa'msnt and earn a better rate. We believe our 50 years of experience, product design, digital
gies, and or and servicing platform provide a unique competitive advantage. We see
growth in g Private Education Loans, generating attractive long-term, risk-adjusted

retums




Through our Eamest and NaviRefi brands, our refinancing loan products enable college graduates and professionals
to refinance their student loans at lower interest rates. Al December 31, 2022, Navient held $8.5 billion of Privale
Education Refinance Loans, with 2022 originations of $1.7 billion compared to $5.8 billion in 2021. The decrease in
originations is primarily the result of borrowers with fixed interest rate loans having less of an incentive Lo refinance in
light of the significant increase in interest rates that occurred in 2022, Our Eamest in-school Private Education Loan
product offers consumer-friendly features to college students and their cosigners who need additional funding to
pursue higher education. We also offer a parent loan 1o help parents, guardians, or sponsors cover the cost of a
child's ion. In-school 52% to $322 million in 2022 compared to $212 million in 2021,

Privat ion Loan Originati

£
g

$5.000

Loan Originations per Year (in millions)
b
g

$3.000
$2,000
$1,000
$0
2020 2021 2022
= Year
®  In-Schoel Originations per Year
(Dellars in millions) 20 HH __ 022
Refinance loan originations § 4553 § 5800 5 1680
In-school loan ariginations 3 82 3 212 5 22
Tetal loan criginations . m;_- i
Navient's total portfolio of Private E Loans as of D 31, 2022 was $18.7 bilion. We expect the

porticlio to have an amortization period in excess el 15 years, with a 4-year remaining weighted average life, The
segment nel interest margin was 2.81% in 2022 Our goal is 1o support our customears o successhully pay off their
loans, while optimizing the performance of our Private Education Loan portfolio.

We carefully manage the credit risk of our portfolio through rigorous underwriting, high-quality servicing and risk
mitigation practices, and appropriate use of forbearance and loan modification programs. As of December 31, 2022,
approximately 70% of the Private Education Loans held by Navient were funded to term with non-recourse, long-term
secuntization debt.

Navient p processing such as conlact center services, workflow processing,
and revenue cycle We the same ise and tools we use o deliver successiul
resuits for porifolios we owil. Qur suworl enables our clients to ensure betier constituent wmms{ meet rapidly
changing needs, improve technology, reduce op: ] ge risk and oplimi.

Our clients mclude

«  Government: We offer our solutions to federal ies, state tolling and parking authorities,
and other public sector clients.

« Healthcare: Our chienis include hospitals, hospital systems, medical centers, large physician groups, other
heaithcare providers and public health departments.




Navient generated EBITDA™ of $53 million In 2022, down $83 million, or 61%, from 2021. The decrease in EBITDA!"
was a resull of a 5158 million decrease in revenue due 1o the expected $183 million reduction in revenue from the
wind-down of pandemic-related contracts, which was partially offset by a 525 million (or 11%) increase in revenue
from services for our traditional services clients. We see meaningful opportunities in these markels. For example, we
supported states in providing unempioyment benefits and contact tracing and vaccine coordination services in
connection with the GOVID-19 pandemic. The performance under these contracts demonstrates our ability to
leverage our raditional services into new service areas. This performance has led to recently acquinng new clients.

Other Segment

Tnls segment consists ot our r.oroorale Iwmﬂ! portfolio, nalns and losses incurred on the repurchase of debl,
(which includes reg P ) and

expenses.

Human Capital

Employing a talented team is central to Navient's success, and our attractive value proposition for prospective and
current employees includes a strong and positive cultural framework, comprehensive benefits and competitive

« andac t to diversity and fair and equitable treatment. We succeed in delivering business
results by q. and ping a skilled and energized workforce.

Core Values and Code of Conduct. Our employees work to enhance the financial success of our customers by
delivering innowvative solutions and insights with compassion and personalized service, Our employees are guided by
our core values:

«  We strive to be the best. By tlessly the right colutions, we deliver on our promises to each
other and those we serve.
+  We'e stronger fogether. We we're inclusive and and we know good ideas can

come from anywhere and anyone
«  We eam the trust of our customers and colleagues. We hiold each other accountable and act with integrity
= We innovale always and everywhere. We empower each other to think differently, develop ourselves and
grow our Company.

Our Code of Business Conduct provides dear principles and sels high expectations for all Navient employees,
officers and directors, We regularly refresh and provide annual training on the Code of Business Conduct,

[ nity Eng Our team also supp the where we live and work. The Navient
Community Fund supporls organizations that work to address the root causes that bmit financial success. Navient
has partnered with Boys & Girls Oiubs of America to provide career- and college-planning resources 1o youth,
including those from und Through this p , we have hslpea develop digital tools to
help youth leam about college and financial aid and explore calaers lalwant tu their unigue interests. Navient
employees also volunteer at Boys & Girls Clubs in the communities where we live and work, including hosting college
fairs, speaking at career days, painting chub buildings and organizing back-to-school supply drives

Navient offers lI‘IO(ﬂflh' paid time ﬂl'l !'0( employees lo volunteer for Navienl-supported nonprofit organizations in our
¥ efforts, Team Navient gives back to our local communities by
supporting a vanehr of Io:al izations serving of families each year.

G and Mavient offers competitive, equitable pay designed to attract, retain and
highly i . Qur ¢ n apptoacn includes a mix of fixed and variable elements

aligned with the Company’s lmg-lﬂfm goals, We 1o

which reward stafl and managemanl for lhe achievement of business results,

customer sausl‘achon and cnmplnunce with regulatory requirements.

1 Item is a non-GAAP financial measure, For a L gement’s Di ion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations — NM-GAAPleaI Measmas




Navient pi ac hensive and ¢ tive benefits package to meet the needs of employees and their
families. We provide our emp with to assist in ing heir physical, emotional and financial
health, such as medical plan choices, a 401(k) savings plan with a company match; an employee stock purchase
program; paid tme off and holiday schedule; life and disability insurance; parental leave; adoplion assistance; tuition
reimbursement; and numerous health support and wellness programs. We also offer a combination of in-office,
hybrid and remote work schedules to meet the needs of our employees and clients.

Ensuring the health and safety of our employees is a top priority at Navient. See "Management's Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Conditions and Results of O — Navient's Resp to COVID-19" for more information
on the actions Navient has taken to protect the health and safety of our employees during the COVID-19 pandemic

Empi Ei and Devel MNavient ploy and works to build a
simng taarn through career duvoinmmsnt and successien planning.

DO i strong empl is a prionty for Navienl, and we routinely conduct engagement
SUIVeys via an i firm g us to better wd and i morale,
salisfaction, and engagement. We CMN&W a rigorous review of results for each business unit and division,
use action planning leams to analyze and interpret results, and address areas of opportunity to improve
engagement and retention

+  Navient has been recognized as a Training Top 100 award-winning organization — the premier learning
industry awards program recognizing the most successful leaming and development programs in the world,
We offer opportunities for employees to participate in both internal and external programs to support their
grovih and daveiapment

«  We regularly conduct ion planning and p ion to assess Navient's bench strength and
readiness to backfil for all Ieadsrshlp posmuns in the top three levels at the company. Development plans
guide team members lo prepare for future opportunities.

Inclusion, Diversity and Equity. With a commitment to inclusion, diversity and equity, Navient maintains a

where are wel d and respected for who they are as individuals. Through our inclusion,
diversity and equity programs of initiatives, Navient employees lead and participate in initiatives such as our
Inclusion, Diversity & Equity Council and Inclusion and diversity awareness campaigns. Our veluntary, staff-led
Emplnvae Resource Groups enable individuals to connecl based on thelr common interests, develop leadership

. and p le a culture of ion and for all. To attract a diverse population of potential

employees, Navient markets open positions through over 100 diversity job boards, extensive national, state, and
community-based aliances, and job banks across the country.

Navient is a member of Employers for Pay Equity; has been recognized by the Human Rights Campaign via its
Corporate Equality Index, is a member of the Velerans Jobs Mission; and has been recognized as a Mllary Friendty
Employer and Military Friendly Spouse E yer. We are itted to aach of our |

welcomed, valued, and included, and can bnnu their whole selves lo work so they can contribute in a meamnglul
Way. We believe thal being deliberately inclusive creates a diverse, highly engaged workforce that drives positive
Company performance. We fuel innovation and growth by p a for employees with diverse
perspectives to come together and work toward new solutions to enh: the financial success of our customers,
and we provide compassionate, personalized service with a workforce that reflects and understands our diverse
cuslomer base.

Team Size. As of December 31, 2022, we had ty 4,000 employees. None of our employ are covered

by collective bargaining agreemenlts




Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The foliowing déscussion and analysis should be read in

N with our

and

related notes included elsewnere in this Annual Report on Ferm 10-K. This discussion and analysis also containg
forward-looking statements and should be read in conjunchion with the disclosures and infarmation contained i
“Forward-Looking and Cautionary Stafements” and “Risk Factors™ in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

The objective of this discussion and analysis is to aliow investors o view the company from management's
D@!’WW Accordingly, we provide the reader with narralive mmexllbrnowwmemgamm VIEWS our

financial cantex! within which 1o assess our op

g results, and on

rhs qualify and vanabiiily of our eammqs Nquidity and cash flows. The d.lscussum that ron‘ows rspnmamrfocused on
d o 2020 is in “Mai

Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Resulls of Operations” in our Annual Repor on Form 10-K for mo
year ended December 31, 2021 as fifed with the SEC on February 25, 2022

2022 versus 2021 resulls. Discussion and analysis of 2021 results

Selected Historical F and Ratios
Yoars Ended Decomber 31,
iy milion: share da 202
et income'" 1] 645 % T 3 412
Diluted eamings per comman share 5 449 35 418 § 212
Weighted average shares used to compute déuled eamings per share 144 172 195
Retun on assets BT% B8% AT
Dividends per cornmon share 5 64 % 64 5 4
Return on comman stockholders’ equity 22% 2% 7%
Dividend payout ratio 14% 15% 30%
Average equitylaverage assels 378% 3.20% 260%
Total assets § 0795 3 80605 5 ar.412
Total 5 66895 3 76978 § 83945
Total Navient Corporation stockholders’ equity 3 2977 5 2597 § 2433
{Book value per common share -3 286 3 1689 3 13.06
Eulﬁlq! Basis™
Net income ™= 5 458 3 551 § 631
eamings per common share™ $ 319 % a8 324
Adjusted dihuled earnings per commeon share™ 343 445 § 340
shares used to compute diluled eamings per share 144 172 185
Net interest margin, Federal Education Loans 1.01% 99% 9%
Net inferest margin, 281% 282% 320%
Return on assets B2% 5% T1%
Education Loan Portfolios
Eoe e -
ate Education Loans, net 1 171 1.4
Ending total education 1
Average FFELP Loans 5 49183 3§ 56018 3 61,522
Private Education Loans 20,524 21,225 22,720
Average tolal education loans 5 69707 § 77243 § 84,242
Regulatery expenies ae exchided from Adunted Core Earnings= expenses. and for 2021 included 5170 milies, on an sher-ax basis, related
16 e resolution of previously dsclosed itigation. Sea “Results of Operatons. - GAAP Camparison of 2022 Results with 2021° for further

detaidls. This. expense equaled 053 per share for 2021,

o fiem 1 2 nen-GAAP Fora

s Non-GAAP Financlal Measures — Cors Eamings.”




The Year in Review

We prepare financial statements and present financial resulls in accordance with GAAP, However, we also evaluate
our business segments and present financial results on a basis that differs from GAAP. We refer to this different basis
of presentation as Core Eamings. We provide this Core E basis of ona d basis and
for each business segment because this is what we review internally when making management decisions regarding
our performance and how we allocale resources. We also include this information in our presentations with credit
rating agencies, lenders and investors. Because our Core Eamings basis of L to our

financial presentations, we are required by GAAP to provide certain Core Eamings disclosures in the notes fo our
consolidated fimancial statements for our business segments. See "Non-GAAP Financial Measures — Core Eamings™
for a further discussion and a complete reconciliation between GAAP net income and Core Eamings.

2022 GAAP net income was $645 million (34.49 diluted earnings per share), compared with 5717 million ($4.18
diluted eamings per share) in the prior year. See “Resulls of Operations - Comparison of 2022 Results with 2021 for
a discussion of the primary contnibulors to the change in GAAP eamings between periods.

2022 Core Eamnings net income was $458 million ($3.19 diluted Core Eamings per share), compared with $551
milfion (53.21 diluted Core Eamings per share) for 2021. Full-year 2022 and 2021 diluted Core Eamings'"
per share were $3.43 and $4.45, respectively. See “Segment Results” for a discussion of the primary contributors to
the change in Core Eamings between periods
The business environment ended 2022 very differently than it started. Inflation pressured operating expenses, rising
interest rates and CARES Act extensions significantly reduced demand for student lean refinancing, and various loan
gr propesals and prog created uncerfainty. in addition, we saw a decling in forecasted economic
conditions which is expected to continue through 2023 and possibly further.

A strength of our franchise is our ability to adjust 1o both expected and unexpecled evenls and debiver for our
and i - Far le, in 2022 we:

. Grew In-school originations 52%
. Li ged our Bus P inig refationships to win new business

. i our Ref e Loan spend to refiect reduced demand due o higher rates and the
continuation of interest free federal loans

. Implemented hedging strategies and efficient funding programs that mitigated the impact of rising interest
rales to our nel interest margins

. Successtully reduced it in a high infiationary 1
- Retumned significant capital to our shareholders
. 5t our capital i

. Continued to simplify and de-risk our business

These results demonstrate our abillity to deliver strong financial performance even in disruptive economic
environments, Navienl is focused on delivering exceplional results by executing our stralegy. delivering on our growih
potential, maximizing our loan portfolio cash fows, continuously improving our operating efficiency and prudent and
consistent capital management




Financial highlights of 2022 include;
Federal Education Loans segmeni:

. Mel income of $407 million,

. Nel interast margin of 1.01%
Consumer Lernding segment:

. Net income of $300 million,

® Nel interest margin of 2 81%.

. Originated $2.0 billion of Private Education Loans.
Business Processing segment:

. EBITDA" of $53 million.

. Revenue of $330 million.
Capital, funding and liquidity:

. Adjusted tangible equity ratiol" of 7.7%,

+  Repurchased 5400 million of common shares. 5600 million common share repurchase authority remains
outstanding

. Paid 591 million in common stock dividends
. Issued $1.7 billion in term ABS.

Expenses:
. i Core s exp {1 of $769 million, down $205 million from $874 million in the prior
year.
Navient's Response to COVID-19
Since its emergence in early 2020, the impacts of COVID-19 have been dy ic and unpredictable. In r o

COVID-19, we prioritized the salety of our employees and business partners, while continually striving o support the
needs of our customers and communities. During 2021 and 2022, the COVID-19 pandemic and long-lasting changes
it has produced have confinued lo affect our business operations. The future direct and indirect impact of the

d on our busi results of i and financial tion remains riain. Should current
economic conditions deteriorate or if public health worsened due to various factors, such conditions could have an
adverse effect on our businesses and results of operations and could adversely affect our financial condition.

' lem is a non-GAAP financial measure, For a description and recondliation, see “Non-GAAP Financlal Measures.”




Results of Operations

GAAP Income Staternents
Increase (Decrease|

Years Ended December 11, ¥ Vi
(Dellars in millions, except per share amounts] EikE Lz F030 ¥ W ¥ ®
IMerest income
FFELP Leans S 1088 5 1484 5 1837 5 @ 4% 5 (3T 201%
Private Educaton Losns 1198 1181 1,445 14 1 284) 18
Cash and investments 82 3 % 58 1887 (13 (81}
Total interest income iz 2848 EFT] 7] = e [
Total interest expanse 2.102 1318 2,048 758 -] 739 (38}
Het irterest 1121 T332 1952 210} 118) B0 (]
Less: previsions for loan losses 7 @1 158 140 230 218 1136)
et interest income after provisions for loan losses 1042 ) 1087 251) ] 280
Otner income (less )
G TN 7 188 214 (@1} (54} (42 21
Assat recovery and DUSINETS ProCesEIng revenue 338 530 458 (203 (28) L] 18
ncome. 2 30 20 2 10 50
Gains on sales of loans - TE - ray (100} 78
Lesses an - "3 (L] T3 (100} en 1197
Gains (iosses) on dervative and hedging
nctvites, nat 171 84 1258y 107 187 a0 125
Total sthes inceme 18 ) 430 (190 24) 378 [
Expenses:
expanses e 1207 L 431y ) 43 28
Geodwill and acquired intangible aisets
imparmaent and amorizabon sxpense 1w 0 (1 (an 8 8
R o ? P 38 ) o 38 7 180
Total gxponses a3 1.283 L1 1432} (34} 208 a7
Income before Income tax expense a7 936 532 (&) 12y 404 T8
Income tax expense 182 219 128 [t 1] JLE] w 83
Netincome 3 845 717 § 412 8_@ slﬂ“ § 308 Ti%
Basic eamings per comman share 5 4854 423 § 214 § .0 T% 5 209 G8%
Diluited earnings por common share 3 440 98§ 212 5 31 T § 206 %
Dividends per common share A4 B4 5 B4 5 —% 5 —%
— — — — — — —




GAAP Comparison of 2022 Results with 2021

For the year ended December 31, 2022, net income was $645 million, or $4.49 diluted eamnings per common share,
compared with nel income of 5717 million, or $4.18 diluled eamings per commaon share, for the year-ago period

The primary conlributors lo the change in net income are as lollows:

Net interest income decreased by $211 million primarily as a result of the paydown of the FFELP and
Private Education in-school loan portfolios and an increase in interest rates. This was partially offset by
an increase in net interest income from the Private Education Refinance Loan portfolio as a result of
Increases in both the portfolio size (average balance) and net interest margin.

Frovisions for loan losses increased $140 million from ${61) million to $79 million:
o The provision for FFELF Loan losses remained unchanged at $0.

o The provision for Private Education Loan losses increased $140 million from $(61) million to
$79 milion.

The Private Education Loan provision for loan losses of $79 million in the current period included 534
million of provision in connection with loan originations and $45 million related to a reserve build in
connection with a decline in forecasted economic condiions. The negative provision of ${61) millien in
the year-ago period was related to the reversal of both $107 million of allowance for loan losses in
connection with the sale of approximatety $1.6 billion of Private Education Loans discussed below and
$18 milhon related to a reserve release. partially offset by 564 milion of provision related to foan
originations.

Servicing revenue decreased $91 million primarily related 1o the transfer of the ED servicing conlract to a
third party in Oclober 2021

Asset and processing $203 million primarily as a result of a $158
million decrease in revenue eamed in our Business Processing segment due to the expected $183
million reduction in revenue from the wind-down of pandemic-related contracts, which was partialty offsel
by a $25 million increase in revenue from services for our traditional services clienls. The remaining 545
million decrease was related to revenue eamed in our Federal Education Loan segment and was due to
the CARES Act’s impact on collection activities.

Gains on sales of loans decreased 578 milllon in connection with the sale of approximately $1.6 billion of
Private Education Loans in 2021, There were no such sales in the current period.

Losses on debt repurchases decreased 573 million. We repurchased $2.6 bilion of debt at a $73 million
loss in the year-ago period, There were no debt repurchases in the current period,

Nel gains on desivative and hedging activities Iincreased $107 million. The primary faclors alfecting the
change were interest rate flucluations. of derivative fluctuate based upon many
factors including changes in interest rates and other markel factors, As a result, net gains and losses on
derivative and hedging activities may vary significantty in future periods.

Exchuding net regulatory-related expenses of $7 milion and $233 milion in 2022 and 2021, respectively,
operating expenses were $7T69 million and $974 million in 2022 and 2021, respectively. This $205 million
decrease was primarily related to the transfer of the ED servicing contract and the decline in Business
Processing segment pandemic-related revenue. Included in 2021 regulatory expenses was 5205 million
related to the resclution of previously disclosed litigation

During 2022 and 2021, the Company incurred S!-G miliion and $26 million, respectively, of

restructuring/other due to severance-related cosls, facility lease
Istminahons and the impairment of a iaclily held for sale Expense in 2022 primarily relates to severance
ion with the Comp ision to exit || ily the FFELP asset recovery business) and

consuldale certain business Ine: and other nmclnnqr initiatives. Expense in 2021 primarily relates to
facility lease terminations and the impairment of a faciity that was subsequently sold as the Company
reduced and consolidated its facility footprint to become more efficient,

We repurchased 24.8 million and 34 4 million shares of cur common slock during 2022 and 2021, respectively. As a
resull, our average outstanding diluled shares decreased by 28 million common shares (or 16%) from the year-ago

period.




Segment Results

Federal Education Loans Segment

The foll table ts Core E: results for our Federal Education Loans segment,
Years Ended December 31, % Increase (Decroase]
¥E. 021 vs.

|Doliars in millioms) 2022 2021 2020 2021 2020
Interest meome:

FFELP Loans 3 1855 § 1405 § 1812 3% 237%

Cash and imvestments a2 — 7 100 100)
Total interest income 1887 1405 1,820 a1 )
Total interest expense 1,468 830 1.194 I (30}
Het interest mm“ 518 575 ezg 110} éﬂ’
Less: provision for loan losses — — 1 — (100)
Net interest income after provison for loan losses EE] 878 @13 (1a) &)
Other income (loss):

Servicing &5 162 208 (60} (22)

Assel recovery and business processing revenue 6 51 154 (a8) (BT}

Qther ncome kil 25 9 24 178
Total cther income 102 238 an (57} 136)
Direct operating expenses 106 223 287 52)
Income before income tax expense 13 7 13) 5)
Income tax expense 108 136 160 (21 (15

H 401 § s { {51%

Highlights of 2022 vs, 2021

Nel income was $407 milion compared to $454 million
Nel interest income decreased $56 million primarily due to the paydown of the portfolio as well as an

increase in inlerest rates. App half of the payds of the portiolic was the result of borrowers
consolidating their loans with ED as part of the Public Services Loan Forgiveness Program

Provision for loan losses remained at $0.

o Net charge-offs were 540 milion compared to $26 million.

o Delinquencies greater than 90 days were $3.3 billien compared 1o 2.1 billion
o Forbearances were $7.6 billon compared o $6.3 bilion

Other revenue decreased $136 million primarily related to the transfer of the ED servicing contract lo a
third party in October 2021 as well as a decrease in asset recovery revenue,

Expenses were $117 million lower as a result of the paydown of the loan porifolio and the decrease in
other revenue discussed above,




Key performance melrics are as follows:

Years Ended December 31
Dollars in millions, 02 2021 #0720
Interest 1.01% 99% 9%
FFELP Loans:
FFELP Loan spread 11% 1.06% 1.06%
Provision for loan losses 3 - — 5 13
Het 5 40 5 26 85 48
Het charge-off rale 1 DE% 10%
Grealer than 30-days delinquency rate 15.6% 106% 92%
Greater than S0-days delinquency rate 9.6% 48% 46%

Forbearance rale 18.1% 12.4% 138%
Average FFELP Loans. i
FFELP Loans, net

(Dollars in billions)
Mmuofx:mumdlorﬂ){nml!omr' — — 56
Total federal loans senviced' 3 51 %5 81 3 284

Closed on the novation and transder of cur ED servising contract 1o 3 third party in Ostober 2021. As of year-end 2022, we serviced 551
billion in FFELP federally guaranieed) kans

8
g,
&
2

Net Interest Margin
The following table details the net interest margin.
Years Ended December 31
2022 2024 2020
FFELP Loan yield 355% T81% Z30%
Floor Income 42 60 65
FFELP Loan net yield 357 251 25
FFELP Loan cost of funds (2.86) (1.45) (1.89)
FFELP Loan spread i 106 106
Other interest-eaming asset spread impact (10} (07) 07}
Met interest margin”' 101% 59%
- =
T The average balances of the interest-oaming assets for B respective perods aie.
Years Ended December 31,
Lars in millions) 1
%Eﬁ Loans § WiE3 § S0 § 6152
Cther interest-eaming assets 2110 1816 1,847
Tolal FFELP Loan interest-eaming assets § 51293 § 57834 § 63369
As of December 31, 2022, our FFELP Loan portfolio totaled $43.5 billion, comprised of $15.7 billion of FFELP
Slafford Loans and 527 8 billion of FFELP C idation Loans. The weig ge life of these portfolios as of
December 31, 2022 was 7 years and B years, respectively, g a Constant F Rate (CPR) of 8% and
5%, respectively.
Floor Income
The followi a Core E: Dbasis the ability of the FFELP Loans in our portiolio to eam Floor
Income afler Demmhor n, 2022 and 2021 based on interest rates as of those dates.
(Dollars in bilions) December 31, 2022 Decernber 31, 2021
loans o earn Floor Income 5 432 % 524
Less. post-March 31, 2006 disbursed loans required
to rebate Floor Income: (20.5) (243)
Less: economically hedged Floor Income (123) M.
Education loans eligible 1o eam Floor Income after
rebates and economically hedged 5 104 3 164
Education loans earning Floor Income s — 5 1.3

The fellowing table presents a projection of the average balance of FFELP Consolidation Loans for which Fixed Rate
Flaor Income has been economically hedged with derivatives for the period January 1, 2023 to December 31, 2027

Dadlars in billions 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027

verage
‘whose Floor Income ks economically hedged 3 78 § 20 § 10 § 10 S 3




Servicing Revenue

5 Ing revenue d 397 million rily related to the transter of the ED servicing contract to a third party
in October 2021. To aid in the transition, Navient provided limited services in 2022 to the third party through a
Iransition services agreement. As parl of the ransaction, app! 700 Navient employees were to
the third party. This transaction provided a seamiess transition for millions of borrowers ensuring the ongomg
sarvicing capacity for ED through the knowledge transfer and ongoing er of T00 i
beneﬂls o Navienl of this lransaction are the simplfication of our business, reducing our ove(alt nsk pmﬁe and

g significant ce

Third-party loan servicing fees in 2022 and 2021 included $0 and $104 million, respectively, of servicing revenue
related to the ED servicing contract.
Asset Recovery and Business Processing Revenue

Assel recovery and business processing revenue decreased 545 million primarily as a result of COVID-19 and the
CARES Act's impact on certain collection and processing activities (temporary stoppage or other restrictions on
certain activities).

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses for the Federal Education Loans segment primarily include costs incurred 1o perform servicing
and assel recovery actvities on our FFELP Loan portiolio and federal educabon loans held by other instiluions
Expenses were 5117 million lower_ primarily as a result of the decrease in servicing and asset recovery revenue
discussed above

Federal Loan Forgiveness

On August 24, 2022, the Biden-Harms Administration announced its Studenl Debt Relief (SDR) Plan. The SDR Plan
provides up to $20,000 in ene-time debt relief to income-qualified recipients with ED held student loans and initially
extended the repayment pause on ED held loans through December 31, 2022, This repayment pause has been
further extended as detailed below. Privately held FFELP Loans themselves, like ours, do not qualify for debt
forgiveness.

Following the initial announcement of the SDR Flan, ED provided more specific guidance on debt relief through its
studentaid gov website on September 29, 2022, Following publication of the SDR Plan, a number of states and
privale erganizations initiated legal challenges to the SDR Plan in various courts throughout the country, which
ultimately resulted in the implementation of the SDR Plan being disallowed. The Biden-Harris Administration and ED
subsequently appealed both cases to the Supreme Court of the United States which has agreed 1o hear the cases on
February 28, 2023, and a ruling is expecled priof to the end of the Supreme Court’s current term. If the SDR Plan has
nol been implemented and the litigation is not rescived by June 30, 2023, payments are scheduled to resume 60
days after that date. While the current version of the SDR Plan provides thal borrowers with federal student loans not
held by ED cannol obtain one-time debt relief by consolidating those loans into Direct Loans, ED states that they are
assessing whether there are alternative pathways to provide relief lo borrowers with federal student loans not held by
ED, including FFELP Loans

We that ly $600 million of FFELP Loans (1% of the FFELP portfolio’s average
2022 halam:e] had consohdaled ihetr loans with ED prior to the deadiine to qualify for debt relief established by the
SDR Plan

As aresult, there was not a material impact on the Company's accounting and related 2022 results related to the
SDR Plan as currently

1 Frivately held FFELF Loans themselves, like ours, do nol qualify lor debt forgiveness, and

2 ED required FFELP borrowers 1o apply to consolidate their loans into the Direct Loan program prior lo
Seplember 29, 2022, o qualify for their loan forgiveness

As a result, at this time we do not expect there o be incremental consolidation activity in the future related to potential
Ioan forgiveness under the SDR Flan.




Consumer Lending Segment

The g table Core Eamings results for our Consumer Lending segment.
Years Ended December 31, % Increase (Decreass)
2077 vs. 2071 va.

(Dollars in millions) 2022 2021 2020 2021 2020
Interest income.

Private Education Loans § 1195 § 1181 § 1445 1% (18)%

Cash and investments 10 2 3 400 (33)
Interest income: 1,205 1,183 1448 Fl (18)
Interest expense 611 541 699 13 {23)
Net interest income 594 642 749 (7) (14)
Less. provision for loan losses = 7 (61) 142 230 (143)
Net interest income after provision for

Ipan losses 515 703 607 (27 16
Other income (loss),

Servicing revenue 12 G 6 100 —

ther income: 1 — - 100 —

Gains on sales of loans o 91 - (100} 100
Total other income 13 a7 [ (34} 1517
Direct operating expenses 148 162 146 (9) 1
Income before income tax expense 380 638 467 40) ar
Income tax expense 80 146 107 45) 36
Net income 3 300 $ 492 % 360 (39)% 3%

Highlights of 2022 vs, 2021

Criginated $2.0 billion of Private Education Loans compared to $6.0 billion.

o Refinance Loan originations were $1.7 billion compared to §5.8 billion. The decrease in
originations s primarily the result of borrowers with fixed interest rate loans having less of an
incentive lo refinance in light of the significan! increase in interest rates that occurred in 2022

o In-school loan originations increased 52% to $322 million compared to $212 million,
Net income was $300 million compared to $492 million.

Nel interest incoma d 548 millicn p rity due to the pay of the in-school loan portfolic
This was partially offset by an increase in the net interest margin on the Refinance Loan portfolio.

Provision for loan losses increased $140 million. The provision for loan losses of $79 million in the
current period included 534 million of provision in connection with lean originations and 345 million
related 1o a reserve build in connection with a dechne in lorecasted economic condilions. The negative
provision of ${61) milllon in the year-ago period was reiated to the reversal of both $107 million of
alloweance for loan losses in connection with the sale of approximately $1.6 billion of Private Education
Loans and $18 million related to a reserve release, partially offset by 564 million of provision related fo
loan originations. The increases in charge-offs and delinquencies detailed below are primarily the result
of loans thal were experiencing repayment difficulties pre-COVID returning to repayment after pandemic

o Excluding the $30 million and $16 million, respectively, of charge-offs on the expected future
recoveries of previously fully charged-off loans, nel charge-offs were 5313 million compared with
$153 million

o Private Education Loan delinguencies grealer than 90 days: $411 million, up $114 million from
3297 million.

o Private Education Loan forbearances: $401 million, down $134 million from $535 million

Gains on sales of loans decreased $91 million in connection with Ihe sale of approximalely $1.6 billion of
Private Education Loans in 2021, There were no such sales in the current year,

Expenses decreased $14 milion primarily due to a decline in servicing expense




Key performance melrics are as follows:
Years Ended December 31,

!ggllarl in miflions) 2022 2020
gment nel inlerest margin 281% 292% 320%

Privale Education Loans:

Private Education Loan spread 295% 3.12% 340%
Provision for loan losses $ 7 S5 61) $ 142
Net charge-offs” 35 3305 153 § 184
Net charge-off rate’ 1.59% TE% 8%
Greater than 30-days delinquency rate 50% 32% 26%
Greater than 90-days delinquency rate 22% 1.5% 10%
Forbearance rale 21% 26% 39%
Average Private Education Loans 5 20524 % 21,225 % 22,720
Ending Private Education Loans, net 3 8725 % 20071 § 21,079
Privale Education Refinance Loans
HNet charge-olfs L 20 s b & . 8
Greater than $0-day delinquency rate 2% A% 1%
Average balance of Private Education Refinance Loans 3 5584 S BBTE § 7,700
Ending balance of Private Education Refinance Loans 5 9516 % 979 3 8,202
Private Education Refinance Loan ariginations 5 1680 § 5811 § 4,564

Exchudes $30 million, 518 mibon and 523 milien of charge-offs on the expeciad fture recovenes of prevously filly charged-off loans In 2022,
2021 and 2020, respectvely, a3 8 resull of increasing the net charge-o! rate on defaued loans.

Net Interest Margin
The following table detadls the nel interest margin.

Years Ended December 31,
2 2021 2020

Private Education Loan yield 5.82% 557% 6.36%
Private Education Loan cost of funds (2.87) (2.45) (2.96)
Private Education Loan spread 295 312 340
Other interest-eaming asset spread impact (.14) (.20} (.20}
Net interest margin'') 281% 202% 3.20%

M The average balsnces of the interest-oaming assets for the respective pericds are:
Years Ended December 31,
22 2021

Pivae Educaton R R
Teale Loans ] ‘SZl $ 1225 § 120
Othver interest-eaming assets 787

Total Private Education Loan interesl-eaming assels ! 21 ﬂ ! EEE 3 23 ?

The decrease in the net interest margin from the prior years is primarily due to the increase in the relative proportion
of the higher quabty, lower yielding Privale Education refinance loan portfolio compared to the non-refinance poriiclio

As of December 31, 2022, our Private Euutannn Luan portfalio totaled $18.7 billion. comprised of $9.5 billion of
refinance loans and $9.2 billion of life of this portfolio as of December 31,
2022 was 4 years and 5 years, respectively, assufnlnq a Cunslant Pmpa\'mant Rate (CPR) of 15% and 10%,
respectively.

Provision for Loan Losses
The provision for Private 1 Loan 1ossss d $140 million. The prlmsmn for lean losses of $79 million in
the current period included $34 million of p in ction with loan and $45 million refated to a

reserve build in connection with a decline in forecasted economic conditions, The negative provision of $(61) million
in 2021 was related to the reversal of both $107 milion of allowance for loan losses in connection with the sale of
approximately $1.6 billion of Privale Education Loans and 518 million related to a reserve release, partially offset by
$64 milion of provision related to loan originations.

Gains on Sales of Loans

Gains on sales of loans in 2022 decreased $51 million in connection with the sale of $1.6 billion of Private Education
Loans in 2021, There were no such sales in 2022
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Opmm Expenses
for our lending include cosls to originale, acquire, service and collect on our
oonsume! Ioan portiolio. Operating expenses decreased $14 milien primarily due to a decling in servicing expense,

The table Core gs results for our Business Processing segment,

Years Ended Dy ber 31, "

2022 vs. 2021 vs.

(Dollars in millions) 2022 2021 2020 Firal 2020
Business processing revenue 5 330 5 488 5 304 (32)%. 61%
Direct operating expenses 280 360 254 (22) 42
Income before income tax expense 50 Tii g'ﬁ 1]
Income tax expense 10 (66)
Net income § 40§ §§ 3 ti (60)%. 52%
Hightights of 2022 vs. 2021

. Net income was $40 million compared to $99 million

. Revenue decreased $158 million due to the expected $183 million reduction in revenue from the wind-
down of pandemic-refated contracts, which was partially offset by a $25 million increase in revenue from
services for our traditional government and healthcare services clients,

. EBITDA™ was $53 million, down $83 million, or 61%. The decrease in EBITDA' was primarity the result
of the revenue decrease discussed above

Key performance metrics are as follows:

As of December 31,
(Dollars in millions) 2022 2021 2020
Rewenue from government services § 187 § 258 § 191
Revenue from healthcare services 143 230 113
Total fee revenue § 330 § 488
EBITDA™" 5 51 § 136 § 57
EBITDA margin'™ 16% 28% 19%

" liem is @ non-GAAP financial measure. For a description and reconciiation. see “Non-GAAP Financial Measures.”
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Other Segment

The g table Core gs results for our Other segment.
Years Ended December 31, % Increase (Decrease)
2022 vs. 2021 vs.
(Dollars in millions) 2022 2021 2020 2021 2020
INet interest loss alter provision for loan losses 5 @ § ®)S§ (113) 26% (39)%
Other income:
Other income: - 5 11 (100) 55)
Losses on debt repurchases — (T3) (6) (100) 1,117
Total other income - {68} 5 (700) (1,460)
Expenses:
Unallocated shared services expenses:
Unallocated information technology costs 69 65 a7 G (25)
Unallocated corporate costs 173 397 190 (56) 109
Total unallocated shared services expenses 242 462 277 (48) 67
izati 36 26 ] 38 189
Tolal expenses 278 488 286 (43) 1
Loss before income tax benefit 1365) 1625) 395) (42) 58
Income tax benefit (76) (131) : ggg] (42) 46
Netincome (loss) $_(89) (4995 i 41)% 62%

Net Interest Loss after Provision for Loan Losses

Net interest loss after provision for loan losses is due to the negative canrying cost of our corporate liquidity portiolio.
The amount of the net interest loss is primarily a result of the size of the liquidity portfolio as well as the cost of funds
of the debt funding the corporate liquidity portfolio.

Losses on Debt Repurchases

Losses on debt repurchases decreased 573 million. We repurchased 52.6 billion of debt at a 373 million loss in 2021
There ware no debl repurchases in 2022

Unallocated Shared Services Expenses

u shared BXPENSEs are pri of costs p related to information technology costs
related lo ture and . slock-based . accounting, inance, legal, compliance
and risk q fated human Hmn and the board
of directors. Rowralmy-mlated aexpenses include aclual settlement amnunts as well as third- pany pmfsss:onal fees
we incur in connection with such regulatory malters and are p net of any i ts for

covered costs related to such malters. On an adjusted basis, expenses increased $6 million from the prior year.
Adjusted expenses exclude 57 million and $233 million, respectively, of regulatory-related expenses in 2022 and
2021.

Inchuded in 2021 requ{:mnr expenses was 5205 million related to the resoluuan oiptenoushy disciosed litigation. See
"Note 12 = Corr 0 and " for further

See "Note 12- C Ci and G “ for a discussion of legal and regulatory matlers where
itis reasonably possible that a loss contingency exists. The Company is unable to the timing of a 1
or the impact that these malters may have on the Company’s consolidated financial posnuun hquluuty results of
operation or cash flows. As a result, it is not possible at this time to arange of , if any, for
amounts that may be payable in connection with these matlers and reserves have nol been astahﬂvshm‘.l II is possible
that an adverse ruling or rulings may have a material adverse impact on the Company.

Other Reor P

During 2022 and 2021, the Company lncuma 536 million and $26 million, respectively, of restructuring/other

ation due lated costs, facility lease lerminations and the impairment of a
facility held for sale. Expense in 2022 prl'nanlgr relates to severance in connection with the Company's decision to exit
(primarily the FFELP asset recovery and ¢ certain busi lines and other efficiency initiatives.
Expense In 2021 primarily relates lo facility lease lerminalions and the impairment of a facility thal was subsequently
sold as the Company reduced and consolidated its facilily footprint to become more efficient
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Financial Condition
This section p information 1

o g the activity and credil metrics of our

Ioan portiolio.
Summary of our Education Loan Portfolio
Ending Education Loan Balances, nel

December 31, 2022

TFFELP FFELP Total  Private
Staflord and Consolidation FFELP Education Total
(Dollars in millions| Other Loans Loans Loans Partialio
on loan
In-school' 5 16 § — 16 § 54 § 70
Grace, repayment and other™ 15,834 27897 4373 19,471 63,202
Total 15,850 27 897 43,747 15,525 63,272
Allowance for loan losses (159) {63) {222) (800) (1,022
Tolal education loan portiolio $ 15691 § 27834 § 43525 5 18735 § 62
% of total FFELP 3% Ba% 100%
% of total 25% 45% 0% 30% 100%
December 31, 2021
~FFELP FFELP Total  Private
Stafford and Consolidation FFELP Education Total
(Dollars in millions) Other Loans Loans Loans Partiolio
on loan 2
In-school % 20 § — % 20 3§ 19 3§ 39
Grace, repayment and other™ 18,379 34504 52,883 21,161 74,044
Total 18,399 34,504 52,903 21,180 74,083
Allowance for loan losses (180) 82) (262) (1,009) (1,271)
Toltal education loan portfolio 5 18219 § 34422 5 52641 5 20171 5§ 72812
% of total FFELP 3% 5% 700%
% of total 25% 47% T2% 28% 100%
December 31, 2020
FFELP FFELP Total Private
Stafford and Consolidation FFELP Education Tatal
(Dollars in Other Loans Loans Loans Partfolio
Tofal education foan porficiio;
In-schoof!’! . $ 30 s — § N S 14§ 44
Grace, repayment and ofh 19,771 771 58542 22,154 80,696
Total 19,801 g,?‘h SE,E;E 72 168 74
Allowance for loan losses (194) (94) (288) (1,089) {1,377)
Tatal education loan portfolio 3 19607 % 3BET7 5 _SB2B4 3 2079 § 79363
% of total FFELP 34% 66% 100%
% of total 25% 49% T4% 26% 100%

i Lears fer custemens stll aending scheol and aie not ye! requined to make payments. on the loan
Inchodes loans in deferment or forbearance.
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Education Loan Acthvity

(Dollars in millions)

Beginning balance
Acquisitions :onqnauans and purchases)’!
cwmm interest and

Rmanmns and consolidations 1o third
parties

Repayments and other

Ending balance

(Dollars in millions)
Beginning balan;

amortization

Refinancings and consolidations to third
parties

Loan sales

Repayments and other

Ending balance

(Dallars in millions)

_Year Ended December 31, 2022

FFELP FFELP Total Private
Stafford and  Consolidation ~ FFELP  Education  Total
Other Loans Lcmu LMIII Pom’oliu
§ 18219 § 34422 i § 20171 § 7zB2
1 2,051
641 731 1372 208 1,580
(1.851) (4, 709; (6.560) (452)  (7.012)

_(3251) _ (1.181)

$ 15601 § 27, 834 §435%5 § 18725 § 62.250
Year Ended December 34, 2021
FFELP FFELP Total Private
Summu and Consolidation FFELP Education Total
Loans Loans Loans Portfolio
5 135'0? 5 38677 $ 58284 § 21079 § 79363
41 m 5993 6,104
666 762 1.428 186 1614
(906) (1,819) {2,725) {529) 13,254)
= = e (1613)  (1.613)
(1.218) (3,239)  (4.457) (4,945)  {9.402)
] 15}12 ) § 57641 § 20171 § 72812

- Year Ended December 34, 2020
TFFELP FFELP Total  Private

eginning
.&cqmsmns {originations and purchases)
interest

amortization

Refinancings and consolidations to third
parties

Repayments and other

Ending balance

Stafford and  Consolidation FFELP  Education Total
Other oans Loans Loans Portlolio

= 5 F 42852 § GAST5 ]
18 18 3r 4,604 4,641
715 EET 1.452 23 1.683
(934) (2.219) (578)  (2.797)

(1.916) ;3645} (5,561) (5,423) (10.984)
$ 19607 § Jgef7 5 58284 § 21079 5 79303

i Inchutes the origination of 5390 milkon, $1.7 bllion and $1.0 bilkon of Privase Education Refinance Loans in 2022, 2021 and 2020, respectively,
that refinanced FFELP and Private Eduzation Leans that were on our balance sheet
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FFELF Loan Partfalio Performance

December 31,
2022 204 2020
in millicn: Balance % Balance % Balance Y%
oans 00! i § 12 4
Loans in forbearance' T.603 6,292 7,725
Loans in repayment and percentage of each
status:
Loans curment 29,004 B44% 39679 B9.4% 43623 90.8%
Loans delinquent 31-60 days™ 1247 36 1,696 ig 1574 29
Loans delinquent 61-90 days 2833 24 o904 20 836 1.7
Loans greater than 80 days™ 3,288 96 2,112 48 2223 46
Total FFELP Loans in repayment F 100% 44,391 % 48056 __100%
Tetal FFELP Loans 43747 52,803 58,572
FFELP Loan allowance for losses {222) {262) 288}
FFELP Loans, net §43535 §52641 $58.284
Percentage of FFELP Loans in repayment 78.6% 83.9% B2.0%
Delinquencies as a percentage of FFELP Loans
in repayment 15.6% 10.6% 9.2%
FFELP Loans in forbaarance as a parcantage of
18.1% 12.4% 13.8%

loans in repayment and forbearance

Loans for customers wha may 458 be attending school or engaging in other permitted educational activities and are nat yet requined fo make
payments on their laans, e g, residency pericds for medical shudents or a grace period for bar exam preparation. as well as loans for
requessed and qualify for cther permitted program such as miliary, # 9 econcmis hardships
a Lemmmm-mnmmmmmmmr\:ma«nuwmamLmnmmmumm
wha have o making payments due to hardship or cther factors such a4 dsaster rehef. inchuding COVID-18

refief progeaens
O The pariod of delinguency is baved cn the number of days schoduled paymens are conrachually past due

Private Education Loan Portfolio Performance

Dollars in millions
oans 00|

rment’!

Loans in forbearance™!
Loans in repayment and percentage of each

status:

Loans curment

Loans delinquent 31-60 days'™

Loans delinquent 61-90 days™

Loans delinquent greater than 90 days™
Total Private Loans in

95.0%
18

19,634
223

Total Privaie Education Loans

Private Education Loan allowance for losses

Private Education Loans, net

Percentage of Private Education Loans in
repayment

Delinguencies as a percentage of Private
Education Loans in repayment

Loans in forbearance as a percentage of loans
in repayment and forbearance

[Percentage of Private Education Loans with a
cosigner

[0 Laams for customers wha ane attending schoeol or are in cther p

96.1%

95.8%

94 0%

5.0%

32%

26%

2.1%

2.6%

39%

33%

35%

41%

activities and are not

their loans. @ g intemship periods. as well s loans for custemens wha have requested and qualify for ather permitied muﬂ!mnn

sk s various milsary ebgible

@ Loans for custoeers wha have requested extension of puo period g«nr.llf mmﬂw tranditicn o who have fompcrariy ceased

making full payments due to hardship or other factors
loan program servicing policies and procedures,

o The pericd of delinguoncy is baved on the number of days schoduled payments are contractually past dus,
" Exchading Private Education Refinance Loans, which do nat have a cigner, the cosigner rabe was 85% for all periads presented.
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Allowance for Loan Losses
Year Ended December 31, 2022

Treate
FFELP Education

(Dodlars in millions) Loans Loans Total
Allowance M beginning of period F %2 § 1,009 £ 120
Tatal provision i 79 78
Charge-offs.
Gross charge-offs {40} (370} (410)

future on current period gross charge-offs — 57 57
Total " 40) 33) (353)
Adjustment resulting from the change in charge-off rate™ = (30)
Net charge-offs (40} (343) (383}

i future fulty
charged-off loans™ — 55 55
ABowance ot end of period (GAAP) 222 800 1022

oy

charged-off loans™ - 274 274
Alewance al end of period exchuding expected future recoveries
on previously fully chasged-off loans (Non-GAMP Financial
Measure) " s 222 $ 1074 8 1296
Net charge-offs as a percentage of average loans in repayment,
excluging the net adprstment resulting from the change in the

rate™ 10% 159%
Net adjustment resulting from the change in charge-off rale as a
percentage of average lvans in repayment™ —% 15%
et charge-offs as a percentage of average loans in repayment 0% 7%
ABowance caverage of charge-offs™ 55 3 (Hon-GAAR)
Allowance as a percentage of the ending total loan balance'® 5% 55%  (Non-GAAP)
ABowance as a percentage of the ending loans in repayment 6% 57%  (Non-GAAR)
Ending total loans 5 43,747 $ 19,525
Average loans in repayment 5 40,332 H 19,796
[Ending loans in repayment 5 34372 5 18770

I Charge-ctfs are reponiod net of expocted ressveries. For Private Education Loans, we chasge off the estimatod loss of 3 defaulied loan balance
by charging off the entire defaulted loan balance and estmating recaveries on 3 pool basis, These estimated reccvenes ane referred 16 35
“eapeécted hiure recaveries on previously fully charged-off kaars.” Far FFELP Loans, the feccvery is recetved a2 the time of charge-off.

@ Animcrease in the net charge-off rate on defaubed Private Education Loans in 2022 resuited in 2 530 millicn reducticn in the balance of expected
future recovenies on previously fully charged-of loans.

@ Al the ond of each month, for Private Education Laars that are 212 days past due, we charge off the estimated loss of 3 defaulied loan balance
mmdwmmhmmmmuawhm Hmnu&m-duemmmnﬁmdb.; eupeumluu-n

necavenies on previously fully charged-off loans.” If actual periodic recoveries , the diference is a3
meduchon to expecied fture recovenes on previously uwd-dlouu Nmmmmwmlmom thery will be
refected a3 3 recavery thicugh the allowance for Pivate Education Loan lcsses once the cumulaive recovery amount sxcesds the cumlative
amount onginally sxpected to be recovered. The lollowing Lable Summarnzes the actvity in the expected future recovenss on previously fully
charged-of laans:
Year Ended
December 31,
{Dollars in millions) 022
Beginning of expected fulure recoveries on previously fully charged-cff loans ~ § 5
Expected huture recoveries of current period defauls 57
Recoveres (cash collecled) (58)
Charge-offs (as a result of lower recovery expectations) %56]
End of period fully charged-off loans
Change in balance during period 3 55)

W ForPrivate Education Loans, the item is 2 non-GAAP financial measuro. For a description and rocondlintion, soo “Nor-G3AAP Financial
Maasures.”
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Year Ended . 201
Privaie

FFELP Education
|Doflars in millions) Loans Loans Total
mumdw H 268 3 1088 § 137

Ry f loan sales’” (107 (107}
ining provision — 46 46
Total provision 61) &1y
Charge-offs
Gross charge-offs 26) (175) li'g;}
future: on curent period gross charge-offs —
Total’ 6 153) {179)
Adjustment resulting from the change in charge-off rate™ — 16) Lg)
Net charge-offs 126) (] i
mﬂmmmﬂﬂuummmwm
charged-off loans™ - 150 150
Mamuwlm 262 1,009 127
Phus: future fully
charged-off loans'* — 329 329
Allowance at end of period exchuding expected future recoveries
wmwmmwmm
asure) ™ 3 %2 8 1338 1,600
Numm—oﬁsuapomm wmmnumuu
net adustment resulting from the change in the
omw.owma" 06% 6%
et adjustment resulting from the change in charge-off rale as a
percentage of average loans in repayment ™' —% 08%
Net charge-offs as a percentage of average loans in repayment 6% 4%
Abowance coverage of charge-offs™ 10.0 79 (Non-GAAP)
meuammdlheelﬂmlmmnw’ 5% 63%  (Non-GAAP)
Alowance as a ol the i 6% 66%  (Non-GAAP)
Ending total loans 3 52903 $ 21,180
Average loans in repayment 5 45,781 5 20,150
Ending loans in repayment 5 44,390 $ 20,284
In with the sale of ity 51.8 bilion of Private Education Loans in 2021

Ch-pm“npumdmanpmmdmum Fior Private Education Loans, we chasge off the estimated loss of 3 defaubied loan balance
by charging off the entire defaulied lean balance and essmating recovenies on 3 pool basis. These estimated recoveries ame referred 1o as

“axpocted fiturs mcowsdes on previously fully charged-off loars.” For FFELP Loans. the recovery is recelved af the tima of

a1 Anncrease in the net charge-off rate on defauled Private Education Loans in 2021 resuited in 3 518 milion reduction in the balance of expected

future reccveries on previously fully charged-Gfl loans.

- tthe end of each manth, for Private Education Loans that are 212 days past dus, we charge off the estmated loss of a defavhed loan balance
by charging off the entire kzan balance and estimatng recoveries on a pool basks rmmmm awe referred 12 ap ar.uuoew.

recoveries on previcusly fully charged-off loans. " If achsal penodic recoverss are the d¥erence is

leans Wmmmwﬁnan greaber than up-t:bd mwlh

previously bully
reflected 36 3 recavery Mrough the allowarice for Private Education Loan losses once the cumulative recavery amount excesds the cumulative
amount criginally expected to be recowered. The folowing table summarizes the activity in the expected future recoveries o previously Rully

shasged-of laans
Year Ended
December 31,
{Dollars in millions) 2021
Beginning of period ched Rtur i fully charged-off loans.
Expected ulure recoveries of current period defaulls »
Recoveries. (cash (&7)
Charge-offs (#s a resull of lower recavery expectations) (35)
in expected ™ (50}
End of pericd expected future recoveries on previously fully charged-off loans 5 34
Change in balance during period $ (150)

@ Far Private Education Loans, the Rem iis 2 nen-GAAP financial measum. For o description and reconcliation, seo “NorBAAP Financial
Maasures *

' See "Resuts of Operations — GAAP Comparson of 2022 Results wih 2021" for further details.
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Year Ended December 31, 2020

Trvate
FFELP Education

(DoMlars in millions) Loans Loans Total
‘ABowance at beginning of period 3 &4 5 1,048 3 T2
Transition adjusiment made under CECL on January 1, 20207 260 nﬁl 257
Allowance: at beginning of period afler ransition adyustment to CECL 3 1 1,369
Total provision 13 142 155

Gross charge-offg (49) !Z;g) Qﬁ&n}

future: on curment period charge-offs —

Totar” “8) T184) 1233)

Adjustment resuliing from the change in charge-off rate™ —_ (23) (23}
Net charge-olls (49} 207) (256}

in fulure hf fully

charged-off loans'™* — 109 109
ABowiance at end of period (GAAP) 288 1,088 1377
Plus: on  fully

loans'® - 479 479

charged-off
Alowance at end of period exchiding expected future recoveries
on previously fully chasged-off loans (Non-GAAP Financial
Measure)*' ] 88 3 1568 % 1,856
Net charge-offs as a percentage of average loans in repayment,
excluding the net adjustment resulting from the change in the
charge-off

rate™ 0% 8%
Nnaﬁshmmmdhmt«nlfn&mheharge—uﬂmuasa
percentage of average loans in ment ™ —% 1%
et charge-offs as a percentage of average loans in repayment 10% 9%
Abowance coverage of charge-ofts ™ 58 76 (Hon-GAAR)
Alowance &5 3 percentage of the ending total loan balance™ 5% TA%  (Non-GAAP)
as a percentage of the ending loans in repayment ™ 6% T.5% (Hon-GAAP)
Ending fotal loans 5 58,572 5 22,168
Average loans in repayment 3 48,130 5 20,790
Ending loans in repayment 5 48,057 5 20841
For a hurthas Giscussion of our adoption of CECL. see "Noto 2 - Sndicsnt Accounting Policls.”
i+ are reported net of expected recoveries. For Private EmLmnmoﬂ‘ ef a defsulted ol
charging off the entre defaulted Ioan balance and Th-u are reforred to as “sxpected
* For FFELP Lu- hve recavery 21 the time of charge-cf.

a Annmaunﬂnlﬂd\w—oﬂnuuﬂdn‘a\ﬂldﬁw EdocnonLuwmmﬂann:u!nimudﬁmmduHﬂmulmM
Future recaveries on previously fully charged-off inans.

A the end of sach month, for Private Eduzation Laans that are 212 days past due. we charge off the estmated koss of a defaulted loan balance by
charging ofl the entine koan balsace and E3tmatng rescvenss on a poal basis, Mummummmmu 35 “expecind fulure

recovernes on fully charged-off loans.”  pctusd periodic recovedes are less th reflecied 25 3
reduction > expected hutury fully charged-oH koans. nmummmmmmmm thay wil be
rofiectod as 3 recovery thiough the aliowance for Private E: m
amount eek wxpected 1o b hm:m-xmuwtlmmmmwwm
charged-off laans.
Year Ended
December 31
(Dollars in millions) e,
of period exp futr i fully charged-off loans s 588
Expected fulure recoveries of current perod defaulls 32
Recoveries. (cash collected) (o7
Charge-ofts (a5 a result of lower recovery expectations) %34]
[End of period expected future recoveries on previousty fully charged-off loans
Change in balance during period H {109)
1 Fed Privace Education Loans. the kem is AP . Feora o and . b "Nor GAAP Financial Measures.”
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Funding and Liquidity Risk Management

The following llquﬂi:y and Capital Ry - our Federal Ed Loans
and Ci Len: its. Our Busi Pmnessmg and Other segmems lsqulm minimal lquidity and
funding.

We define Iquidity as cash and high-quality liquid assets that we can use to meel our cash requirements. Our two
primary Nquidity needs are: (1) servicing our debt and (2) our angedng ability to meet our cash needs for running the
operations of our businesses (including derivalive ) market cycles, including during
periods of financial stress. Secondary liquidity needs, which can be adjusted as needed, include the origination of
Private Education Loans, acquisitions of Private Education Loan and FFELP Loan portfolios, acquisitions of
companies, the payment of common slock dividends and the repurchase of our common slock. To achieve these
objectives, we analyze and monitor our liquidity needs and maintain excess Hquidity and access lo diverse funding
sources including the issuance of unsecured deb! and the issuance of secured debt primarily through assel-backed
securiizations andfor other financing facilities.

We define our liquidity risk as the potential inability to meet our obligations when Imy become due without incurring
unacceplable losses or to invest in future asset growth and b market rates. Our
primary lquidity risk refales 1o our ability to service our debt, meel our other buslnm obligations and lo continue to
grow our business. The ability 1o access the capital markets is impacted by general market and economic conditions,
our credit raunqs as well as me overall avallaodlnr of funding sources in the marketplace. In addition, credit ratings
may be i it to cust when we ste in certain markets and when we seek to engage
in certain hmdmns lnr.‘udmu over-the-counter derivatives.

Credit ratings and outiooks are opinions subject lo ongoing review by the rating agencies and may change, from time
to time, based on our financial performance, industry and market dynamics and other factors. Other factors that
influence our credit ratings include the rating agencies’ assessment of the general operating environment, our relative
positions in the markets in which we compele, reputation, liquidity position, the level and volatility of eamings,

« e and risk policies, capital position and capital management practices. A negative
change in our credit rating could have a negative effect on our liquidity because it might raise the cost and avallability
of funding and potentially require additional cash collateral or restrict cash currently held as collateral on existing
borrowings or derivative collateral arrangements. It is our objective to improve our credit ratings so that we can
continue 1o efficiently access the capital markets even in dificult economic and markel conditions. We have
unsecurad debl tolaling 57 .0 billion al December 31, 2022 Three credi rating v rale our long-t
unsecurad debl al below invesimenl grade,

We expect to fund our ongoing liquidity needs, including the repayment of $1.3 billion of senior unsecured notes that
mature in the short term (L.e., over the next 12 months) and the remaining $5.7 billion of senior unsecured notes that
mature in the long term (from 2023 to 2043 with 80% maturing by 2029}, through a number of sources. These
sources include our cash on hand, unencumbered FFELP Loan and Private Education Rslnuncs Loan pmﬂoﬂm (see
“Sources of Primary Liquidity” below), the prediclable op flows provided by

repayment of principal on unencumbered education loan assels, and the distri of overc rmm our
securitization frusts. We may also, depending on market conditions and availability, draw down on our secured
FFELP Loan and Frivate Education Loan facilities. issue term ABS, enter into additional Private Education Loan ABS
repurchase facilities, or issue additional unsecured deblt.

We originale Private Education Loans {a portion of which is oblained through a forward purchase agreement). We
also have purchased and may purchase, in future periods, Private Education Loan and FFELP Loan portfolios from
third parties. Loan originations and purchases are parl of our ongoing liquidity needs. We repurchased 24.8 million
shares of common stock for $400 million in 2022 and have S600 million of unused share repurchase authority as of
December 31, 2022
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Sources of Primary Liquidity
Ending Balances Average Balances

. 0“.‘:‘.‘!%’.3“
(Dallars in millions)
Unrestricted cash and liquid investments i"i'm F"’h’ﬁ B
Unencumbered FFELP Loans 124 167 220 320
Unencumbered Private Education Refinance
Loans 55 383 235 642
Total § 1658 5 1412 § 1550 § 2,071 5 2‘65
Sources of Additional Liquidity

Liquidity may also be available under our secured credit facilities. Maximum borrowing capacity under the FFELP
Loan and Pmrale Education Loan assel-backed commercial paper (ABCP) facilities will vary and be subject 1o each

q [ ing, among others, facility size, curment usage and availability of qualifying
coMlateral fmm unenc loans. The g lables detail the additional borrowing capacity of these lacilities
with maturity dates ranging from June 2023 to April 2024,

Maximum Average Maximum
Additional Capacity Additional C.
December 31, ‘Years Ended December 31,
(Dotlars in millions) 2022 2021 2020 2022 2021 2020
Loan 5 0 s—m § 25 %5 544§ a8
Private Education Loan ABCP faciliies 1,248 1.998 2,351 1,586
Total 5 134 § Fi 2 72 § 2273 § 2865 § 2068

Al December 31, 2022, we had a tolal of $4.1 bilion of unencumbeteu Ianqlble assels inclusive of those listed in me
lable above as sources of primary liquidty. Tolal uner loans ¢ d $1.6 bellion

our unencumbered langible assels of which $1.5 bilion and 568 million related to Privale Education Loans and
FFELP Loans, respectively. In addition, as of December 31, 2022, we had $5.2 billion of encumbered net assels (ie
overcollateralization) in our various financing fadliies (consolidated variable interest entities). Our secured financing
facilities include Private Educalion Loan ABS Repurchase Facilities, which had $0.7 billion outstanding as of
December 31, 2022. These repurchase faciliies are collateralized by the net assets in previously issued Private
Education Loan ABS trusts and have had a cost of funds lower than that of a new unsecured debt issuance

The following table reconciles encumbered and unencumbered assets and their net impact on total Tangible Equity.

December 31, December 31,

(Dollars in billions) 2022 2021
Net assels of consolidated vanable interest entiies.
(encumbered assets) — FFELF Loans 5 aTs i
Net assels of consolidated variable interest entities
{encumbered assels) —Pmale Education Loans 15 1.7
Tangible unencumbered assets 41 45
Senior unsecured debt (7.0 {7.0)
Mark-to-market on unsecured hedged debt® By (3
Other liabikties, net {.3) (.8)
Total Tangible Equity" ] 23 § 1.9
Bem i 3 non-GAAP fi Far 500 “Noer GAAP Financial Measures,”
A1 Decamber 31, 2022 and 2021, thave were ${285} milion and $324 milkicn, respectively. of net gains (Jzsses} on derivaives
ging this. debt in assets. which partially cifvet these gains (Ioases)
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Borrowings
Ending Balances

December 31, 2022

secsurting give rise to the difference above.

n

Short L Short ] “Short  Long
[Dollars in millions) Term Term Total Term Term Total Term Term Total
Unsecured borrowings: e T e e e ey
Senior unsecured
debt §1301 § 5711 § 7012 § — 5 7014 3 704 5 677 3 774 5 839
Total unsecured
1301 5 102 - T.014 7014 &77 7714 8391
Secured borrawings:
FFELP Loan
T6 42675 42751 — 51841 5141 — 54697 54897
Privale Education
Loan securtizations 725 12744 13,469 543 14,074 14617 960 13.801 14,851
FFELP Loan ABCP
923 386 1,309 82 150 432 2053 478 2532
Private Education
Loan ABCP
i 2734 — 2,734 1,363 1,152 2515 2,582 — 2,582
Other 121 —_ 121 302 - 302 337 — a7
Total secured
4,579 55,805 650,384 2,490 67,217 69,707 5932 69,067 74,999
Core Eamings basis
" 5880 61516 67,396 2,450 74231 TETN 6,609 76781 83,390
Adjustment for GAAP
accounting reatment (10) (490) (500 - 257 257 4 551 555
GAAP basis
barowings S 5870 3 61026 § 66806 $ 2490 § 74488 3 TE9TE § 6613 3 77332 § 83045
Average Balances
Years Ended December 31,
2022 2021 2020
Average  Average  Average  Average  Average  Average
(Dolarsinmilions) ___ Balance  Rate  Balance _ Rate  Balance _ Rate
Unsecured bomowngs:
Senior unsecured debl s 7.010 566% § 7978 443% 3 9461 5.05%
Tetal unsecured borrowings 01 7678 4 461
Secured borrowings
FFELP Loan securilizations 47,528 272 53,661 127 56,950 174
Private Education Loan securitizations 14,252 263 14273 240 14,159 290
FFELP Loan ABCP facilties 988 327 1,012 155 3134 167
Private Education Loan ABCP faciities 2518 338 2429 186 3203 253
Other m 168 303 34 68
Total secured bomowings 65,458 2.7 71,678 152 77,789 197
Core Earnings basis borrowings'' E g, 181 87,250 23
Adpstment Tor GAAP accounting treaiment — {.12) — {16} - 03
GAAP basts borrowings §72468 E $T9656 165% § 87250 234%
126 5 3 PEn-GAAP | Far . 50 o GAAP : orivat




Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Oj our ]
financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the
United States of America (GAAP), "Note 2 — shgml'ncam Accounting Policies” includes a summary of the s»gml'canl
accounting policies and memodzs used in the p of our lidated financial T of
these L ts requires to make esti and assumptions that affect the reportsd
amounts of assels and ies and lhe ol income and expenses during the reporting periods
Actual results may differ from these estimates under varying assumptions or conditions. On a quarterly basis,

its tes, particularly those mal mcluﬁe the most difficult, subjective or complex
Jjudgments and are often about matters that are inh Critical ting estimates involve a
significant level of estimation uncertainty and have had or are reasonably likely to have a material impact on the
financial condition or resulls of our operations. Our crilical accounting policies and estimales are the allowance for
Ioan losses, goodwil impairment assessment, and loan premium and discount amortization,

Alfowance for Loan Losses

We measure and recognize an allowance for loan losses that estimates the remaining current expected credit losses
{CECL} for linancial assels measured at amoitized cosl held al the reporting date. We have determined thal, for
modeling current expected [:roml losses, in general, we can reasonably estimate a:pamd losses Ihat incorporate

current and f [: it over a "l and " period. For Private Education
Loans, we and forecast 01' various macro-economic variables over the
remaining life of the loans The pment of the forecast inc an

that each macro-economic variable will revert lo a long-lerm a:pndallon starting in years 2-4 of the forecast and
largely completing within the first five years of the forecast. For FFELP Loans, after a three-year reasonable and
supportable period, there is an immediate reversion 1o a long-term expectation.

The models used to project losses utilze key credit quality indicators of the loan portiolios and predict how those
altributes are expecled lo perform in connection with the forecasted economic conditions. In connection with this
methodology, our modeling of current expected credit losses ulilizes historical loan repayment experience since 2008
identitying loan variables (key credit quality indicalors) that are significantly predictive of loans that will default and
predicts how leans will perform in connection with the forecasted economic conditions.

Thie key credit quality indicators used by the moded for Private Education loans are credit scores (FICO scoras), loan
status, loan seasoning, whether a loan is a TOR, the existence of a cosigner and school type

« Credit scores are an indicator of the credit risk of a custormer and generally the higher the credit score the
more likely it is the customer will be able to make all of their conlractual payments,

» Loan status affects the credit risk because generally a past due loan is more likely to default than an up-to-
date loan. Addé Joansin a status have different credit risk profiles compared with
those in current payment status.

«  Of the portiolio in repaymenl, loan seasoning alfects credil risk because a loan with a history of making
payments generally has a lower incidence of default than a loan with a history of making infrequent of no
payments.

« A TDR loan is where an economic concession (forbearance, lower interest rate, extension of lerm) has been
given 1o a borrower experiencing financial dithicullies. A TDR loan is generally more likely to defaull than a
non-TOR loan.

»  The existence of a cosigner generally lowers the likelhood of default, thus lowering the credit risk.

«  The type of school customers allended can have an impact on their graduation rate and job prospects after
graduation and therefore can affect their ability to make payments, which impacts the credit risk.

For FFELP loans, the key credit quality indicalors are loan status and loan type (Stafford, Consolidation and Rehab
Ioans).

We project losses over the conlractual tlerm of our loans, including any extension oplions within the control of the
borrower. Further, we make g prepayments when our expected credit losses which
are derived in the same manner discussed above.

The forecasted economic condiions used in our MWQIIIQ of expected losses are provided by a third party. The
primary economic melrics we use in the economic forecast are unemployment, GDP, interest rates, consumer loan

delinguency rates and consumer income, Several forecast are ided which it Iha i
economic expectations as well as and adverse smnanos We analyze and ava]ua.m the alternative
scenarios for bl and the g of these alternative scenarios based upon the

current economic conditions and our view of the likelihood and risks of the allernative scenarios
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We use h customer p e to the amount of future mmrlas on d defaulted private
education loans. We use jud, L in ch whether hist of whal we expect
1o collect in the future. The amount of expected fulure recoveries on defaulted FFELP loans is based on the

o g {which g lirnits the i loss to 3% of the loan balance).

Onice our loss model calculations are performed, we determine if itative adjustments are needed for factors not

fiected in the model These may include, but are not limited to, changes in lending,
servicing and collection policies and practices as well as the effect of other extemnal laclors such as the economy and
changes in legal or regulatory requirements thal impact the amount of fulure credit losses.

The provision for 2022 of $79 million included $34 million of provi in with loan ori and $45
million related to a reserve build. We evaluated and several d i ios when
determining our allowance for loan losses and provision. We also ¢ the ¢ of our loan portfolio
and fts expected behavior in the forecasted economic scenarios. There has been a decline in the forecasted

since D 31, 2021 which has been incorporated into cur allowance for loan loss as of
December 31, 2022. This decline in economic conditions is seen in an increase in forecasted unemployment rates
and consumer loan delinquency rates and a decrease in GDP and in consumer income. There is uncertainty as to the
ultimate impact to the econamy from historically high inflation and the significant increase in interest rates that
occurred in 2022 There is also uncertainty related lo the polential negative impact on the portiolio from the end of
various payment relief and stimulus benefits that previously occurred or are currently forecasted 1o end in 2023,
These conclusions and adjustments were based on an evaluation of current and forecasted econamic conditions. If
future economic conditions are significantly worse than what was assumed as a part of this assessment, it could
result in additional provision for loan loss being recorded in future periods

The evaluation of the allowance for loan losses is inherently subjective, as il requires matenial estimates and
assumplions that may be susceplible to significant changes. If actual future performance in delinquency, charge-offs
and recoveries ara significantly ﬂlﬂ’eronl than osl:mged of management's assumplions o practices were to change,
this could materially affect our esti of the for loan losses and the related provision for loan lesses on
our income statement.

In determining annually (or more frequently if requred! whether goodwill is impaired, we complete a goodwill
Impairment arlah'sus which may be a analysis d on the facts and circumstances
with unit. i !aclors in with a li analysis |||dudn {1

the amount of :ushlun that existed the last ime a est was leted which requires

of the g unit, the ing value of which is compared lo the carrying value of the reporting unlt 2)
macroeconomic l'aciuts (economy}, (3) industry specific factors (growth or deterioration of the market.
, (4) cost factors ), {5) i of the rep g unit itsell, (6)
other specific items :Imqanon change in managemenl or key personnel) and {7) whether a sustained dwnase in our
share price is indicative of a decline in value of the specific reporting unit. There can be significant judgment involved
in assessing these qualitative faclors. If, based on a quali analysis, we d is wom-llkeh'-msn—mf' that
the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its camying amount, we also te a iment analysis.
In liew of performing a qualitalive assessment, we may proceed directly to a quantitative impairment analysis. A
quantitative goodwill mpairment analysis laqullas a cnmparlson ol the fair value of the reporting unit to its carrying
walue. If the carrying value of the rep 1g unit's fair value (the amount we believe a third
party would pay for such reporting unit), me ooodwm assoclaled with the reporting unil will be impaired in an amount
equal to the difference between the reporting unit's fair value and its camying value, not to exceed the carrying value
of goodwill attributed to the reporling unit. There are significant judgments involved in determining the fair value of a

reporting unit, including 0 the approach or approaches lo ulilize and the assumpuons
1o apply including estimates of pmjecled future cash flows which ir ted future
net income and capital expenditures from and related to existing and new busi tivities and iate market

multiples, discount rates and growth rates. An appropriate resulting control premium is also considered. The reporting
units with goodwill for which we estimate fair value are nol publicly traded and for some reporting units directy
comparable market data may not be available to aid in its valuation

Navient tests goodwill as of October 1 each year or al interim dates if an event occurs or circumslances exist such
that it is determined that it is more likely than not that the fair value of the reporting unit is less than its carrying value
(the qualitative test), Such an event or circumstance is a triggering event, If it is concluded that a triggering event has
occurred at an intenim date, a quantitative impairment test must be performed, During the second and third quarters
of 2022, macreeconomic condtions most nolably historically high inflation and rising inlerest rates impacted the
industry and markets in which our reporting unils with goodwill operate, their cost structures and, to some degree,
their expected 2022 financial performance. Additionally, our stock price dedined during the second and third quanters
compared to March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, due primarily to uncertainty associated with these
macroeconomic factors and the potential implications of the Biden Adminisiration's proposed Student Debt Relief
Plan. As a result of these factors, we assessed whether a triggering event occurred for each of our reporting units
with goodwill as of Seplember 30, 2022 and June 30, 2022
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Interim Triggering Event Assessments

For each of our reporting units with goodwill including our FFELP Loans, Privale Education Legacy In-School Loans
(those which were originaled prior to 2014), Privale Education Refinance Loans, Private Education Recent In-School
Loans {those which were originated in 2020 or later) and Feaemi Education Loan Servicing reporting unils
{collectively, the Loan reporting units) and our G and H Senices ing units
{collectively, the Business P g units), we relevant g ive factors to whether
it is *more-likely-than-not” that the fair value of an individual reporting unit is less than its camying value. We
considered the amount of excess fair values for our FFELP Loans, Federal Education Loan Servicing, Private
Education Legacy In-School Loans, and Private Education Refinance Loans over their camying values as of October
1, 2019, the last time an ind appraiser estimated the value of these reporting units, since the fair value of
these reporting units was substantially in excess of their carrying amounts. The outlook and cash Aows lor the FFELP
Loans and Private Education Legacy In-School Loans reporting units have nol changed significantly since our 2019
assessmenl despile worsening macroeconomic conditions in 2022, Likewise, the outlooks and cash flows for the
Federal Education Loan Servicing components remaining after removing the cash fiows atiributed to the ED Servicing
contract have not changed significantly since 2019,

For the Private Education Refinance Loans reporting unit, although expectations for new refinance loan originations
as of June 30. 2022 were reduced and actual new loan originations declined considerably during Im sncnml and thisd
quarters due to the impad! of the rising rate il new orgination volume signi

cumulatively during 2020 and 2021 resulting in the reporting unit holding a significanty higher balance of loans than
anticipated in conjunction with the determination of the reporting unit’s fair value in 2018. We expect to hold this
portiolio for a longer period of ime than anticipated in 2019, While new originations declined due to the rising rate
environment, prepayment speeds for the reporting unit's portfolio also declined resuiting in @ more: stable interest
income stream partially offsetting the impact of the decline in originalions. We also considered Navient's strong
liquidity position and its ability to issue Private Education Loan ABS comprised entirely of the reporting unit's
refinance loans,

For the Business Processing reporting units, we also considered the amount of excess fair value over the carmrying
values of these reporting unils as of Octaber 1, 2020, when we an o the
fair value of the reporting units, since the fair values of these reporting units was substantially in excess of their
carrying values. We cmsndemd the ﬁr\andal perormance for bolh ol' Ihese mmdlrbu units in 2021 and 2022 during
which the G and Hi ity outperformed expectations due
largely 1o significant contracts acquired in 2020 and 2021 to mnfemenl and administer programs under the CARES
Act and perform conlact tracing and vaccine admmstraion services. During 2022, these reporting units generated

additional revenue from these conlracts, 1o win new and
benefited from an increase in demand for Ilamlunal service nﬂemqs The ouﬂnok and long-term cash flow
projections for both the Govemment Services and k Services rep g units remain and have not
changed significantly since our 2020 i despite the economic Impact of worsening

macroeconemic conditions in 2022,

The goodwill attributed lo the Private Education Recenl In-Schoel Loans reporting unit i a direct result of our August
2021 acquisition of Going Merry, In the secend and third quarters, we considered Going Merry's slrong performance
in its mission to match students with and assist them to apply for scholarships, institutional aid and government
grants as well as private education in-schoel origination volume, which exceeded expectations.

Based on the qualitative factors we considered in relation to each of our reparting units with gooedwill, we concluded it
was not “more-likely-than-not” that the fair value of an individual reporting unit was less than its carrying value as of
September 30, 2022 and June 30, 2022. As a result, the decline in Navient's stock price in the second and third
quarters and worsening ic conditions including rising interest rates and historically high inflation and
their impact on our individual reporting units as we p ived them as of 30, 2022, and June 30, 2022, did
not constitute Iriggering events, No further impairment lesting was performed during interim quarters in 2022

Annual Goodwill Impairment Testing

We performed annual impairment testing as of October 1, 2022, We retained a third-party appraisal firm lo assist in
the valuations required to perform a quantitative impairment test of goodwill associated with cur FFELP Loans,
Federal Education Loan Servicing, Private Education Legacy In-School Loans, Privale Education Refinance Loans,
Government Services, and Healthcare Services reporting unils as of Oclober 1, 2022, No goodwill was deemed
impaired in conjuncion with these reporting units as a result of the quantitative impairment test as the fair values of
the reporting units were substantially greater than their resuch\ra carry values. Additionalty, fair values resulting
from y analyses factoring in more I rates and growth rates for each reporting unit also
yielded fair \ralwes in excess of the carrying values of each reporting unit.
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The income approach was the primary approach used to estimate the fair value of each reporting unit. The income
approach measures the value of each g unit's fulure ic benefit by its cash
flows derved fnom our projections plus an assumed terménal growih rate consistent with what we believe a markel
participant would assume in an acquisition, These projections are generally five-year projections that reflect the
anticipated cash flow fluctuations of the respective reporting units. If a camponent of a reporting unit is winding down
of is assumed to wind down, the projections extend through the anticipated wind-down period and no residual value
is ascribed

Under our guidance, the third-party appraisal fism developed the discount rate for each reparting unit incorporating
such factors as the risk-free rate, a market rate of return, a measure of volatility (Beta) and a company-s pecific and
capital markets risk premium, as appropriate, to adjust for volatility and uncertainty in the economy and to capture
specific risk related to the respeclive reporting units. We considered whether an assel sale or an equily sale would be
thie most likely sale suuctute for eiﬂi reporting unit and valued each reporting unit based on the more likely

hypothetical The it rates reflect marketl-based estimates of capital costs and are adjusted for our
assessment of 3 market paﬂlopams view with respect lo execuﬂm source concentration and other risks associated
with the proj cash flows of i reporting units. We and ap the di rates provi

the third-party appraiser including the factors incorporated to develop the discount rates for each reporting unit

We and the third-party appraisal firm also considered a market approach for the Government Services and
Healthcare Services reporting units. Market-based multiples related primarily to revenue and EBITDA, for comparable
publicly traded companies and similar transactions were evaluated as an indicator of the value of the reporting units
o assess the reasonableness of the estimated fair value derived from the income approach

We employed a h g relevant o factors lo test goodwill attributed to the Private
Education Recent In-School Loans reporting unit. As dlsmssad above, the goodwill attributed to the Private
Education In-School Loans reporting unit is a direct result of our August 2021 acquisition of Going Merry. We and our
exlemal appraiser finalized the purchase price allocauon for Going Mery in the third quarter of 2022 Since the
acquisition, Going Mermy has enable students to match to and apply for
scholarships, institutional aid and government gfanls Addilbonﬂn' in 2022, privale education in-school eriginations
grew 52 percent exceeding expectations. In-school originalions are expecled to remain strong in 2023 with our

growth outlook i We idered these gualilative faclors and luded that it is not “more-likely-than-not”™
that the fair value ud' the Private Education Recent in-School Loans reporting unit was less than its carrying value at
October 1, 2022 gly, goodwill to the Private ion Recent In-School Loans reporting unit was

not deemed impaired.

If future economic cenditions are significantly worse than what was assumed in the reporting units’ long term cash
fow projections, specifically related to the highly inflationary economic environment and the implications of sludent
Ioan forgiveness (as discussed in detail below) and other performance factors do nol come to fruition, these faclors
could result in potential impairment of goodwill in future periods.

Loan F and D
The Company had a net unamortized premium balance of $113 million, or 0.18%, in connection with its $563 billion
education loan portfolio as of December 31, 2022 The most for um and discount

amortization on education loans is the Constant Frepayment Rate (CPR), which measures the rate at which loans in
the portfolio pay down principal compared to their stated terms. In determining the CPR we only consider payments
made in excess of contractually required payments. This would include loans that are refinanced or consolidated and
other early paynl! activity. Tllese aclivities are generally al!acled by changes in our business slralegy, changes in our

g g the ability to interest rates and changes to
the curent ic and credit envi When we ine the CPR, we begin with historical prepayment
rates. We make judgments about which historical period to start with and then make further judgments about whether
that historical experience is representative of future expectations and whether additional adusiment may be needed
o those historical prepayment rates.

In the past (prior to 2008), the consolidation of FFELF Loans and Private Education Loans significantly affected our
CPRs and updating those assumptions often resulted in material adjustments to our premium and discount
amortization expense. As a result of the passage of the Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act of 2010
{HCERA}, there is no longer the ability to consolidate loans under the FFELP although there are other consolidation
options with ED and privale refinancing options with Navient and other lenders. As a resull, we expect CPRs related
1o our FFELP Loans to remain relatively stable over lime, unless there is a regulatory change by ED or legislalive
change by Congress to either (1) forgive loan balances (which would result in Navient receiving cash for the amounts
forgiven resulting in a prepayment of principal) or (2) encourage or force consolidation. Some education loan
companies, including Navient, offer Private Education Loans to refinance a borrower’s loan (both FFELP and Private
Education Loans) and we anticipate more entrants to offer similar products. These products and expectations are
built into the CPR assumption we use for FFELP and Private Education Loans. However, it is difficull to accurately
project the timing and level at which this activity will continue, and our assumption may need to be updated by a
material amount in the future based on changes in the economy, marketplace and legislation.
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In 2022, lhete was a net $21 mﬂnon decrease in net inferest income due to :urnulawe awuslments related to
speed used lo amortize loan p is pi ity related to
the ulwlnp two items:

+ The FFELP Loan CPR was increased specifically related to the limited opportunity waiver to the Public
Senvice Loan Forgiveness Program (PSLF) that was announced in October 2021 and was effective from
November 2021 to October 2022, FFELP loan borrowers. during this 12-month period, could consolidate
their loans 1o ED in order 1o have them subsequently forgiven if they qualify under the PSLF program for
loan forg . We estimate that approximately an tal $4.5 billion of FFELP loans consolidaled
under this program in 2022,

« The Privale Educalion Refinance Loan CPR was decreased from 20% lo 15%. This CPR assumplion
was a resull of with fixed Interest rales having less of an incentive to refinance
in lght of the significant increase in interest rales that occurred in 2022,

Iy of the Student Debt Relief (SOR) Plan on accountin les and estimates

On August 24, 2022, the Biden-Harris Administration announced its Studenl Debt Rellef (SDR) Plan. The SDR Plan
provides up to 520,000 in one-time debt relief to income-qualiied recipients with ED held student loans and initially
axtended the repayment pause on ED held loans through December 31, 2022, This repayment pause has been
further extended as detailed below. Privately held FFELP Loans themselves, like ours, do not qualify for debt
forgiveness.

Foflowing the initial announcement of the SDR Plan, ED provided more specific guidance on debt relief through its
studentaid gov website on September 29, 2022, Following publication of the SDR Plan, a number of stales and
private organizations initiated legal challenges to the SDR Plan in various courts throughout the country, which
ultimately resulted in the implementation of the SDR Plan being disallowed. The Biden-Harris Administration and ED
subsequenily appealed both cases to the Supreme Court of the United States which has agreed fo hear the cases on
February 28, 2023, and a ruling is expected prior to the end of the Supreme Courl’s cumrent term. If the SDR Flan has
not been implemented and the itigation is nol resolved by June 30, 2023, payments are scheduled to resume 60
days after that date. VWhile the current version of the SDR Plan pravides that borrowers with federal student loans not
held by ED cannot obtain one-time debt relief by consolidating those loans into Direct Loans, ED states that they are
assessing whether there are alternative pathways to provide relief to borrowers with federal student loans not held by
ED, including FFELP Loans

We that with ly $600 million of FFELP Loans (1% of the FFELP portfolio’s average
2022 balance) had consolidated their loans with ED prior to the deadiine to qualify for debt relief established by the
SDR Plan.

As aresull, there was not a material impact on the Company’s accounting and related 2022 results related to the
SDR Plan as currently

1 Privately held FFELP Loans themselves, like ours, do not qualify for debt forgiveness, and

2 ED required FFELP borrowers lo apply to consolidate their loans into the Direct Loan program prior 1o
Seplember 29, 2022, 1o qualify for their loan forgiveness.

As a resull, at this ime we do not expect there to be incremental consolidation aclivity in the future relaled lo potential
loan forgiveness under the SDR Plan
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If the Supreme Court should lift lhe v:urrenl injunction and ED lmpiemenls a broad-based student loan forgiveness
plan or any policies or prog ge of require b heir loans inte Direct Loans held
by ED, the impact to the Gompan',' wu.ld most likely be material due lo increased prepayments on our FFELP Loan
portfolio. Despie the significant uncertainty regarding the ultimate impact such SDR Plan changes may have to the
Company. under GAAP, the Company would be required to calculate and account for its best estimate of the
potential impac (that is, increasing prepayment assumplions in the period the SDR was changed) and record such
eslimate in its resulls. As it relates to estimating any polential impact to the Company, the Company does nol have
suffficient access 1o

1, The income levels of its borowers, which would the ion of b eligible for SDR
2. Whelher its borrowers have received a Pell Grant {which would determine the amount of polential debt
forgiveness)

In addition to making estimates regarding these items, the Company would also have to estimale, amongst other
items, the following:

1. The application rate of the eligible borrowers

2. How the mix of FFELP vs. ED federal loans of a borrower will impact their neediwillingness lo consolidate
{as balances on loans held by ED are forgiven first and may result in a borrower not needing to consolidate
their FFELP Loan)

3. The likelihood that an injunction, slay or other legal prohibition s issued with respect to the SDR Plan of the
SDR Plan is lerminated or amended due to a lawsuit

These factors would result in significant subjectivity and uncertainty in any estimate recorded related to the potential
impact, and, accordingly, actual results may differ significantly,

If the SDR Plan was changed in the fulure as discussed above, we i that the principal cor its of the
ﬂﬂahtlﬁ IIems wlme recognilion would be accelerated through net income as a lesll.ll ol matenaw Increased loan
[: ndfor debt forgi would be the rti of loan p and debt def financing fees

through net nlarest income, which would reduce net income. These mpacls would be pamally offset by the benefit to
net income from the release of the related allowance for loan losses through provision and revenue from the

but previously unrecognized fees that would be recognized in other income. GAAP requires we increase
the prepayment assumplwn used lo account for the lems below in the period the SDR was changed. This would
result in the acceleration of the recognition of those items in the period the prepayment assumption was increased.
The table below lists those items and their respective balances related to the FFELP Loans outstanding as of
December 31, 2022:

(Dollars in millions) As of 12/31122
Loan premium t 400
Debt deferred financing fees n
Allowance for loan borrower benefits (21)
Allowance lor loan losses {222)
but previously unrecognized fees {122)
Servicing asset — off-balance sheet trusts 1
Total net asset on balance sheat 5 347

In addmen the (:l:mlpaanmI had §232 mlllon of goodwill related to the FFELP business on ils balance sheet. The
could changes to the SOR Plan resulting in potential material debt

I'GMNEI!ESS or loan consolaoabon amw
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Non-GAAP Financial Measures

In addition to financial results reported on a GAAP basis, Navient also provides cerfain L] which
are non-GAAP financial measures. We present the fol non-GAAP - (1) Core Eamings (as
wedl as Adjusted Core Eamings), (2) Tangible Equity (as well the Adjusted Tangible Equity Ratio and Pro Forma
Adjusted Tangible Equity Ratio), (3) EBITDA for the Business Processing segment, and {4) for Loan

Losses Excluding Expected Fulure Recoveries on Previously Fully Charged-off Loans
1. Core Earmnings

We prepare financial statemenis and present inancial results in accordance with GAAP. However, we also evaluate
our business segments and present financial resulls on a basis that differs from GAAP. We refer to this different basis
of presentation as Core Eamings. We provide this Core basis of LY i basis and
for each business segment because this is what we review internally when making deck
our performance and how we allocale resources. We also refer to this information in our presentations with credit
l'ﬂll'ﬂ auendes |e|'IUBI‘S and investors. Because our Core Eamings basis of presentation comesponds to our segment

we are ired by GAAP to pm\rkla certain Core Eamings disclosures in the notes to our

lidated financial stat ts for our busi

Core arenota for resulls under GAAP. We use Core Earnings to manage our business
segments because Core Eamings reflect adjusiments to GAAP financial results for two ilems, discussed below, that
can create significant volatility mostly due to timing factors generally beyond the control of management. Accordingly,
we believe that Core Eamings provide management with a useful basis from which to better evaluate results from
ongoing operations against the business plan or against results from prior periods. {:onsaquan!y we :isclose this
information because we believe it with information i

performance indicators thal are most closely assessed by management. When :nmparaﬂ In G.MP ras:ﬂls ma two
items we remove to result in our Core Eamings presentations are:

(1) Mark-to-market gainsfosses resulting from our use of derivative instruments to hedge our economic
risks that do net qualify for hedge accounting treatment or do qualify for hedge accounting treatment
but result in ineffectiveness; and

(2) The accounting for goodwill and acquired inlangible assets

While GAAP p a uniform, ¢ h basis of ac . for the reasons described above, our Core
Eamings basis of presentation does nol. Core Eamings are subject to certain general and specific limitations that
investors should carefully consider. For example, there is no comprehensive, authoritative guidance for management
reporting. Qur Core Eamings are not defined terms within GAAP and may not be comparable to similarfy titled
by other « Accordingly, our Core Eamnings presentation does not represent a

basis of ac 1l I . may not be able to compare our performance with that of
other financial services companies based upun Core Eamlnqs Caore Eamnings results are only meant 1o supplement
GAAP results by providing additional information regarding the operational and performance indicators that are most
do:alsr used by management, our board of directors, credit rating agencies, lenders and investors to assess
performance
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The following tables show Core Eamings for each reportable segment and our business as a whole along with the
adjustments made to the items to ile the 1o our reported GAAP results as required

by GAAP and reported in "Mote 15 — Segment Reporting.”
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@ Income tares are based on 3 percentage of net incerne before tax for the individual reportable segment
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Income taxes are based on 3 percentage of net income before tax for the indiwidual reportabile segment.
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The following dlscusslon sumnaﬂzes the differences WMM Core Eatnlngs allﬂ GAAP net INCome and detaits each
specific adjustment required to ile our Core to our GAAP

‘Years Ended December 31,

(Dallars in millions) 22 2021 2020
Core Eimlnns net income ¥ 458 § 551 1
Core Eamings adjustments to GAAP:

Net impact of derivative accounting 266 25 (265)
Met impact of goodwill and acquired intangible assets (19) (30) (22)
Net Income tax effect _(60) 39) _68
Total Core Eamings adjustments to GAAP 187 166 219)
GAAP net income 3 Bl£ 5 i 41_2

(1) Derivative Accounting: Core Eamings exclude pefiodic gains and losses that are caused by the mark-to-market
valuations on derivatives that do not qualify for hedge aooourmnq treatment unuet GAAP, as well as the periodic
mark-to-market gains and losses that are a resuit of gnized related to effective hedges under
GAAP. Under GAAP, for our derivalives that are held to maturity, the mark-to-markel gain os loss over the life of the
contract will equal S0 except for Floor Income Contracts, where the mark-to-market gain will equal the amount for
which we originally sofd the contract. In our Core Eamings presentation, we recognize the economic effect of these
hedges, which generaily resuits in any net settiement cash paid or received being recognized ratably as an interest
expense or revenue over the hedged item's life.

The accounting for derivatives requires that changes in the fair value of derivative instruments be recognized
cumrently in earnings, with no fair value adjustment of the hedged item, unless specific hedge accounting criteria are
met. The gains and losses recorded in "Gains (losses) on derivative and hedging activites, net” and inleres! expense
{for qualifying fair value hedges) are primarily caused by interest rate and foreign currency exchange rate volatility
and changing credit spreads during the period as well as the volume and term of derivatives not receiving hedge
accounting treatmenl. We believe thal our derivalives are effective economic hedges, and as such, are a critical
element of our interest rale and foreign currency risk management strategy. However, some of our derivatives,
primarily Floor income Conltracts, basis swaps and at times, certain other LIBOR swaps do not qualify for hedge
accounting treatment and the stand-alone derivative is adjusted to fair value in the income statement with no
consideration for the corresponding change in fair value of the hedged item.

Our Floor Income Contracts are written oplions that must meel more stringent requirements than other hedging
relationships to achieve hedge eflectiveness, Specifically, our Floor Income Contracls do not quality for hedge
accounting treatment because the pay down of principal of the education loans underlying the Floor Income
embedded in those education loans does nol exactly match the change in the notional amount of our written Floor
Income Confracts. Additionally, the lerm, the inlerest rate index, and the interest rate index resel frequency of the
Floor Income Confract can be diffarent than that of the education loans. Under derivative accounting treatment, the
uptront contractual payment is deemed a liabiity and changes in lair value are recorded through income throughout
the life of the contract. The change in the fair value of Floor Income Contracts is primarily caused by changing
interest rates that cause the amount of Floor Income paid to the counterparties to vary. This is economically offset by
the change in the amount of Floor Income eamed on the underlying education loans but that offsetting change in fair
value is not recognized. We believe the Floor Income Contracts are economic hedges because they effectively fix the
amount of Floor Income eamed over the conlract period, thus eliminating the timing and uncertainty that changes in
interest rates can have on Floor Income for that period. Therefore, for purposes of Core Earnings, we have removed
the mark-to-market gains and losses related to these contracts and added back the amortization of the net
contractual premiums received on the Floor Income Contracts. The amortization of the net contractual premiums
feceived on me Floor Income Conlmds for Core Eamings is reflected in education loan interest income. Under GAAP
d on the Floor Income Contracts are recorded as revenue in the "gains (losses) on
derluawe and hedglng activities, net” line item by the end of the contracts’ lives,
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Basis swaps are used to convert fioating rale debt from one fioating interest rate index to another to better match the
interest rale ch istics of the assels d by Ihat debl. We primarily use basis swaps to hedge our education
loan assets that are primarily indexed to LIBOR or Prime, The accounting for derivatives requires that when using
basis swaps, the change in the cash flows of the hedge effectively offset both the change in the cash flows of the
asset and the change in the cash flows of the liability. Our basis swaps hedge variable interest rate risk; however,
they generally do not meet this effectiveness test because the lnde: of the swap does not exactly match the index of
the hedged assels as req) for hedge some of our FFELP Loans can eamn
interest at either a variable or a fixed interest rate depending on marke! interest rates and therefore swaps
economically hedging these FFELP Loans do not meet the criterla for hedge accounting treatment. As a resull, under
GAAP, these swaps are recorded at fair value with ohanoes in fair value refiected currently in the income statement.

The table below quantifies the adj. for ing GAAP and Core Eamnings net income.
Years Ended December 31,
2022 2021 2020

(Daillars in millions)
Core Earnings derivative adjustments:

Gains (losses) on derivalive and hedging activities,

nel, included in other income 3 17 5 64 5 (256)
Plus: Gains {losses) on fair value hedging

activity included in interest expense 83 88 “7)
Total gains !Inssas! Il'l GAAP net income 254 152 (273)
Plus: expense on

derivative and nedglng activities, net’" 15 93 40
Mark-lo-market gains (losses) on derivative and

hedging activities, net® 269 245 (233)
Amortization of nel premiums on Floor Income

Contracts in net interest income for Core Eamings (12) (39) (55)
Other derivative accounting adjustments™ 9 29 23
Total net impact of derivative accounting § 266 § 235 § iiﬁl
i Darivative W that do not qualify a5 hadges 1o be recorded in 3

SEparate ncome slatemant bre item below net interest income. Under cur Core Eamings presentation, these seltiements ae
m;mummummhmer»mmmm Far cur Care Eamings ne interes! income, this would
primarily include (3) reclassifying the net setement amournts mmmmfmmmmwmmhmmmnm
and (b reclassifying the net setlemen: amounts related 13 certain of our The table bei

these ne: mmxwm;whnmanan-CmEMvnm
____Years Ended December 31,
Dollars in millions _ #om 2000
a sel on
and hedging activities:

Net settiement expense on Floor Income
Conftracts reclassified to net interest

income 3 23) § (98) 5 (79)
et setflement income (expense) on interest rate
swaps reclassified to net interest income L] (L] 39

Net realized gains (losses) on terminated
derivative contracts reclassified to ather
Income - 13 —

of on
derivative and hedging activities il (15) § 193) § {40)

o “Marcio-mankel gamns (losses) on dervatve and hedgng activites, net’ s compriaed of the following:

___Years Ended December 31,

(Dollars in millions) 2020
Fair valie hedges 3 ] W3 26)
Foreign cumrency hedges
Floor Income Confracts 65 133 (130)
Basis swaps 1 8
Other - LIBOR swaps 120 16 (89)
Total mark-to-market gains (losses) on dervative

and hedging acivities, net S 2698 2455 @233

" Cihar derivative t refated to certain o that did hedge

aceguniing Ireatment under GAAP bul were economic hedges under Care Eamings and, as a resull, such gains or losses are
amorized into Core Eamings over the ide of the hedged item
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Cumuiative impact of Derivative Accounting under GAAF compared fo Core Eamings

As of December 31, 2022, derivative accounling has increased GAAP equity by approximately 5122 million as a
result of cumulative net mark-to-market gains (after tax) recognized under GAAP, but not in Core Eamings. The
following table rolis forward Ihe cumulative impact to GAAP equity due to these after-lax mark-to-market nel gains
and losses retaled lo derivalive accounting,

Years Ended December 31,

Dollars in millions 2022 2021 2020
ﬁm impact Sgiomnm accounting on GAAR

equity s (299) 5 (616) 5 (235)
MNet impact of net mark-ta-markel gains (lasses) under

derivative accounting'™ an nT {381)
Ending impact of derivative accounting on GAAP
equity 5 12 3 299) 8 {616)

INet impact of net matk-ls-market gains (losses) under derivative accounting is composed of the falowing

Years Ended December 31,
{Dellars in millions) 2022 201 2020

Tolal pre-tax nel impact of dervalive accounting

recognized in nel income™® 3 266 § 235 3 (265)
Tax and other impacis of derivalive accounting

adjustments (85) (59) 67
Change in mark-to-markel gains (losses) on

derivatives, net of tax recognized in other

comprehensive income 220 141 {183)
et impact of net mark-to-market gains (losses) under
derivative accounting 3 421 5 N7 5 {381)

- Sea “Core Eamings derivative adjustmonts” table above.
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Hedging Embedded Fioer Income

We use Floor Income Contracts, pay-fixed swaps and fixed rale debl to economically hedge embedded Floor Income

in our FFELP Loans. Historically, we have used these instruments on a periodic basis and depending upen market

conditions and pricing, we may enler info additienal hedges in the future. Under GAAP, the Floor Income Confracts

do not qualify for hedge accounting and the pay-fixed swaps are accounted for as cash flow hedges. The table below

;n:\::ge m"""“ of hedged Floor Income that will be recognized in Core Eamings in future periods based on these
2 rategies,

December 31
Dollars in millions;
otal hedged Income, net of tax!= 3 700 § 35§ 4am

" 5254 milicn, 5422 million and 3520 millicn on & pro-tax basis a8 of December 31 2022, 2021 and 2020, respoctvely
d the 5200 million a5 of December 31, 2022, approximately $102 million, $40 millcn. 522 milion and 519 milicn will be
1mmuﬂneﬂwf.mmm2wi 2024, 2025 and 2024, respestively

(2) Goodwill and Acquired Intangible Assets: Our Core Eamings exclude goodwill and intangible asset impairment
and the amortization of acquired intangible assets. The faliowing table summarizes the goodvall and acquired
intangible asset adjustments.

Years Ended Decemnber 31,

(Dollars in millions) 022 2021 2020
Core geodwill and acquired g
assel adjustments 5 (19) § (30) 5 (22)
Adjusted Core Earmnings
Adjusted c:om Eatnlnns net income and A Core E exclude and
these exp as .M]uslnd Core Eamings s one of the

Measures we raview malry ‘when making management decisions regarding our performance and how we allocate
resources, as this presentation is a useful basis for management and investors to further analyze Core Eamings. We
also refer to this information in our presentations with credit rating agencies, lenders and investors.

The follewing table summanzes these expenses which are excluded:

Years Ended December 31
Dollars in millions; 2072 20 7020
Siruciul & N expenses § 3% § % § ]
Regulatory-related expenses'’ 7 233 33
Total 3 43 § 259 3 42

a Tnmmbwal 2021 inchudes S205 millon related 10 the resolution of previously checlosed tigation. Ses “Restlts
of Ope of 2 with 20217 for furthor details.
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2. Adjusted Tangible Equity Ratio

Adjusted Tangible Equity Ratio measures the ratio of Navient's Tangible Equity to its tangible assets. We adjust this
rafio lo exclude the assets and equily associated with our FFELF Loan portfolio because FFELF Loans are no longer
originated and the FFELP Loan porifolic bears a 3% maximum loss exposure under the terms of the federal guaranty.
Management believes that excluding this portfolio from the ratio enhances its usefulness to investors. Management
uses this ratio, in addition to other metrics, for analysis and decision making refaled 1o capital allocation decisions.
The Adjusted Tangible Equity Ratio is calculated as:

December 31 December 31,
[Dollars in billions) 2022 2021
HNavient Corporation's stockholders® equity : 3
Less: Goodwill and acquired intangible assets 705 725
Tangible Equity 2272 1872
Less: Equity held for FFELP Loans 218 263
Adjusted Tangible Equity § 2054 § 1609
Divided by
Total assets H 70795 § 80605
Less:
Goodvall and acquired intangible assets 705 725
FFELF Loans 43,525 52,641
Acjusted tangltls assets $ 26565 5 27239
Adjusted Tangible Equity Ratio'' 7.7% 5.9%
1 The fellowng provides the Adpsied Ta Ratie o 2 pro & aspuming the it miark-4e-mark
related wm I'I:; Iosses reverse 15 50 upan the maturity of the individual

o tiv . As these losses . we bebeve this pro forma presentabion n 3 uielul basis for management and
inwestons ta further anadyze the Adusted Tangibie Equity Rate.

December 3, December 31,
2022 201

(Dollars in milkons) 2 L
Adjusted Tangible Equity (from above table) 5 2054 § 1,608
Plus: ending impact of derivative accounting on GAAP equity N [j%] _

Pro forma Adpusted Tangible Equity 3 18 $ 2‘90?
Divided by. adjusted tangible assets (from above table) £ 26565 5 27239
Pro forma Adpsted Tangible Equity Ritio 7.3% 7.0%

3. Eamings before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation and Amortization Expense (EBITDA)

This the i of the Busi and is used by management and
equily investors lo morubul upmhnﬁ performance and dmm‘llne the vahle of those businesses. EBITDA for the
Business Processing segment is calculated as:

Years Ended Decembaer 11,

(Doflars in millions) 2022 2021 7020
pmmm income ] L EF: T )
Depeeciation and amortization expense’’’ 3 8 7
EBITDA 3 53 0§ 13 3 57
Divided by-

Total revenue 5 30 3 488 3 304
EBITDA margin _T6% 2% 9%

U There ks no inlkerest sxparse in tis segment

46




4, fllowme for Loan Losses Excluding Expected Future Recoveries on Previously Fully Charged-off
oans

The allowance for loan losses on the Pmm Education Loan pertfielio used for the three credit metrics below

the exp: furture y lully charged-off loans fo better reflect the curent expected
credit losses remaining in connection wlh me Ioans 011 balance sheet that have not charged off. That is, as of
December 31, 2022, the $1,074 million Private Education Loan allowance for loan losses excluding expected future
recoveries on previously fully charged-off loans represents the current expected credd losses thal remain in
conneclion with the $19 525 million Private Education Loan porticlio. The 5274 million of expected fulure recovenes
on previcusly fully charged-off loans, which is collected over an average 15-year peniod, mechanically is a reduction
to the overall allowance for loan losses. However, itis not related to the $19,525 million Privale Education Loan
portiolio on our balance sheet and. as a resull, management excludes this impact to the allowance to better evaluate
and assess our overall credit loss coverage on the Private Education Loan portfolio. We believe this provides a more
meaningful and holistic view of the available credil loss coverage on our non-charged-off Privale Education Loan
porticlio, We believe this information is usetul fo our investors, lenders and rating agencies.

Altowance for Loan Losses Meirics - Privare Education Loans

For the Year Ended December 31,
2022 2021 2020
(Doltars in millions)
Alowance at end of period IGMP‘] 5 800 5 1008 3 1,088
Pm Tuture fully charged-off
274 329 479
m at end of period exchiding expected fulure recoveries
on previously fully charged-off loans (Non-GAAP Financial
Measure) 5 m ] 1338 3 Ilssl
Ending total loans 5 19525 § 21180 3 22,168
[Ending loans in repayment 5 18770 § 20284 % 20,841
Net charge-offs 5 343 3 1% 35 207
Allowance coverage of charge-offs
23 1] 5.3
" 8 19 23
HNon-GAAP Financial Measure 3.1 7.8 76
Allowance as a percentage of the ending total loan balance:
GAMP 4 I% 48% 49%
Adjustment” 1.5 22
Non-GAAP Financial Measure' 5555 6.3% 7.1%
Aliowance as a percentage of the ending loans in repayment:
GAAP 42% 50% 52%
Adjustment’”! 1.5 1.6 23
Non-GAAP Financial Measure' 57% 6.6% 7.5%

# The aBowance used for these oredit medics exchades the expucted hitte recoweries on pravicusly fully charged-aff lans, Seo discussion abave.
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Risk Management

Our Approach
Navient's and eff i of the risks inherent in our business are critical to
our continued success " We assign risk oversight, it at various levels

within our organization and continuously te these activiti Ws intain com ive risk nent
practices to identify, measure, monitor, evaluate, control and report on our significant risks and we routinely evaluate
these practices to determine whelher they are funclioning property and can be improved

Risk Management Philosophy
Navient's risk mamgemcﬂl phlosophy Is to ensure all slgnmcanl risks inherent in our business are identified,
measured, monitored, and . In furtherance of these goals, Navient

« maintains a comprehsnsiwa and uniform risk managamanl framework;

» follows a “three lines of defense” structure based upon: (1} accountability and ownership at the business area
level for risks inherent in their activities (first line of defense); (2) supoom areas, such as Human
Resources, Legal, Compliance, Finance and Accounting, T logy and in Security,
maonitor, guide and advise the business areas in their respective areas of expertise (second line of defense);
and (3) Internal Audit independently reviews business and support areas to ensure compliance with
applicable laws, regulations and internal policies and procedures (third line of defense);

. p appropriate rep glo and our board of and thelr i
and
» trains our on our risk r a processes and philosophy
Risk ( ght, Roles and Responsibilities
Responsibility for risk management is assigned at several different levels of our organization, including our board of
directors and its committees. Each business area within our s primarity r fnr ging its
specific risks. In addition, our second line of defense support areas are for pi areas

with the training, systems and specialized expertise necessary to properly perform lhak risk managamnnl
responsibilities.

Board of Directors. The Navient board of directors and its standi oversee our strategic di

including setting our risk ent and ; and ing the risks our b

face as veell as our risk man. our annual busi plan, periodi reviews our
strategic approach and priofities and spends sn;nlﬁtanl fime ¢ g our capital and our

and share repurchase levels and activities. We escaiate to our board of directors any significant departures from
established tolerances and parameters and review new and emerging risks with them. Standing committees of our

board of include , Audit, Comp and Human and 2,
and Risk. Charters for each g their specific resr and areas of risk oversight are
published en our website together with ms names of the directors serving on these committees,

Chief Executive Gfficer. Our Chiel Officer is for i our risk 1 it culture and

ensuring business areas operate within risk parameters and in accordance with our annual business plan.

Chief Risk and Cowﬁance Officer. Our Chief Risk and Compliance Officer is responsible for ensuﬂnu proper
g 1o our board of and g our risk

placbnas

Ei Risk and Compiiance C Our Ei Risk and Compliance Committee is an executive
managementlevel committee where senior management reviews our significant risks, receives reports on adherence
1o established risk parameters, provides direcion on mitigation of our risks and dosure of issues and supervises our

risk gram. This ¢ also ! @ risk
aclivities including regulatory compliance fraining, I'Eﬁl.llaloﬂ’ comnhance :nanqe management, :omnlnan:e sk
assessmenl, transactional testing and monitoring, , policies and prc @s, privacy

and information sharing practices, compliance with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and our Code of Eusmess
Conduct. This commitiee also evaluates risks associated with new or medified business and makes
rec garding prop: d business initi based on their inherent risks and conlrals.

Credit and Loan Loss Committee. Our Credit and Loan Loss Committee is an execulive management-level
committee that oversees our credit and portfolio management monitoring and siralegies, the sufficiency of our loan
loss resefves, and current of emerging issues affecting delinquency and default frends which may result in
adjustments in our allowances for loan losses
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Disclosure Commitiee. Our Disclosure Committee reviews our periodic SEC reporting documents, earmings releases
and related disclosure polickes and procedures, and evaluates whether modified or additional are
required.

Assel and Liabiity Committee. Our Asset and Liabdity Commitlee oversees our investment portfolio and strategy and
our compliance with our investment policy.

Other Managemeni-Level Commilfees. We have other management-leved commitiees that oversee various other
Nawvien! business activities including critical accounling assumplions, human resources management, and incentive
compensahon governance.

Internal Audit Risk Assessment

Navient's Internal Audit function menitors Navient's various risk and comp afforts, i areas
that may require increased focus and resources, and reports its findings and recommendations to executive
management and the Audit Committee of our board of directors. Internal Audit performs an annual risk assessment
evaluating the risk of all significant components of our company and uses the resulls 1o develop an annual risk-based
internal audit plan as well as a multi-year rotational audit schedule,

Risk Appetite Framework

Navient's Risk Appetite Framework establishes the level of risk we are willing to accept within each risk category in
pursult ef our business stralegy. The Risk Commitiee of our Imam ol meclnrs Teviews our Risk Appetite Framework
annually, helping lo ensure ¢ Y in our busi g and . Our g level

Risk and C e C monitors app risk fimits and thresholds to ensure our businesses
are operating within approved risk limits. Through enooha momodnq o1 risk exposures, management identifies
potential risks and develops appropriate resp

Risk Categories

Our Risk Appetite Framework segments Navient's risks across nine domains: (1) credit: (2) market; (3) funding and
liquidity; (4) operational, (5) compliance, (6) legal, (7) governance, (8) reputational/political; and (3) strategic,

Credit Risk. Credit risk is the risk to eamings or capital resulting from an obligor’s failure to meet the terms of any
contract with us or otherwise fail to perform as agreed. Navient has credil or counterparty risk exposure with
borrowers and cosigners ol our Private Educalion Loans and Privale Education Refinance Loans, counlerparties wilh
whom we have entered derivalive or other similar conlracls and enlities vath whom we make investments. Credil and
counterparty risks are overseen by our Chief Risk and Compliance Officer and our management-level Credit and
Loan Loss Committee. The credit risk related to our Private Education Loans and Privale Education Refinance Loans
is managed within a credit risk infrastructure which includes: (i} a well-defined underwriting, asset quality and
collection policy framework; (i) an ongoing monitoring and review process of porifolio concentration and trends; (iil)
assignment and managemenl of credit and loss forecasting aml and (iv) of
an allowance for loan losses, Credit risk related fo der d by revi ci for
credit sirength on an ongoing basis and through our credit puln::os whlm placa limits on our exposure with any single
counterparty and, in most cases. require collateral to secure the position. Our Chiel Risk and Compliance Officer
reports regularly to both the Risk and Audit Commiltees of the board on credit risk management

Marke! Risk Markel risk is the risk o earnings or capital resulting from changes in markel conditions, such as inlerest
rates, index mismalches, credil spreads, commodity prices or volatities. Navient is exposed lo various types of
market risk, including mismatches between the maturity/duration of assets and liabilities, interest rate risk and other
risks that arise through the management of our investment, debl and education loan portiolios, Market risk exposure
is overseen by our Chiel Financial Officer and our management-level Asset and Liability Committee, which are
responsible for managing marked risks associated with our assets and Habiities and recommending limils to be
included in our risk appetite and invesiment structure. These activibes are closely tied 1o those related to the
management of our funding and liquidity risks. The Risk Committee of our board of directors periodically reviews and
approves the invesiment, asset and liability management policies, establishes and monilors various tolerances or
other risk. , as well as conti y funding plans developed and administered by our Asset and
Liability Committes, The Risk Committee and our Chief Financial Officer report to the full board of directors on
matters of market risk management.

Funding and Liquidty Risk Funding and liquidity risk is the risk to eamings. capital o the conduct of our busingss
arising from the inability to meet our obligations when they become due without incurring unacceptable losses, such
as the ability lo fund Eability maturities or invest in fulure asset growth and business cperations al reasonable market
rates. Our primary liquidity risks are any mismalch between the maturity of our assets and liabdlities and the servicing
of our indebledness, Navient's Chief Financial Officer oversees our funding and liquidity management activities and is
responsible for planning and executing our funding activites and j and moni our liquidity
risk, maintaining excess liquidity and accessing diverse funding sources depending on current markel conditions.
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Funding and liquidity risks are and primarily threugh our management-level
Assel and Liability Committee. The Risk Commitlee of our bnald 01 direclors periodically reviews and approves our
funding and liquidity positions and the y funding plan ped and administered by our Asset and
Liability Committee. The Risk Committee also receives regular reports on our performance agains! funding and
liquidity plans at each of its meetings.

Owperational Risk. Operational risk is the risk lo eamings or the conduct of our busi from or
faited intermal processes, people or systems or from exlemal events. Operational risk is pervasive, existing ln all
business areas, functional units, legal entities and geographic locations, and it includes information lechnology risk,
cybersecurity risk, physical security risk on tangible assets, third-party vendor risk, legal risk, compliance risk and

reputational risk. Operational risk exp are d by area management and our second and third
lines of defense, with by our fevel cc . The board of directors or the Risk Committee
of our board receives operations reports at each regularly scheduled meeting, The board of directors of the Risk
Committee of our board also i updates ding our various busi

receives periodic information security and cybersecurity updates and reviews operational and systems -lalahen
matters to ensure their implementation produces no significant internal control issues.

G e, Legal and ce Risk. C e, legal and governance fisks are subsets of operational risk but
are as a separate and , nsk il given their import; in our business. Compliance
fisk s the risk to gs. capital or arising from violations of, or non-conformance with, laws, rules,

regulations, prescribed practices, internal policies and procedures, or ethical standards. Legal risk is the risk to
eamings, capilal or rswlaﬁon manifested by claims made through the legal system and may arise from a product or
service, al property (real, personal or intellactual), conduct of an nmploym or
dmnua inlaw or !ewlallon Governance sk is the risk of not and a control env that
aligns with stakeholder and regulatory expectations, including tone at the top and board performance. These risks are
innerent in all of our businesses. The Audit Committee of our board of directors oversees our monitoring and control
of legal and compliance risks. The Audit Committee annually reviews our Compl!ance Plan and significant breaches
of our Coda d’ Busmnss Cunm and receives regular reports from L for the

risk The board of directors and llle Audit Committee receive
reports on stunmcanl llllaahon and requlaluw matters at each regularly scheduled meeting.

Reputational/Political Risk Reputational risk is the risk to eamings or capital arising from damage to our reputation in
the view of, or loss of the trust of, customers and the general public. Political risk is the closely related risk to eamings
or capital arising from damage to our with g entities, reg and political leaders and
candidates. These risks can arise due to both our own acis and omissions (both real and perceived), and the acts
and omissions of olher industry participants or other third palll.es md they are lrlmrnnt in all of our businesses.
Reputational risk and political risk are 1 through a of and our

second and third lines of defense. The Nominations and Governance Committee D‘f Otl' boaru of directors oversees
our reputational and political nisk and reguiarly receives repors on these malters.

Stralegic Risk. Stralegic risk is the risk lo earnings or capital arising from our potential inability lo successhaly carry
out our stralegy. This risk can arse due 1o both our own acls or Ol'nISSiDllS and the 3:19 or omissions of other
industry participants or other third parties, and it is inherent in all of our busi gic risk is d through
a combination of business area management and our second and third knes of defense.
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Supervision and Regulation
Regulatary Oversight

We 099!3!6 na mﬁmﬁ' renumeu industry 'M!ere many aspects of our businesses are subject to federal and stale

1and ight. The ing s a summary of the maltenal statutes and reguiations currently
applicable to us and our subsidiaries, We may become subject to additicnal laws, rules or regulations in the future.
This Isnolac analysis of all app laws and is by reference lo the full text of the
statutes and regulations relerenced below

The Dodd-Frank Act was adopled to reform and strength lation and sup of the U.S. financial services
industry_ It contains comprehensive provisions that gwam the practices and ight of financial institutions and
other participants in the financial markets. It additional regulalions, rec and ight on almast
every aspect orme U S financial saﬂdtes Indusu'y, including |nu'maseﬂ capital and liquickty requirements, limils on
and ¥ . Some of these provisions apply to Navient and its various businesses

and sewrmzaﬁon vehicles.

The Consumer Financial Protection Act established the Consumer Financial Protection Bureau (CFPB), which has

1o write under federal laws and lo directiy or indirectly enforce
these laws and titutions for The CFPB is d to impose fings and provide
consumer restitution in the event of violalions, engage in ¢ ial education, track consumer complaints,
request data and promote the availability of financial services to underserved consumers and communities. |t also
has authority to prevent unl‘alr deceptive or abusive practices, Since its creation, the CFPE has been active in its
of financial services companies. In January 2017, the CFPB filed a lawsuit
auainst Na\rlenl alleging swaﬂil unfair, deceptive or abusive practices, and other violations of consumer prolection
statutes. Additional information on the CFPB lawsuit is included in “Nate 12 - Commitments, Contingencies and
Guarantess” in this Form 10-K

The Dodd-Frank Act also authorizes state officials to enforce regulations issued by the CFPB and to enforce the
Dodd-Frank Act's general prohibition against unfair, daoenlm and abusive praclices. The Altorneys General of the

State of llinois, the State of the Ci ylvania, the State of California, the State of
Mississippi and the State of New .lmny have also filed rawsum agarls't Navienl and some of ils subsidiaries
confaining similar alleged violati laws as those alleged in the CFFB lawsuil as well as

several addiional areas. These uses were settied by mutual agreement between the Company and various State
Attorneys General. Additional information on these lawsuits is included in "Note 12 - Commitments, Contingencies
and Guarantees™ in this Form 10-K.

Higher Education Act. The HEA is the primary law that authorizes and regulates federal student ald programs for

higher education. Navient is subject to the HEA and its education loan operations are periodically reviewed by ED
and Guaranws o entities acling on their behalf. As a servicer of federal education loans, Navient is subject to ED

and ity that govern all third-party servicers of
insured educannn ioans In connection with its sm'unnq nporallons on behall of Guamntm clients, Navient must
comply with ED ions that govern as well as age Tor ent ED

and our Guarantor clients. While the HEA is required 1o be reviewed and ‘reauthorized” by Congress every five

years, Congress has not reauthorized the HEA since 2008, choosing to temporarily extend the Act each year since
2013, During the COVID-19 pandemic, the Biden-Harris Administration and ED have relied upon The CARES Act and
The HEROs Act o provide the legeslative authority necessary to defay or canced direct student loan payments. We
cannol predict whether or when legislation will be passed or how it would impact us,

Federal Financial institutions Examination Council. As a service provider to financial institutions, Navient is also
subject to periodic examination by the Federal Financial Institutions Examination Council (FFIEC). FFIEC is a formal
interagency body of the U.S. government empowered to prescribe uniform principles, standards, and report forms for
the federal ion of financial institutions by the Federal Reserve Banks (FRB), the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (FDIC), the National Credit Union Administration, the Office of the CDmphnIer of the Currency and the
CFFB and lo make recommendalions to promaole uni y in he supervi: of institutions.
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Consumer Protection and Privacy. Navient's Consumer Lending and Federal Education Loan segments are subject
lo federal and stale consumer profection, privacy and related laws and regulations and are subject to supervision and
examination by the CFPB and various state agencies. Some of the more significant federal laws and regulations
include:

various laws governing unfair, deceptive or abusive acts or practices;
the Truth-In-Lending Act and Regulation Z, which govern disclosures of credit terms to consumer bormowers;

the Fair Credit Reporting Act and Regulation V, which govem the use and provision of information to
consUmer reporting agencies;

the Equal Credit Opportunity Act and Regulation B, which prohibit discrimination on the basis of race, creed
or other prohibited factors in extending credit;

» the Servicemembers Civil Reliel Act {SCRA), which applies to all debts incurred prior to commencement of
active military service (including education loans) and limits the amount of interest, including certain fees or
charges that are refated to the obligation or liability; and

the Telephone Consumer Protection Act (TCPA), which governs communication methods that may be used
to contact customers.

Navient's Business Processing segment is subject to federal and state consumer protection, privacy and related laws
and regulations. as well as cerlain activities. supervision and examination by the CFPB and various stale agencies.
Some of the more significant federal statutes are the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act and additional provisions of
the acts listed above, as well as the HEA and the various laws and regulations that pertain to govemment
confractors. These activities are also subject to stale laws and regulalions similar o the federal laws and regulations
listed above

Regulatory Outlook

In 2023, we expect the Hats i for the busi in which we operate will continue to be challenging.
We anticipate that reguiators will be more focused on conducting regulatory audits and initiating enforcement actions.

We anficipate a number of prominent themes will emerge:

« The number and configuration of regulators, particularly the CFPB, State Attormeys General and various
slate legislators, is likely to change which may add fo the complexity, cost and unpredictability of iming for
resolution of particular regulatory issues.

The regulatory, compliance and risk conlrol structures of financial institutions subject to enforcement actions
by state and federal regulators are frequently cited, regardiess of whether past practices have been
changed, and enforcement orders have often inchuded detailed demands for increased compliance, audit
and board supenision, as well as the use of third-party consullants or monitors 1o recommend further
changes or monitor remediation efforls

Issues first identified with respect to one consumer preduct class or distribution channel are somelimes
applied to other product classes or channels.

We expect that consumer protection regutations, standards, supervi
continue to evolve in both detail and scope as well as being more mpmdlclahla than Jn DlE\l'lmlS paﬂoﬁs This
evolution has added and may continue to significantly add to Mavient's g cosis.
We have invested in compliance through multiple steps including mallqnmem of Navlonls uompllance mnaqsmem
system to a lending, servicing, collections and business services busil nded

for cerain topics to focus on consumer expectations; formation of upport i In risk,
control and compliance functions in each business area; additional laqusabury Iralnlnq for front-line employees o
ensure obligations are understood and followed during interactions with ¢ . as well as q ¥
training for cur board of directors to enhance their abllity to oversee the C 's risk rk and

as it and ihe regl.lslnry environment dlanqes and expanded oversight and analysis of complaint trends to identify
and areas of harm. Despite these increased activities, our cumrent
operations and complnanca processes may not satisty evolving regulatory standards. Past practices or products may
continue to be the focus of examinations, inquiries of lawsuils

As ibed in g 50 and mws of Financial Candmun and Results of Operations —Risk
Management,” Navien! has implemented a rdinated, formal syslem aimed al
reducing business and regulatory risks,
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Listed below are some of the mos! significant recent and pending regulatory changes thal have the polential to affect
Nawvient

Education Loan Servicing and Consumer Lending. The CFPB has been active in the education loan industry and
undertook a number of initialives in recent years relative to the private education loan markel and education loan
servicing. In addition, several states have enacted various state servicing and licensing requirements. We anficipate
that these state activities will continue. It is possible that more states will propose or pass similar or different
requirements on either holders of education loans of their servicers. Depending on the nature of these laws o rules,
they may impose additional or different requirements than Navient faces at the federal level,

Debt Collection Supervision. The CFPB also maintains supervisory authority over larger consumer debt collectors
and in late 2021 changes to Reg F g g the collection of third-party consumer debt. The
Is5uance of the CFPB's rules does not preempt the various and vanod levels of state consumer and collection
reguiations to which the activities of Navient's subsidiaries are currently subject. Navient also utilizes third-party debt
coflectors lo collect defaulted and charged-off education loans and will conltinue to be responsible for oversight of
their procedures and controls,

Oversight of Dervatives. The Dodd-Frank Act created a comprehensive new regulatory framework for derivatives
fransactions under the Commodity Futures Trading Commission (CFTC), other prudential regulatars and the SEC.
This framework among other things, subiects certain swap parlicipants w new capital and margin requirements,

e and conduct and i lation of swap dealers and major
swap participants. The scope of the rules and exemptions continues to be defrled through agency rulemakings. Even
where Navient or a securitization trust sponsored by Navient qualifies for an exemption, many of its derivatives
counterparties are subject 1o capital, margin and conduct i and fore Navient's busi

may be impacted Where Navient or the securitization trusts it sponsors do nol qualify for an exemption, Navient or
an existing or future securitization trust sponsored by Navient may be unable to enler into new swaps to hedge
interest rate or currency risk or the costs associaled with such swaps may increase. With respect to existing
securitization trusts, an inability to amend, novalte or otherwsse materially modify existing swap contracts could result
in a downgrade of its outstanding assel-backed securities. As a result, Navient's business, ability to access the
capilal markets for financing and cosls may be impacted by these regulations

Legal Proceedings

For a discussion of legal malters as of December 31, 2022, please refer to “"Note 12 — Commitments, Conlingencies
and Guarantees” to our consolidated financial statements included in this report, which is incorporated into this item
by reference.
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RISK FACTORS

We employ an P risk and which seeks o identify the material risks
impatﬁnq our business and provides a process for evaluating and quantifying such risks, Our Enterprise Risk and
e Ci monitors rigk limits and thresholds to ensure our businesses are operaling within

approved rick parameters. Our Risk Appetite Framework segments our risk across nine risk domains: (1) credit; (2)
market; (3) funding and liquidity; (4) operational; {5) compliance; (6) legal, (7) governance; (8) reputationabipolitical,
and (9) strategic. The risk factors enumerated in this section are presented in a manner that is consistent with this
overall risk framework.

Based on current conditions, we believe that the following kst identifies the material risk factors that could affect our
financial condition, results of operations or cash flows. These risks and risk domains are not the only risks facing our
Company. Additional risks not currently known 1o us of that we currently deem to be immaterial also may adversely

aflect our b . financial or results of i in future periods. Material risks thal could apply
generally lo any company are listed below under the cammn “General Risk Factors.” In addition, our reaction 1o future
developments as well as our 1o these may affect our future
resuits,

COVID-19 RISK.

The connnulng impact of COVID-19 and remm risks may mmrfauy affect our results of operations, financial
and such i for length of time.

While many aspects of the economy have returned to pre-pandemic levels, the COVID-19 pandemic continues to
impact the macroeconomic environment and our results of operations. Many of the health and safety restrictions
previously put into place by stale, local, and foreign govemmenis have now been kfted, but there is no guarantee that
the emergence of fulure variants or widespread disease will not result in such orders or restrictions being reimposed
As aresult, our results of operations, financial condition and liquidity could be materially affected, as described in
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Resulls of Operations — Navienl's Response lo
COVID-18.” With respect to our operations, we have drastically modified the manner in which we conduct our
business by expanding our work-from-home capabilities and moving the overwhelming majority of our team o a
work-from-home or hybrid status. Despite these efforts, the COVID-19 pandemic and its impact remain dynamic
Vanants conlinue lo emerge, efforts lo mitigate or contain the impacts of the pandemic continue to evolve, and the
duration and severity of the impact of the pandemic on our business and results of operations in future periods
remain uncertain. If the COVID-19 pandemic or its adverse effects become more severe or prevalent or are
prolonged or we experience more pronounced in our bus or operalions, or in ic activity and
demand for our services generally, our business and results of operations in future periods could be materially
adversely affected. We continue to monitor the situation and actively assess further implications for our business

CREDIT RISK.

Ei olii and the of third parties could have a material adverse effect on our
business, results of op dition and stock price.

Our success is largely upon the ¢ of our ¢ . especially with respect to our

education loans. Qur research consistently indicates that borrower unemployment rates and the failure of in-school
borrowers to graduate or otherwise complete their education are two of the most significant economic factors that
affect loan performance. Any material changes in graduation or completion rates could increase or decrease
delinquencies and defaults. Additionally, modifications to the original repayment terms in the form of loan
forbearance, deferment, grace periods and the use of madification p { income-based

can indivi and i mpact the pnr[m‘munce of our loan portiolios. Modifications to
private loans may lower the polential return on investment and may have the related eflect of delaying defaults which
would othenvise have become apparent in the performance of our portfolios.
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Defaulis on education loans held by us, particularly Private Education Loans, could adversely affect our
earmings.

FFELP Loans are insured or guaranteed by state or nol-for-profit agencies and are also protected by contractual
rights to recovery from the Uniled States to g among ED and these agencies. These
guarantees generally cover at least 97% of a FFELP I.oan s principal and accrued interest upon default and, in limited
circumstances, 100% of the loan's principal and accrued interest. We are exposed to credit risk on the non-
guaranieed portion of the FFELP Loans in our portfolio. In addition, under certain circumstances, it we fail 1o service
FFELP Loans in compliance with HEA we may jeopardize the insurance, guarantees and lederal suppor we receive
on these loans. A small percentage of our FFELF Loan portfolic has become permanently uninsured as a result of
these regulations and we anficipate this will continue to a limited extent in the future. Under such circumstances, we
bear the full credit exposure on such previously insured loans.

We bear the lull creml expnsure on the leans in our Private Education Loan portfolio, We believe that delinquencies

are an the ial future credit for Private Loans, Our delinguencies
asa poroemage of Prwate Education Loans in repayment were 5.0% at December 31, 2022. For a complete
discussion of our loan del: sea "k s Di ion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Resulls

of Operations— Financial Condition — Private Education Lnan Portfolio Performance.”

Fulure defaults could be higher than anlicipated due to a variety of factors, such as downturns in the economy, public
health crises such as the COVID-19 pandemic, regulatory changes and other unforeseen fulure trends. During the
second half of 2022, global markets experienced significant declines driven by the economic impact of inflation and
interest rate increases by the Federai Reserve, As these ractm have camad over into 2023, concems about the risk
of recession have increased. A to Comp , young adults who stopped
attending college belore earning a degree or cerlificale are among 1hose moest lkely to have trouble making
payments. Losses on Private Education Loans are also impacted by various risk characleristics thal may be specific
to individual loans. Loan status (in-school, grace, forbearance, repayment and delinquency), loan seasoning (number
of months in which a payment has been made by a customer), undenwriting criteria (e.g., credit scores), existence of
a cosigner, school type and whether a loan is a TOR are all factors that can impact the likelihood of default.

Additionally, general economic and employ [ . Including I rates for recent college graduales,
can have a stqnmcant Iimpact on |03l| delinquency and dalaul rates It actual loan performance is worse than
it terially affect our of th for loan lesses and the related provision

could
for loan Iussas and as a result adversely affect our resulls of opalahnns

The Company has adopted an accounting standard update that resulted in a significant change in how we
recognize credit losses.

In June 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No.
2016-13, "Financial Instruments — Credit Losses,” which replaced the current “incurred loss™ model for recognizing
credit losses with an “expected loss™ model refermed to as the CECL model, This new CECL standard became
affective for us on January 1, 2020 Under the CECL model, we are required to and ize an allowance
for loan losses that estimales remaining expected credit losses for financial assets heid at the laporhnq date. This
fesulted in us presenting certain financial assets carried at amortized cost, such as our loans held for investment. at
the net amount o be d. The of credit losses is based on information about
past events, including historical experience, current conditions, and reasonable and supportable economic and other
forecasts that affect the colleclability of the reported amount. This measurement takes place at the time the financial
assel is first added to the balance sheet and quarterly thereafter. This differs significantly from the “incurred loss”
moﬁei that was mqumd under prior GAAP, which delayed recognition of losses unfil it was probable a loss had been

LA gly, the adoption of the CEGL model materially changed the way we determine our allowance for
loan losses and mqu-w us 1o significantly increase our allowance and reduce shareholders’ equity on the January 1,
2020 implementation date. As a resull of the adoption of CECL in the first quarter of 2020, we increased our loan loss
reserves which resulted in a reduction of our shareholder equity by 5620 million. In the fulure, the CECL model may
creale more velablity in the level of cur allowance for loan losses. If we are required lo matenally increase our level of
aliowance for loan losses, such increase could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of
operations. In addition, the evaluation of our exnednu credit losses is inherently subjective and requires estimates
that may be subject lo significant ch . See "\ 's Di bon and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Resulls of Operations - Critical .i\ccounling Policies and Estimates - Allowance for Loan Losses” and “Note 2 —
S;gol:;lﬂcan‘;a{?ccwnnng Policies” for further discussion of the CECL standard and its impact as of the January 1, 2020
a ion dale

Our Ci Lending us o credit underwriting risks based upon the credit model we use
1o forecast loss rates. If we are unable o effectively forecast loss rates, it could materially adversely affect
our operating resufts.

We acquired Earnesl, a leading fi | technology and 1 finance , In 2017, Since then, Eamest

has become one of the leading providers of education refinance loans. In 2019, Eamest entered the “in-school™
lending market. We underwrite new Private Education Loans within our Consumer Lending segment based upon our
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analysis of exlensive uem criterfa, Criteria in und ] foans may include any or all of the

{ it or offer of empl Wt and income; (i) employment status and career spedialization; (i)
qualifying credit hlslnry taking into account credit score, (iv) debt to income ratio; (v) demonsiraled ability to pay
through free cash flow calculations; (vi) atlendance at or gradualion from an eligible post-secondary school, o
separated from an eligible post-secondary school within a specified period of time and met additional credit
requirements. or be the parent of a graduate or student; and (vil) savings. We define free cash fiow generally as
after-tax monthly income of a borrower minus the sum of rent or morigage payments, student loan payments and any
other fixed expenses of such borrower

We do not rely on any single factor in making our undenwiting decisions. Each of the above factors s reviewed and
weighted depending on the indivi S Of CO S Circum at the time the underwriting decision
is made. If our undenwriting process does not effectively forecast our losses, our operating resulls, cash flow or
financial condition may be materially adversely affecled

MARKET, FUNDING & LIQUIDITY RISK.

Our busi is affected by ch in interest rates and the cost and availability of funding in the capital
markers.

The capital markets may from time-to-time experience periods of significant volatility, such as the volalility we are
currenlly experiencing due Lo rising interest rates and other economic pressures. This volalility can dramalicalty and
y affect costs when d to norms or make funding unavailable at any costs. We
cannot provide any assurance that the cost and availability of funding in the capital markets will m:ll cnnmue to be
impacted by current economic pressures. Other factors that could make ing more exp or e o
us include, but are not limited to, financial losses, events that have an adverse impact on our reputation, changes in
the aclivities of our huslness partners, events that have an adverse impact on the financial services indusiry
ive credit rating actions with respect to us, asset-backed securities
sponsnlad by us or Iha us. Iaderal gmuammaul. changes affecting our assets, the ability of existing or future
Navient-sponsored securitization trusts to hedge interest rate and currency risk, corporate and regulatory actions,
absolute and compataWe interest rate changes, general economic conditions and the legal, regulatory and tax
nding tr: g existing or future securitizalion and derivatives transactions. |1
financing ks dlmw!‘t. expensrva or unavailable, our msms of operations, cash flow or financial cendition could be
matenally and adversely affected. Further, rising interes! rates and expectations of inflation may negatively impact
borrower demand for our private education loan products.

The iransition away from the LIBOR refe raie to the O Financing Rate (SOFR) may
craate uncertainty in the capital markets and may negatively impact the valie of existing LIBOR based
financial instruments and our financial results and business.

The London Interbank Offered Rate. or LIBOR, has historically served as a global benchmark for determining interest
rates on commaercial and consumer [oans, bonds, derivatives and numerous other financial instruments. US. Dollar
{USD) LIBOR has historically been the reference rate for most of our variable rale student loans, bonds, asset-
backed securites (ABS), other financing facilties, and denvatives (financial instruments). As of January 1, 2022, the
LIBOR administrator ceased publication of EUR, CHF, JPY and GBP LIBOR for all tenors and one-week and two-
menth USD LIBOR on a tative basis, and regulated U.S, fi are no lenger permitted to
enter into new confracts relerencing any LIBOR rates. The LIBOR administrator further announced that it will cease
publishing the remaining USD LIBOR rates, including one-month and three-month LIBOR, afler June 30, 2023,

As of December 31, 2022 we had approximately $127 billion notional of financial instruments indexed to USD one-

manth or th LIBO app 5101 billion of which will mature after June 30, 2023. We are working in

concert with regulators, COﬂSI.TFIEI advocates, investors, and industry peers lowards a smooth fransition. Across our

g!ud;:;ll’aw portfolio, approximately 5% of borrowers have their loan payments indexed to LIBOR, as of December
1,

A significant amount of our financial instruments which are indexed to LIBOR do not include provisions clearly
specifying a method for transitioning from LIBOR 1o an allemative benchmark rate. Further, our financial instruments
may require changes to documentation as well as enhancements and modifications to controls,
and models, which could present operational and legal challenges for us and our customers, investors and
counterparties. There can be no assurance thal we will be able lo medify all existing financial instruments before the
discontinuation of LIBOR. For some of these financial instruments kike our ABS, it may be impractical or impossible to
madiy such instruments due 1o stringent noteholder consent requirements. Additionally, for the Spedial Allowance
Payment (SAP} paid on our FFELP Loans by ED, legislative action is necessary to modify the SAP formula, which is
currenlly indexed lo one-month LIBOR, to be indexed to an alternative benchmark rate.  such financial instruments
are not remediated to provide a methed for ransitioning from LIBOR to an alternative benchmark rate, federal
legisiation related to the LIBOR vansmon may provide legal protection against litigation and statutory solutions to

an alfy hmark rate.
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On March 15, 2022, the Adjustable Interest Rate (LIBOR) Act (the LIBOR Act) was signed info law. The LIBOR Act
provides that for contracts that contain no fallback provision or conlain fallback provisions thal do not idenlify a
specific USD LIBOR benchmark replacement (including the Special Allowance Payment (SAP) formula for FFELP
Loans), a benchmark replacement based on SOFR. as published by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York,
including any rec spread and benchmark conforming changes, will aulomatically replace the
USD LIBOR benchmark in the contract after June 30, 2023. On December 16, 2022, the Federal Reserve Bank of
New York adopled a final rule that implements the LIBOR Act by identifying benchmark rates based on SOFR thal
will replace LIBOR in certain financial contracts after June 30, 2023, Following the enactment and implementation of
the LIBOR Act, all of our financial instruments which are currently indexed to USD LIBOR will transition to SOFR by
no later than June 30, 2023,

Itis difficult to predict the impact that the cessation of LIBOR and transition to SOFR would have on the value and
performance of our existing financial and whether a to an benchmark rate will be
similar to or produce a return that is the economic equivalent of LIBOR. The transition from LIBOR, which has
histonically been one of the most widely used benchmarks across the world, to SOFR is a novel event and there is
alzo no guarantee thal the transition will occur as expecled. These uncertainties regarding the LIBOR transition
could have a material adverse impact on our funding costs, net interest margin, loan and other assel values, asset-

liablity manag , and other aspects of our business and financial results, Further, our
i and terparties may be di: ¥ with how SOFR performs compared te LIBOR or with
how the transition process occurs. Litigation, disputes or other action may occur as a result of dissatisfied customers,

investors and counterparties or a result of or in to the ir and enf: ibdity of certain fallback
language in our LIBOR-based contracts or in the LIBOR Act

For more information regarding the actions we have laken with respect to the LIBOR transition, see "Quantitative and
Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk — Interest Rate Sensitivity Analysis — LIBOR Transition.”

Prepayments on our loans can materially impact our profitability, results of
cash flows or future business prospects.

The rate al which borrowers prepay thelr loans can have a material impacl on profitability, resulls of operations,
financial cendition, cash flows or future business prospects by affecting our net inferest margin, the future cash flows
from our loans including loans held by our securitization trusts. Higher or lower prepayments can result from a variety
of causes including borrower acll\rmr and changes in the education loan market as a resull of market conditions,
interest rate , loan or other g d FFELP Loans and Privale
[Education Loans may he voluntarity prepaid without penalty by Im borrower of refinanced or consolidated with the
borrower’s other loans through refinancing. Prepayment rates on education loans are subject to a variety of
econgmic, political, competitive and other factors, including changes in our competitors’ business strategies, changes.
in interest rates, availabdity of alternative financings {including refinance and consclidations), legislative, executive
and regulatory changes affecting the education loan market and the general economy. Refinance products offered by
us, our competitors, and the Federal Gov may i the repay it rate on our FFELP Loans and Private
[Education Loans.

In particular, new interpretations of current laws, rules or regulations or future laws, executive orders or other policy
initiatives which operate lo encourage of require WﬂSOWaUDﬂ. abolish existing or creale additional income-based

repayment or debt forg or h other pelicies and prog also may or the
rates on ion loans, For ED and the Biden-Harris Administration recently announced a

sel of policy changes and d prop and executive orders relaling to the

Defense to R 1, interest ization rules, Public Service Loan Forgiveness program and broad-based

student loan forgiveness programs (including the SDR Plan) under its Direct Loan program, which may result in an
increase in consolidations of FFELP Loans into Direct Loans {which results in the loan no longer being on our
balance sheet). Following publication of the SDR Plan, a number of states and private organizations initiated legal
challenges lo the SDR Plan in various courts throughout the country, which ultimately resulted in the implementation
of the SDR Plan being disallowed The Biden-Harris Administration and ED appealed both cases to the Supreme
Court of the United States which has agreed lo hear both cases on February 28, 2023, and a ruling is expected prior
to the end of the Supreme Courl's current term.

While the current version of the SDR Plan provides that borrowers with federal student loans not held by ED cannot
obtain one-time debt reliel by consolidating those loans into Direct Loans, it also states that ED is assessing whether
there are allernalive pathways lo provide reliel to borrowers with federal student loans not held by ED, including
FFELP Loans. If the Supreme Court should lift the current injunction and ED implemenls a broad-based student loan
forgiveness plan or any poficies or programs that encourage or require bormowers to consolidate their loans into Direct
Loans hedd by ED, it will likely result in a significant increase in prepayments of our existing education loan portfolio
and could materially and adversely impact our profitability, results of operations, financial condition, cash flows or
future business prospects. We cannot predict what {if any) plans of policies regarding broad-based loan forgiveness
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of other related policies or may be , the timing of when such plans or policies may
be implemented, and/or the oulcome of such actions

FFELP Loans may also be repaid after default by the Guarantors of FFELP Loans. Conversely, borrowers might not
choose to prepay their education Ioans or the terms of their loans may be extended as a result of grace
periods, periods, i t plans, or other repayment terms or monthly payment amount
madifications agreed to by the servicer, for example. FFELP Loan borrowers may be eligible for various existing
income-based repayment programs under which borrowers can qualify for reduced or zero monihly payment or even
debt lorgiveness after a certain number of years of repayment.

Prolonged introductions of significant amounts of subsidized funding at below markel interest rates — whether from
federal o private sources — could increase the prepayment rales of our existing Private Education Loans and have a
material adverse effect on cur , results of financial condition, cash flows or fulure business
prospects.

With respect lo our securitizalion trusts when, as a result of unanbicipated prepayment levels, education loans within
a securitization trust amortize faster than originally coniracied, the trust's pool balance may decline at a rate faster
than the prepayment rate assumed when the trust's bonds were originally issued. If the trust's pool balance declines
faster than originally anticipated, in most of our securitization structures, the bonds issued by that trust will also be
repald faster than originally anicipaled. In such cases, our nel interest ncome may decrease and our future cash
flows from the trust may similarly decline. Ci Y, when Ipans within a securil trust amortize
maore slowly than originally contracted, the trust's pool balance may decling mode slowly than the prepayment rale
assumed when the trust's bonds were originally issued, and the bonds may be repaid more slowly than originally
anticipated. In these cases, our net interest income increases and our fulure cash flows from the trust may increase.
Itis also possible, if the prepayment rale is especially slow and certain rights of the sellers or the servicer are nol
exercised or are insufficient or other action is not laken to counter the slower prepayment rate, the trust's bonds may
not be repaid by their legal final maturity date{s), which could result in an event of defaull under the underlying
securitization agreements.

Our unhedged Floor Income is dependent on the future interest rate environment and therefore is variable,
which may adversely affect our earnings.

FFELP Loans disbursed before April 1, 2006 generally eam interest at the higher of either the borrower rate, which is
fixed over a period of ime, or a flioating rate based on a Special Allowance Payment or SAP formula set by ED. We
have generally financed our FFELF Loans with floating rate debt whose interes! is malched closely to the floating
nature of the applicable SAP formula. Historically, these loans have been indexed to either the Treasury bill,
commercial paper or one-month LIBOR rates. The LIBOR Act requires that the SAP formula, which is curmently
indexed to one-month LIBOR, will transition to SOFR by no later than July 1, 2023,

If a decline in interest rates causes the bormower rate to exceed the SAP formula rate, we will continue to eam interest
on the loan at the fixed borrower rate while the floating rale interest on our debt will continue to decline, The
additional spread eamed between the fixed borrower rate and the SAP formula rate is referred to as “Fleor Income.”
The transition from LIBOR to SOFR as a benchmark rate may have a further detrimental impact on our LIBOR-
indexed debt if rates suddenly rise as new market borrowing activity transfers to ofher benchmark rates. Depending
on the type of FFELP Loan and when it was originated, the borrower rate is either fixed to term or is reset to a market
rate on July 1.of each year. For loans where the borrower rate is feed to term, we may earn Floor Income for an
extended period of time; for those loans where the borrower interes rate is reset annually on July 1, we may eam
Flaor Income fo the next reset dale. In accordance with legislation enacted in 2006, holders of FFELF Loans are
required to rebate Floor Income to ED for all FFELP Loans disbursed on or after April 1, 2006,

Floor Income can be volatile as markel rates and he rates on the undertying education loans move up and down,

Subject to p g market ¢ ,we hedge this risk by using derivalives in an elfort to lock in a
portion of cur Floor Income over the term of the conltract. A rise in interest rates will reduce the amount of Floor
Income received on the FFELP Leans not p tly hedged with . which will our net interest

margins. Additionally, net inferest margins can be negatively impacted by unusual variances between one-month and
three-month LIBOR

Our credit ratings are important to our liguidity. A reduction in our credit ratings could adversely affect our
liquidity, increase our borrowing costs or limit our access fo the capital markeis.

As of December 31, 2022, Moody's, S&P and Fitch rated our long-term L d debt below tment grade. In
addition, the capltal miarkets for sub-i grade -are not as liquid as those involving investment
grade entities. These factors have resulted in a higher cost of funds for us and have caused our senior unsecured
debt lo Irade with greater volatility

Our unsecured debl totaled $7.0 billion at December 31, 2022. We ulilize the unsecured debl markets o help fund
our business and refinance outstanding debt. The amount, type and cost of this funding directly affects the cost of
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operating our business and growing our assets and is dependent upon outside factors, including our credit fﬂlﬂﬂ from
rating agencies. There can be no assurance that our credit ratings will not be reduced further. A reduction in the

credil ratings of our senior unsecured debt could adversely affect our iquidity, increase our borrowing costs, mit cur
access lo the capital markets and place incremental pressure on net interest income:

Adverse markel conditions or an inability to effectively manage our liguidity risk could negatively impact our
ability to meet our liquidity and funding needs, which could materially and adversely impact our resulis of
operations, cash flow or financial condition.

We must effectively manage our quidity risk. We require liquidity to meet cash requirements such as day-to-day
operating expenses, origination of loans, required payments of principal and interest on borrowings, and distributions
to shareholders. We expect to fund our ongoing liquidity needs, including the repayment of $7.0 billion of senior
unsecured notes that mature in 2023 to 2043, primarily through our current cash, investments and unencumbered
FFELP Loan and Private Educalion Refinance Loan portiolios, the predictable operaling cash flows provided by

e of principal on unencumbered education loan assets, and the distribution of
overcolamrahzahon from our securtization trusts. We may also, depending on market conditions and availability,
draw down on our secured FFELP Loan and Private Education Loan facilities, issue term ABS, enter into additional
Private Education Loan ABS repurchase faciities, or issue additional unsecured debt. We may maintain too much
liguidity, which can be costly, or may be too iliquid, which could resull in financial distress during times of financial
stress or capital markel disruplions.

The interest rate characteristics of our earning asseis do not always match the interest rate characteristics of
our funding arrangements, which may have a negative impact on our net interest income and net income.

Net interest income is the primary source of cash flow generated by our portfolios of FFELP Loans and Private

Education Loans. Al the present, interest eamed on FFELP Loans and variable rate Private Education Loans is

primarily indexed to one-month LIBOR or Prime Rate. Startng in December 2021, in preparation for the cessation of

one-month LIBOR in July 2023, interest eamed on all newly originated variable rate Privale Educalion Loans have

been indexed to 30-day Average SOFR. In contrast, certain of our debl is indexed to rates other than one-month

:.[lBOR, Prime Rate or 30-day Average SOFR, or il indexed lo one-month LIBOR, it has a different repricing
equency

The different interest rale ¢ istics of our loan portfclios and the ilities funding these loan portfolios resull in
basis risk and repricing risk. It is not economically feasible 1o hedge all of our exposure 1o such nisks. While the asset
and hedge indices are short-term with rale movements that are typically highty correlated, there can be no assurance
that the historically high correlation will nol be disrupted by capital markel dislecations or other factors not within our
control. There have been situalions in the pasl in which we experienced widening spreads between one-month and
Three-month LIBOR and the cost of hedging this variance was prohibitive. Additionally, as we transiion away from
LIBOR, there may be further basks risk and repricing risk as a result of new SOFR-based indices being instituted in
our loan portfolios and liabilities due to the varying performance and functionality of certain SOFR-based indices
compared to LIBOR-based indices and other SOFR-based indices. We cannot provide any assurance thal such a
situation will not occur and if it did occur, it would polanhaly reduce our net inferest margins and nel income. In these
circumstances, our could be y affected

Our use of derivatives fo manage interest rate and foreign currency sensftivity exposes us o credit and
market risk that could have a material adverse effect on our earnings and liquidity.

We strive to maintain an overall strategy that uses derivatives to minimize the economic effect of interest rate andfor
foreign currency changes. However, g an effective strategy for dealing with these movements is complex,
and no strategy can complelely avold the risks associated with these fluctuations. For example, our education loan
portfolio is subject to prepayment risk that could result in being under- or over-hedged, which could result in material
losses. As a result, there can be no assurance that hedging activities using derivatives will effectively manage our
interest rate or foreign currency sensitivity, have the desired beneficial impact on our results of operations or financial
condition or not adversely impact our liquidity

Our use of derivatives also exposes us to market risk and credit risk. Market risk is the chance of financial loss
resulting from changes in inlerest rates, foreign exchange rates and market iquidity. Cur Floor Income Contracts and
basis swaps we use to manage eamings variability caused by different reset characleristics on interest-eaming
assets and interest-beanng liabilities do not quality for hedge accounting treatment. Therefore, the change in fair
value, called the “mark-to-market,” of these derivative is included in our of income without a
comresponding mark-to-market of the economically hedged item. A decline in the fair value of these derivalives could
have a material adverse effect on our reported eamings. In addition, a change in the mark-to-markel value of these
instruments may cause us to have to post more collateral to our counterparty or to a clearing house. If these values
Famn: significanily, the increased collateral posting requirement could have a material adverse impact on our
iquidity.

Credil risk is the risk thal a counterparty will not perform its obligations under a contracl. Credit risk is limited lo the
loss of the fair value gain in a that the ¢ o owes o will owe in the future to us. If
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a counterparty o clearinghouse fails to perform its obligations, we could, depending on the type of counterparty
arrangement, experience a loss of liquidity or an economic loss, In additien, we might not be able fo cost effectively
replace the derivative position depending on the type of dertvative and the current economic environment.

Our securitization trusts, which we consolidate on our balance sheet, had $1.8 billion of Euro denominated bonds
outstanding as of December 31, 2022. To convert these non-U.S. dollar denominated bonds inte U.5. dollar liabilities,
the trusis have entered into foreign-currency swaps with highly rated counterparties. A failure by a swap counlerparty
1o perform its obligations could, if the swap has a positive fair value 1o us and was not adequately collateralized.
materially and adversely affect our eamings

OPERATIONAL RISKS.

If we do not eﬁecx-‘vaﬂrand nonrJnuaWal-‘ﬂn Our COST Structure with our business operations, our results of
T could be materially adversely affecred.

We continually strive to aign our cost structure with our business operations. The ability to properly size our cost
structure is dependent upon a number of variables, including our ability to fully execute on our business plans
and growth initiatives and future legislative or regulatery changes. Persislent inflalion, as experienced throughout
2022, could significantly increase our engoing operaling costs and reduce our nel income. If we undertake cost
reductions based on our business plan, those reductions could be loo dramalic and could cause disruptions in our
business, reductions in the quality of the services we provide or cause us to fail to comply with applicable regulatory
standards. Alternatively, we may fail lo implement, or be unable to achieve, necessary cost savings commensurate
with our business and prospects. In either case, our business, results of operations and financial condition could be
adversely affecled

A failure of our ture could disrupt our business, cause significant fosses,
result in regulatory action or ﬂamam our reputation.

A failure of our operating systems or infrastructure could disruplt our business. Our business is dependent on the
abilty to process and monitor large numbers of daily transactions in compliance with contractual, legal and regulatory
standards and our own product specifications, both currently and in the future, We have strategic agreements with a
third party, the primary provider of technology solutions for servicing our FFELP loans and our Private Education
Leoans. We, however, maintain the technology solutions for our other lines of business as well as our cuslomer
interactive infrastructure. As our processing demands and loan portfolios change, both in volume and in terms and
conditions, our ability to develop and our systems and may | become muaasngry
challenging. There is no assurance that we have or i ped, quired or scaled
such systems and infrastructure or will do so in the future.

The servicing, financial, accounting, data processing and other operaling systems and facilities that support our
business may fal to operale properly or become disabled as a result of events that are beyond our conlrol, adversely
affecting cur ability to timely process transactions. Any such faifure could adversely affect cur ability to service our
clients and resull in financial loss or liability to our clients, disrupt our business, and result in regulatory action or
cause reputational damage.

Additionally, since the onset of the COVID-19 pandemic, we have drastically modified the manner in which we
conduct our business. We conlinued to significantly reduce our footprint throughout 2022, expanded our work-from-
home capabilites and implemented best practices for salety and hygiene. Whike most of our operations can be
successfully performed remotely, there is no guarantee that this will continue in the future.

Despite the pims and facilities we have in place, our abllmr to com!uct business may be adversely affected by a

prolonged disruption in the i ture that . This may include a disruption involving
electrical, ¢ ations, Internet, or olner services used by us or third parties with which we
conduct business. Despite the steps we have laken to ransition to a new working , W may
increased costs and/or disruption as we adapt fo hybrid work models and the evolving realities ul the workplace.
We depend on secure information remnomy and a breach m’om' rechnology could
result in significant losses, discie and which
would adversely affect our business.
Our operations rely on the secure processing, storage and of and other

n in our and Although we take protects wa deam bie and
appropriate, our computer systems, soff and networks may be o ized access, compuler

viruses, malicious attacks, ransomware attacks and other events that could have a security impact beyond our
control. These technologies, systems and networks, and these of third parties, may become the target of cyber-
attacks or snfon'namn security brear.hes that could result in the unauthorized release, gathering, monitoring, misuse,
loss or of our cust ial, proprietary and other information, the loss of access lo our systems
and networks or those of third parties we rely upon or disrupt our or those of our
customers or other third parties. Information securily risks lor institutions thal handle large numbers of financial
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Iransactions on a daily basis such as Navient have generally increased in recent years, in part because of the
profileration of new technologies, the use of the Internet and tel ucations to conduct fi I
fransactions, and the increased sophistication and activities of organized crime, hackers, lerrorists, activists and other
exlemal parties. In addtion, our increased use of mobile and cloud lechnologies twld heighten these and other
operational risks. and any failure by mobile or cloud technology service [ their
systems and prevent cyber-attacks could disrupt our operations or those of third names we rely up:m and resull in
interruplions of services or l0ss of access or of loss of

information. Moreover, the loss of confidential u.lstomar identification information could harm our lapululmn result in
the termination of r.onnratts by our ex-snno customers and subject us to lability under state, !'euetal ana lnlernaﬂonal
laws that protect confid | data, Iting in increased costs, loss of

It one or more of such events occur, ial and other i and stored in, and
ransmitted through, our computer syslems al!ﬂ networks could be |eonar¢|zed Ol' OOIlld cause interruphons of
malfunclions in our operations mat could mull in slqmrn:anl lnsses or We routinely transmit
and receive persenal, and pi ion, some of it through third partnes We mauntmn secule
transmission capability and work to ensure Ilal ﬂ!ld parties follow similar p
misuse of mishandiing of persenal, confidential or proprietary information belnq sent l0 of received lmm a CUSED!\‘IBI
or third party could result in |aqa| Inamlmr latory action and harm. In the event personal, confidential
of other i is ted, mi or mishandled, or our systems or those of third parties we
rely upon suffer interruptions in sefvice or iuss of access, we may need to expend significant additional resources to
modify our protective measures or to investigate and remediate vulnerabilities or other exposures, and we may be
subject to fines, penalties, litigation and settlement costs and financial losses that may not be insured or may not be
fully covered through insurance. If one or more of such events occur, our business, financial condition or results of

P could be and y alfected.

We depend on third parties for a wide array of services, systems and information technology applications,
and a breach or violation of law by one of these third parties could disrupt our business or provide our
compelitors with an opportunity to enh their ithon ar our exp

We depend on third parties for a wide array of services, systems and information technology applications. Third-party
vendors are significantly invelved in many aspects of our software and systems developmenl, servicing systems, the
timely transmission of information across our data communication network, and for other telecommunications,
processing, remittance and technology-relaled services in connection with our servicing or payment services
businesses. In addition to lechnology applications, we also ulilize various third-party debt collectors in the collection
of defaulted Private Education Loans and in other areas. If a service provider fails to provide the services required or
expected, or fails to meet i or Y feq such as service levels or compliance with
applicable laws, the failure could negatively impact our by affecting our ability to process
customars’ ransactions in a timely and accurate manner, otherwise hampering our ability to serve our customers, or
subjecting us to kigation and regulatory risk for mallers as diverse as poor vendor oversight or improper release or
protection of personal information. Such a failure could also adversely aflect the perception of the reliability of our
nefworks and services and the quality of our brands, which could materially adversely affect our business and results
of operations.

Our work with government clients and smm:!ny I’i:ur the federal g usto i risks.
Federal funding 1s and palicy ch ggered by assoclated federal spending
deadlines may result in ion of p for we provide o the government, which could

materially and adversely affect ourbus.mess strategy or future business prospects.

Our clients include federal, state and local governmental entities. This work carries various risks inherent in the
government contracting process. These risks include, but are not limited to, the following:

«  Govemnment contractors are sometimes affecled by the political or budgetary processes of the United
States government. Sometimes the political process leads to govemment shutdown of all parts of the
federal or state government. This can lead to Y work or delays. Contracts
may be cancelled or altered due to political or policy priorities,

. Gowrnmanl enfities in the Unlleo States often reserve the right to audit contract costs and conduct
. These entities also conduct reviews and investigations
and rnake i gardi svstsms. g sysh of third parties, used in connection with the

2 of the a findings from audlls investigations or inquiries could affect the
t.onu'acm(sh:lummmssand fitability by g them, by ion of law or in practice, (i) from
receiving new govemment contracts for some perlod of time o (i) I'mm being paid at the rate they believe
is warranted.

« Itimproper or Hlegal activities are found in the course of g audits or . the contractor
may become subject o various civil and criminal pnnaluos including those under the civil U.S. False
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Claims Act. Mwoqalb' we may be sunje:l to administrative sanctions, whlcn rnay include le{mmallnn or

debarment l'rum doing busi with ntrm gencies of thal ge Due Iu ihe inharent fimitations of
internal conlrols, it may not be possible to detect or prevent all improper of ilegal activities

The of conditions described above could affect not onty our b with the p

enfities involved, but also our business or potential future business with other enliies of the same or other
govemnmental bodies or with commercial clients and could have a material adverse effect on our business or our
resulls of operations.

Additionalty, Navient receives payments from the federal government on its FFELP Loan portfolio. Payments for
these services may be affected by various factors, including if in the future, the administration and Congress engage
in a prolenged debate linking the federal deficit, debt ceiling and other budget issues. If U.S. lawmakers in the future
fail o reach agreement on these issues, the federal government could stop or delay payment on its obligations,
including those on services Navient provides with respect to the servicing of the FFELFP Loan portfolio and other
govemment-related work. Further, legisiation lo address the federal deficit and spending could impose proposals that
would adversely affect the FFELP-related servicing business or other govermnment-related work. A profracted
reduction, suspension of cancellation of the demand for the services Navient provides, or proposed changes to the
terms or pricing of services provided under existing contracts with the federal governmenl, could have a material
adverse effect on Navient's revenues, cash flows, profitability and business outlook. and, as a result, could materially
adversely affect its business, financial condition and results of operations. Navient cannot predict how or what
ploqr;nk: or policies will be impacted by any actions that the Administration, Congress or the federal government
may

Our busi could be nega d as a result of shareholder activism, including a proxy contest or
an unsolicited takeover proposal

We have been and may continue to be the subject of actions taken by activist shareholders. While we strive to
maintain constructive, ongoing c ications with all of our . and welcome their views and opinions

with the goal of enhancing value for all shareholders, we may be subject to actions or proposals from activist
shareholders that may not align with cur business sirategies or the interests of our other shareholders. For example,
in December 2021, our Board of Directors adopted a short-term rights plan {Rights Plan) and declared a dividend
distribution of one preferred share purchase right on each outstanding share of commaon stack. The purchase rights
associaled with the Rights Plan expired unexercised on December 22, 2022, The Rights Plan was designed to
protect shareholder interests by reducing the likelihood that any person or group would gain control of the Company
through the open-market accumulation of the Company's shares without appropriately compensating our

lers for control g to such aclions may be coslly and ti disrupt our and
operafions, or divert me allenm of our board of directors, management, and employees from lne pursuit of out

ities could interfere with our ability to execute our strategic plan.

Even if we are successful in a proxy contest or in defending against any unsolicited lakeover attempt, our business
could be adversely affected by any such proxy contest or unsolicited takeover altempt because:

+ perceived uncertainties as to fulure direction may result in the loss of potential acquisitions, collaborations
of other strategic opportunities, and may make it more difficult to attract and retain qualified personnel and
business pariners;

+  ilindividuals are elecled or appointed lo our board of directors with a specific agenda, it may adversely
affect our ability to effectively and tmely implement our strategic plan and creale additional value for our
shareholders; and

+  ilindividuals are elected or appointed lo our board of directors who do not agree with our strafegic plan,
me auurry of our board of directors to function effectively could be adversely affected, which could in tum
Iy affect our ting results and fi ial condition.

p

Unoertalnnes related to, or the results of, such actions could cause our slouc prica to expanenoe periods of volatility,
The of any of the foregoing events could r by affect our b

We cannot predict, and no assurances can be given, as to the outcome or timing of any matters relating to the
foregoing actions by shareholders of the ullimate impact on our business, liquidity, financial condition or results of
operations, and any of these matiers or any further actions by this or other shareholders may impact and result in
volatility or stagnation of the price of our stock.
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REGULATORY, COMPLIANCE & LEGAL RISK.

Our businesses are subject to a wide variety of laws, rules, reg and g licies that may
change in significant ways, and changes 1o such laws and regultations or tﬂaﬂms in ax.‘sdm regulatory

i or their interp lon or enforcement could Iy impact our b and results
of operations.

Our businesses are subject to a wide variety of U.S. federal and state and non-U.5. laws, rules, regulations and
policies. There can be no assurance thal these laws, rules, regulations and palicies will not be changed in ways that
will require us to modify our business models or objectives or in ways that aflect our returns on investment by
restricting existing activities or services, change how our companies operate or the characteristics of our assels,
subjecting them to escalating costs or new or increased taxes or prohibiting them outright.

The CFPB has authority with respect to several aspects of our business. It has authority to write reguiations under
federal consumer financial prolection laws and to direclly or indirectly enforce those laws and examine us for
compliance. The CFPB also has examination and enforcement authority with respect to various federal consumer
financial laws for some providers of consumer financial products and services, including us. New rules if
implemented, could have a material effect on our consumer lending or other businesses and may result in significant
capital expenditures to develop systems that enable us to comply with the new regulations.

The CFPB is al to impose . coliect fines and provide consumer restitution in the event of
visdations, engage in consumer financial tion, track ¢ [ requast data and promote the
availability of financial services to und d and cor ities. The CFPB has authority to bring an
action to prevent unfair, deceptive or abusive acts or practices and to ensure that all consumers have access to fair,
and ive markets for ¢ financial products and senvices. The review of products and

practices to prevent unfair, deceptive or abusive conduct will be a continuing focus of the CFPB. The ultimate impact
of this heightened scrutiny is uncertain, but it has resulled in, and could continue lo result in, changes lo pricing,
practices, products and procedures. It has also resulted in, and could continue to result in, increased costs related to
regulatory oversight, supenvision and examination, additional remediation efforts and possible penalties.

In addition, where a company has violated Title X of the Dodd-Frank Act or CFPB regulations implemented under
Title X of the Dodd-Frank Act, the Dodd-Frank Act empowers State Altorneys General and state regulators, under
certain circumstances o bring civil actions lo remedy violalions of slate law. Il the CFPB o one or more State
Altorneys General or stale regulators believe that we have violated any of the applicable laws or regulations, they
could exercise their enforcement powers in ways that could have a material agverse effect on us or our business.

The CFPE filed an action agalnsl us in .Ianuary of 2017 which is umanll',l pending. A description of the CFPB action
is included in "Mole 12 - and " Also, in January 2022, we entered into a
series of Consent Judgmen!a and Ordefs {the “Agreements”) with 40 Stala Attomneys General lo resolve all matters in
dispute le|alied to the certain state attorneys general cases as well as the refated investigations, subpoenas, civil

g ds and & from various other state regulators.
Our FFELFP loans are subject to the HEA and refaled laws, rules, regulations and policies. Qur servicing operations
are designed and monitored to comply with the HEA, related and prog guidance. h , ED could

determine that we are not in compliance for a variety of reasons, including thal we misinterpreted ED guidance o
incorrectly applied the HEA and its related laws, rules, regulations and policies. Failure to comply could resull in fines,
the loss of the insurance and related federal guarantees on affected FFELP Loans, expenses required to cure
servicing deficiencies, suspension or termination of our right to participate as a FFELP servicer, negative publicity
and potential legal claims. The imposition of significant fines, the loss of the insurance and relaled federal guaraniees
on a material number of FFELP Loans, the i @ of | andfor the loss of our ability to
participate as a FFELP servicer could individually of in the aggregate have a material, negative impact on our
business, financial condition or results of operations,

Our businesses are also subject to regulation and oversight by various state and federal agencies, particularly in the
area of consumer protection, and are subject to numerous stale and federal laws and regulations, Several states
have passed or proposed student loan servicing rules or legislation and several others have imposed license or other
requirements. Imposition of new laws, rules or regulations or the failure to comply with these laws and regulations
may resudt in significant costs, 1ncludng litigation costs, andfor business sanctions including but not limited to

S0 or | of

Expanded ¥ and g ! ight of our will i our costs and risks.

We are now, and may in the fulure be subject, to inquiries and audits from state and federal regulators as well as
litigation from privale plaintifts. In recenl years, we have entered into consent orders and other selflements. We have
provided monetary an(l oiner relief in connection with the resolution of some of these actions and settiements, We
have also enh: du and controls, d the risk and control functions within each line of
business, invested in Iodmolow and hired additional risk. conirol and compliance personnel,
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If our risk and control procedures and processes fail to meet the heightened expectations of our reguiators and other
government agencies, we could be required to enler into further orders and settiements, provide additional monetary
reliel, or accept material reg on our . which could adversely affect cur operations and, in
furn, cur financial results.

We expect heightened regulatory scrutiny and g | ig and enfc actions to continue for
us and for the financial services industry as a whole. Such aclions can have sb fora
institution such as ours, inchuding loss of cuslomers and business and the inability 1o uperabe certain businesses.

Further, leg and reg ¥ to COVID-19 have had a significant impact on our education loan
portfolios. In compliance with the CARES Act and related executive actions, payments and interest accrual on all
loans owned by ED have been suspended since March of 2020 See risk factor entitied “~ Prepayments on our loans
can Iy impact our p , results of it ition, cash flows or future business
prospects” lor addiional information on the SDR Plan

Due to the uncertainly engendered by these new regulations, legisiation, guidance and actions, coupled with the
likelihood of additional changes or additions to the local, state and federal statutes, regulations and pracfices
applicable o our business, we are not able to estimate the ultimale impact of changes in law on our financial results,

or We belleve thal the cost of responding to and complying with these evolving laws
and regulations, as well as any from actions, will i toi . as will the risk of
penalties and fines from any enforcement actions that may be imposed on our I:ushnsses Ol.ll profitability, results of
operations, financial condition, cash flows or future could be and y affected as
a result

GOVERNANCE RISK.

Certain provisions of Delaware law and our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and amended
and restated by-laws may prevent or delay an acquisition of us, which could decrease the trading price of
our comimon stock.,

Certain provisions of Delaware law and of our amended and restated certificate of nmmorauon and second
amended and restated by-laws are 1o deter and bids by,
among other things, iy to negotiate directly with our board of directors rather than lo
attempt a hostile takeover. These provisions i'!l':hde among others:

» limitations on the ability of our shareholders to call a special meeting such that shareholder-requested
special meelings will only be called upon the request of the holders of at least one-third of cur capital stock
issued and outstanding and entitled 1o vole al an election of derectors;

« rules regarding how shareholders may present proposals or nominate directors for election at shareholder
meetings;

«  the nght of our board of directors to issue one or more series of preferred stock without shareholder
approval;

« the inability of our shareholders to fill vacancies on our board of directors;

s the requirement that the affirmalive vote of the holders of at least 75% in voling power of our stock entitied
to vote thereon is reguired for shareholders to amend our amended and restated by-laws; and

«  Mhe inabiiity of sur shareholders to cumulate therr voles in the election of directors.

|ll addllwn in December 2021, our Board of Directors adopted a short-term rights plan (Rights Plan) and declared a

ion of one prefermed share p right on each outstanding share of common stock. The
purchase rights associated with the Rights Plan expired on December 19, 2022, See “Note 9 — Stockholders’ Equity”
for further discussion. We are also subject to Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law. Section 203
generally provides that, with limited exceptions, persons who acquire, or are affiliated with a person thal acquires,
15% or more of the outslanding voting stock of a Delaware corporation shall nc-t engage in any business combination
with that corporation, including by merger, o acq of ional shares, for a three-year period
following the time at which that person of its affiliates becomes the holder of 15% or more of the corporation's
outstanding voting stock. Being subject lo Section 203 could cause a delay in or complelely prevent a change of
control that shareholders may favor

We believe these protect our shareholders from coercive or otherwise unfair tactics by
potential acmlels ID negofiate with our board of direclors and by providing cur board of directors with more time fo
ASSESS any 1 proposal. These p i are not intended to make us immune from takeovers. However,

these provisions will apply even if the offer may be considered beneficial by some shareholders and could delay or
prevent an acquisition that our board of directors determines is not in the best interests of us and our shareholders
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Shareholdars’ p g hip in Navient may be diluted in the future.

In the future, in Navient may be diluted as a result of equity issuances for
acquisitions, capital markel transactions or otherwise, including future equity awards that we may grant to our
directors, officers and employees. If made, these awards will have a dilutive effect on our eamings per share, which
could adversely affect the market price of shares of our common stock.

In addition, our amended and restated certificate of incorporation permits us to issue, without the approval of our
shareholders, one or more seres of preferred stock. Our board of directors generally may delermine the nghts of
preferred shareholders including their powers, preferences and relative, participating, optional and other special
rights, including preferences over our common stock with respect 1o dividends and distributions. If our board were to
approve the issuance of preferred stock in the future, the terms of one or more series of such preferred stock could
dilute the voling power of reduce the value of our common stock, For example, we could grant the holders of
preferred stock the right to elect some number of our direclors in all or upon the g of
specified events, or the right to velo specified transactions. Similarty, we could grant the preferred shareholders
certain repurchase or redemption rights or liquidation preferences that could affect the value of the common stack.

Our of ation the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware as the exclusive
forum for certain litig may be by our which could limit our shareholders’
ability to obtain a .l‘avorabre }ud‘l:ﬂi' forum for disputes with us.

Our of that the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware will be the sole and

exclusive forum for (i) any dmvahvsacﬁon or proceeding brought on our behalf, (ii) any action asserting a claim of
breach of a fiduciary duty owed to us or our shareholders by any of our direclors, officers, employees or agents, (i)
any action asserting a claim against us arising under the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware (DGCL)
of {iv) any action asserting a claim against us thal is governed by the intemal affairs doclrine. By becoming a
shareholder in our company, holders of our common stock will be deemed to have nolice of and have consented lo
the provisions of our amended and restaled certificate of incorporation related 1o choice of forum. The choice of forum
provision in our ded and restated certificate of i ion may limit our shareholders’ ability to obtain a
favorable judicial forum for disputes with us.

REPUTATIONAL/POLITICAL RISK.
Reputational risk and social factors may impact our results and damage our brand.

Negative public opinion or damage to our brand could occur as a result of actual or alleged conduct in any number of
activities or circumstances, including lending practices, regulatory compliance, security breaches (including the use
and protection of customer information), corporate governance, and sales and marketing, and from actions laken by
regulalors er ether persens. Such conduet could fall short of our customers’ and the public’'s heightened expeciations
of companies of our size with nigorous dala, privacy and compliance praclices, and could further harm our repulation
In addition, third parties with whom we have important relationships may lake aclions over which we have limited
control that could negatively impact perceptions about us or the financial services industry. The proliferation of social
media may increase the likelihood that negative public opinion from any of the events discussed above will impact our
reputation and business.

RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH OUR SPIN-OFF.

Navient owes obligatis service and i ification oblig, o SLM BankCo under various
transaction agreements that were executed as part orme Spm-orr Tnese i could be
to Navient's business or subject it to sub din, ing Habilities and

disruptive
liabilities that are presently unknown.

In connection with the Spin-Off from SLM BankCo, Navienl, SLM Corporation and SLM BankCo entered into various
agreements

The and distril t Navient, SLM Corporation and SLM BankCo provides for, among
ather things, indemnification obligations designed lo make Mavient financially responsible for substantially al liabiliies
Ihat may exist whether incurred prior to or afler the Spin-Off, relating to the b of SLM Cc

prior to Ihe Spin-0ff, other than those arising out of the consumer banking busi d by SLM
BankCo in the separation and distribution agreement. If Navient is required to |nﬂemn|fy SLM BankCo under the
circumstances set forth in the ion and distribution ag t, Navient may be subject to substantial liabilities
including liabilities that are accrued, ¢ or ise and of whether the liabilities were known or
unknown at the time of the Spin-Ofl. SLM BankCo is party lo various claims, litigation and legal, regulatory and other
proceedings resulling from ordinary business admhes relating to ils current and lormer opadations. Pravieus
business activities of SLM BankCo, i i ions and isil of various classes of consumer loans
outside of Salie Mae Bank, may also result in liability due to Ruture laws, rules, interpretations or court decisions
which purport to have retroactive effect, and such liability could be significant. SLM BankCo may also be subject to
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llandmes relalao ] pas1 av:lmues of muma« wsnesses. Iis mnerenw difficult, and in some cases impossible, lo

bilities of this nature, but future losses may
be smslanml and I'nB'f be bﬁme by Na'nanl in ammanoe with the lerms of the separation and distnbution
agreement.

STRATEGIC RISK.

Net income on our existing FFELP Loan portfolio is declining over time. We may not be able 1o develop
revenue streams (o replace the declining revenue from FFELP Loans through increased private credit
ariginations.

In 2010, Congress passed legislation ending the origi of ion loans under the FFELP program. Since
then, all federal education loans have been originated through the DSLP of the ED. While the 2010 law did not alter
of affect the terms and conditions of existing FFELP Loans, it significantty impacted the education loan indusiry. As a
resull of this legisiation, net income on our FFELP Loan portfolio ts declining, and is anticipated to continue to decline,
over lime as those existing FFELP Loans are paid down, refinanced or repaid after defaull

Additionally, our ability to grow is significantly dependent upon our ability to originate new in-school and refinance
loans. The student loan refinance market experienced a significant downtum in 2022 as a result of the significant
increase in interest rales, the proposed SDR Plan and the extended moratorium on student loan repayments. It is
estimated thal during 2022, the lotal education refinance market decreased by 80% as a result of higher inlerest rates
and further extensions of the student loan payment moratorium. These factors have disincentivized some bomowers
from refinancing their direct student loans and have negalively impacted our refinancing originations. Ta the extent
that additional measures, such as the SOR Plan, are i d, such i may tively impact our
future student loan crigination velume and our profitability, results of operations, financial oundrHon cash flows or
future business prospects could be materially and adversely affected as a result. Additionally, see “- Prepayments on
our loans can materially impact our profitability, results of operations, financial condition, cash flows or future
business prospects”

A or ic i that we pursue may not be successful and could harm our business
and financial conm'on

Our growth strategy has making opp: of, or malerial investments in, loan portiolies and
complementary businesses and products

All isi of c ions of loan portfolios involve financial risks as well as operational risks, There
may be a:ddmonal nsks if we enter I'llo a line of business in which we have limited experience or which operates in a
legal, reg it with which we are not familiar. The expected benefits of acquisitions and

investimenls also may net be realized for various reasons, including the loss of key personnel, customers or vendors.
If we fail to integrate or realize the expected benefits of our acquisitions or investments, we may lose the retumn on
these acquisitions or investments or incur additional transaction costs, and our business and financial condition may
be harmed as a result.

GENERAL RISK FACTORS.,

Our framework for managing risks may not be effective in mitigating the risk of loss.

Qur risk fr seeks to mitigate risk and appropriately balance risk and retums. We
have established processes and procedures intended to identify, measure, monitor, control and report the types of
risk to which we are subject. We seek to monitor and centrol risk exposure through a framework of policies,
procedures, Nmits and reporting requirements. Management of risks in some cases depends upon the use of
analytical and forecasting models. If the models we use lo mitigale these risks are inadequale, we may incur
increased losses. In addition, there may be rlsks that exist, or thal develop in the future, that we have not

ticipated, identified or miti d. If our risk does not effectively ide
mlllaaie nsks we could suffer unexpected losses, and our resulls of operations, cash flow or financial condition cou1d
be materially adversely affected

We are subject 1o various hga.lnmcuodmg\:ann‘sama!nm.:n legal p iy or ather
may y y affect our i or results from operations.

\We are subject to a variety of legal proceedings in virtually every part of our business (see “Note 12 = Commitments,
Contingencies and Guarantees” of this Annual Report). While we believe we have adopted apnmpnam legal and risk
managemenl and compliance programs, the diverse nature of our i Including of we
have recently acquired, means that legal and compliance risks will continue to exist and additional legal proceedings
and other contingencies, the outcome of which cannot be predicted with certainty, will arise from time to time. Some
of these legal p ings or other conti ies may maltesialty y affect our bi financial condition or
results from operations.
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Jncormr estimates and aswmprm Wmmmmmm cmmcm with the preparation of our consolidated
ancial Iy affec P Sels, INCOME, FeVenue or expenses.

The preparation of our consolidated financial statements requires management to make critical accounting estimates
and that afect the of assets, . Income, revenue of expenses during the
reporting periods. Incormrect esti and by could Iy affect our reported amounts
of assels, liabilities, income, revenue and expenses during the reporting periods. Il we make incorrect assumptions or
estimates, our reported financial results may be over or understated, which could materially and adversely affect our
business, financial condition and results of operations

If we are unam o amac:andmmln professionals with strong i skills, our . resulis of
P may be adversely affected.

Our success is dspanuanl n Iarqe part, on our ability to attract and refain personnel with the knowledge and skills 1o
lead our in our induslry are in high demand, and competilion for lalent is very high.
We must hire, retain and rnntruaw appropriate numbers of talented people with diverse skills in order to Serve our
clients, respond quickly to rapid and ongoing technology, industry and macroeconomic developments, and grow and

our Ag our b evolves, we must also hire and retain an increasing number of professionals
wnh dmrnnt skills and professional expectations lhan those of the prol Is we have hi hired and
retained. If we are unable 1o successtully integrate, molivale and (etahl these professionals, our ability to continue to
secure work in those indusiries and for our services and solutions may sutfer,

Our operate in Te and could lose market share and revenues if
competitors compete more aggressively or effectively.

We compele with for-profit and not-for-profit servicing and b processing many with slrong records
of performance. We compete based on price, effectiveness and customer service meftrics. To the exlent cur

[: compete or more effectively than us, we could lose market share Lo them or our service
offerings may not ptm |D be profitable. Our business and financial condition may be harmed as a result
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Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

LIBOR Transition

We conlinue to work internally as well as with external parties to ensure an orderly transition frem one-month and
three-month LIBOR to an allemative benchmark rate by the June 30, 2023 transition date. We have established an
internal LIBOR transition team whose purpose is to assess impacts, recommend plans and coordinate transition
efforts among different business areas. Execulive management and the LIBOR ransition leam provide quarterty
reports to our Board of Directors. We have also established intemal LIBOR working groups comprised of members
from different business areas who meet regularfy lo assess specific business-level impacts and to implement
operational changes necessary to effectuate a successful transition from LIBOR In addition to our enterprise-wide
efforts, we engage with market participants, industry groups and g the
l:oa:‘;s‘ Cgmlm {the ARRC), 1o develop plans and documentation to faciltate the transition to an alternative
mark rale

We continue to work to align with the ARRC's recommended best practices for completing the transition from LIBOR.
All our new variable rate Private Education Loans issued since December 2021 are indexed to SOFR. Also, as of
December 31, 2021, we have ceased entering into any other new contracts that are indexed lo LIBOR and, where
practicable, have engaged with counterparties to modify cerfain existing contracts to transition the existing reference
rate from LIBOR to SOFR. With respect to our legacy variable rate Privale Education Loans and other financial
contracts that reference USD LIBOR and contain fallbacks provisions that clearly specify a method for the transition
from LIBOR, we plan to transition such loans using such existing falibacks. W'e have engaged with our IT vendors
and impacted internal work groups to prepare and update our syst and p to iti
LIBOR-indexed contracts to SOFR. With respect to our financial insh'lmsms that do not u'u:uds faliback provisions
that clearly specify a method for the transiton from LIBOR to an allemallva nandlmalk rate, where practicable and
commercially reasonable, we have made efiorts to engage with t anﬂ to modify
such Due to ider consent , it may be ible to modify
certain financial instruments like cerain of cur ABS. Furr.hel the SAP formula for our FFELP Loans which is indexed
1o one-menth LIBOR, cannot be modified without legislative action. Thus, in such instances, we will need to rely on
federal legisiation to transition lo SOFR

On March 15, 2022, the Adjustable Interest Rate (LIBOR) Act (the LIBOR Acl) was signed inle law. The LIBOR Act
provides that for contracts that contain no fallback provision or contain fallback provisions that do not identify a
specific USD LIBOR benchmark replacement (including the SAP formula for FFELP Loans), a benchmark
replacement based on SOFR, as recommended by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York, will automatically replace
the USD LIBOR benchmark in the contract after June 30, 2023. On December 16, 2022, the Federal Reserve Bank of
New York adopled a final rule that implements the LIBOR Act by identifying benchmark rales based on SOFR thal
will replace LIBOR in certain inancial contracts after June 30, 2023. Following the enactment and implementation of
the LIBOR Act, all of our financial instruments which are currently indexed to USD LIBOR will transition to SOFR by
no later than June 30, 2023. Specifically, after June 30, 2023, the SAP formula for FFELP Loans will transition to 30-
day Average SOFR and our LIBOR-indexed FFELP ABS confracts that are subject lo the LIBOR Act will transition to
30-day or 90-day Average SOFR. Our LIBOR-indexed Private Education Loan ABS conlracls that are subject to the
LIBOR Act will transition to 1-month or 3-month Term SOFR. Similarty, our LIBOR-indexed Private Education Loans
will transition to 1-month or 3-month Term SOFR. Our LIBOR-indexed derivatives will transition to the Fallback Rate
(SOFR) as defined in the ISDA 2020 IBOR F Protocol i by the Swaps and D
Assacialion, Inc. on Oclober 23, 2020

For a discussion of the risks related o the LIBOR transition, see “Risk Factors — Market, Funding & Liquidity Risk —
The transition away from the LIBOR reference rate to the Secured Overnight Financing Rate (SOFR) may creale
uncertainty in the capital markets and may negatively impact the value of existing LIBOR based financial instruments
and our financial results and business.”
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Interest Rate Sensitivity Analysis

Our interest rate nisk management seeks to limit the impact of short-term movements in interest rates on our resulls
of operations and financial position. The following tables summarize the potential effect on eamnings over the next 12
manths and the potential effect on fair values of balance sheet assels and liabilities at December 31, 2022 and
December 31, 2021, based upon a sensitivity analysis performed by management ing a thetical

and decrease in market interest rates of 100 basis points. The tivities assume an i I

and decrease in market inlerest rates of 100 basis points and are applied only 1o financial assels and liabilities,
including hedging Instruments, thal exisled al the balance sheet date and do not take inlo account any new assets,
liabdities or hedging instruments that may arise over the next 12 months

As of December 31, 2022 As of December 31, 2021
Impact on Annual Earnings  Impact on Annual Earnings
i [[H

Interest Rates: lnllmll'ﬂll.l‘ll:
e T T e T e

Decrease
100 Basis 100 Basis 100 Basis 100 Basis
{Dodlars in millions, except per share Points Points Points Points.
Effect om Eamnings:
Change in pre-tax net income before mark-to
-market gains (losses) on derivative and
hedging activities'" 5 58 % {41) $ 4 5 40
Mark-lo-market gains (losses) on derivative and
activities

35 (28) 73 (103)
Increase {decrease) in income before laxes 5 931 § (? 5 71§ 63)
Increase (decrease) in net income after taxes 5 72§ 53) § 59 § 49)
Increase (decrease) in diluted eamings per

common share $ 55 § (41) § 38 5 (.31)

T T decreasing wierest tates by 100 basis points results in 3 negathee interest rate, we assumne the interest rate is 0% for this desclosure (as opposed
to being a negative ineres rate)
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om
Increase of
100 Basis 100 Basis
Points Points
ollarsinmiions) _______ FairValue $ % s %
fect on Fair Values:
Assets
Education Loans $ 59306 S (81) —% 5 120 -
Other eaming assels 4974 — —_ — —
Other assels 3571 36 1 (29) (L)}
Tolal assets gain/{loss) S5 67851 3 (45) —% § 91 =
Liabilties
Interest-bearing liabilities $ 63531 § (250) —% § 272
Otther liabilities 922 125 14 (134) (15)
Tolal liabiliies (gain)loss 5 64453 5 (125) —_ § 138 —
s Y = —
At 3, 201
Interest Rates:
Change from Change from
Increase of Decrease of
100 Basis 100 Basis
Points Points
Itldllu in millions) Fair Value H . 3 "
ect on Fair Values:
Assels
Education Loans $ 7ATIZ 5 (279) —% 5§ 432 1%
Other eaming assels 3845 — — — —
Other assets 3,948 (124) 3) 263 7
Tolal assets gain/{loss) 5 B2565 5 (403) —% § 695 1%
Liabilities
Interest-bearing liabilities 5 77,040 § (356) —% § 386 1%
Other liabilities 1,019 @ @ 193 19
Tolal liabilties (gain¥loss 3 78,058 5396.1 (1% § 679 1%
A primary objective in our funding is to mini our to ch interest rates by generally funding our

floating rate education loan portfolio with floating rate debt and our fixed rate education loan portfolio with fixed rate
debt although we can have a mismalch al times. In addition, we can have a mismatch in the index (including the
frequency of reset) of floating rate debl versus floating rate assets. In addition, due to the ability of some FFELP
Loans lo eam Floor Income, we can have a fixed versus floating mismatch in funding if the education loan eams al
the fixed borrower rale and the funding remains fleating.  We use Floor Income Contracts, pay-fi<ed swaps and fixed
rate debt to economically hedge embedded Floor Income in our FFELP loans. Historically, we have used these
instruments on a periodic basis and upon market c ions and pricing, we may enter into additional
hedges in the future. The result of these hedging transactions is lo fix the relative spread between the education loan
assel rate and the variable rate Nability,

In the preceding tables, under the scenario where interest rates increase or decrease by 100 basis points, the change
in pre-tax net income before the mark-to-markel gains (losses) on derivative and hedging activities is primarily due to
the impact of (i) our unhedged FFELP Loans being in a fixed-rate mode due to Floor Income, while being funded with
variable rate debt in low inlerest rate environments; (il) cedain FFELP fixed rate loans becoming variable interest rate
loans when variable inlerest rates rise above a certain level (Special Alowance Payment of “SAP"). When these
loans are funded with ficed rate debt (as we do for a portion of the portfolio to economically hedge Floor Income) we
earn additional interest income when earning the higher variable rate thal is in effect, and (id) a portion of our variable
rate assets being funded with fixed rate labilities. ltlem (i) will generally cause income lo decrease when interest rates
increase and income o increase when interest rales decrease. tem {il) and (lii) have the opposite effecl. The
changes due to the inferest rate scenarios in the current period are primarily a result of item (il) having a more
significant impact than item (i) as a result of interest rates being significanty higher compared fo the prior period. The:
changes in the prior period are a result of item (i) having a more significant impact than item (i) primarily as a result of
interest rates being significantly lower at that time. In addition, item (i) had more of an impact in the prior period due
1o a higher balance of variable rale assels being funded with fized rate liabiities.

In the preceding tables, under the scenario where interest rales increase or decrease by 100 basis points, the change
in mark-to-market gains (losses) on derivative and hedging activiies in bolh periods is primanly due lo (i) the notional
amount and remaining term of our derivative portfolio and related hedged debt and (i) the interest rate environment,
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In both periods, the mark-lo-market gains (losses) are primarily refated to derivatives that don't quakiy for hedge

accounting that are used lo economically hedge Floor Income as well as the origination of fixed rate Privale

Education Refinance loans. As a result of not qualifying for hedge accounting, there is not an offsetting mark- to-

market of the hedged item in this analysis. The mark-to-marke! gains (losses) where interest rates increase and

decrease 100 basis points are lower in 2022 than 2021 primarily as a result of 2022's higher interest rate

environment's impact on derivatives used to hedge Floor income and a decline in the notional amount of derivatives
Inc ion with the in the loan portiokio over thal time period.

In addition o interest rale risk addressed in the preceding lables, we are also exposed lo risks related to foreign
currency exchange rates. Foreign currency exchange risk s primarily L'ne result of forelgn currency denominated debl
issued by us. When we issue foreign d and securitization debt, our policy is to use
crass currency interest rate swaps to swap all foreign wnenq! denominated debt payments :lh(ad and floating)} to
USD LIBOR using a fixed exchange rate. In the fables above, there would be an immaterial impact on earnings if
@exchange rates were lo decrease of increase, due lo the terms of the hedging instrument and hedged items
matching. The balance sheet interest-bearing liabilities would be affected by a change in exchange rates; however,
the change would be materially offset by the cross-cumency interest rale swaps in other assets or other labilities. In
certain economic environments, volatility in the spread between spot and forward foreign exchange rales has resulted
in mark-to-market impacts to current period earnings which have not been factored into Ihe above analysts. The
earnings impact is noncash, and at maturity of the instrumenis the cumulalive mark-lo-market impact will be zero,
Navient has not issued foreign currency denominated debt since 2008.

Asset and Liability Funding Gap

The tables below present our assets and liabilities (funding) arranged by underlying indices as of Decamber 31, 2022
In the following GAAP presentation, the funding gap only includes derivatives that qualify as effective hedges (those
derivatives which are reflected in net interest margin, as opposed to those reflected in the “gains (losses) on
derivatives and hedging activities, net” line on the consolidated statements of income). The difference between the
asset and the funding is the funding gap for the specified index. This our to interest rate risk in
the form of basis risk and repricing risk, which Is the risk thal the different indices may reset at different frequencies or
may not move in the same direction or at the same magnitude

Managemenl analyzes interest rale risk and in doing so includes all di tves that are ily hedging our
debt whether they qualify as effective hedges or not (Core Eamings basis). Accordingly, we are also presenting the
asset and liability funding gap on a Core Eamings basis in the table that follows the GAAP presentation.

GAAP Basis
Frequency of
Ir;:::' Uurl.ublo Funding
s in billions| d
Smonih Treasuny 51 S e B s
3-month Treasury bill annual 2 —_— 2
L] annual i | - A

Frime quarterty 13 s 13
Prime monthiy 4.4 44
3-month LIBOR quarterty ] 186 {18.3)
1-month LIBOR 29 267 {23.8)
1-month LIBOR dally 41.0 410
SOFR™ various A 8 n
Non-Discrete reset® monthly . 4.4 (4.4)
Non-Discrete resel*” dailyfweekly 49 o 48
Fixed Rate’™ 13.3 20.2 (6.9)
Total § 70.8 =

. Re— Cy—

L Funding (by index) inchudes all derivatives that qualify 3z hedges.

L Funding includes loan repurchase facilises.

L Funding consists of ausson rate ABS and ABCF faciives

O Assets inchede restichd and other 3 s, Funding inchades the cbigasion to
roturn cash colfateral held related 1o dertvatives axposures.

Assets inchude receivables and other assets (induding goodwill and acquered intangibles) Funding nchades sther kabilties and
sockhoiders’ equity.
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Core Earmings Basis

Index Frequency of | Funding
Dollars in billions Vatiable Resets Assets  Ful
o Treasury b s S L
3-month Treasury bill annual 2 — 2
Prime annual = | — A
Prime quarterly 1.3 — 13
Prime maonthly 44 — 44
3-month LIBOR quarterly 3 36 {3.3)
1-month LIBOR monthly 29 405 (37.6)
1-month LIBOR daily 4.0 — 41.0
SOFR® various 2| 8 7
Non-Discrete resat® ! maonithly —_ 4.4 (4.4)
Non-Discrete reset® dailyhweekly 49 Sl 48
Fixed Rate’® 13.4 215 8.1)
Total § 709§ 709 § =
" Funding (by index) inchudes 3l derivatives that considers hedges of isk and rebects how we
internalty our vteres! rate expose

@ Funding includes loan repurchae taciliies,

L] Furding corsists of aucson rate ABS and ABCP faciles

W Assets inchide resticled and ' and cther cvemight typ Funding inchades the cbigasicn to
rotumm cash collateral held related to dervatives exposures.

W Assets inchude receivables and ether assets (including gocdwil and acquired intangibles). Funding includes other Kabilities and
stockhoidens’ equity.

We use interest rate swaps and other derivatives lo achieve our risk management objectives. Cur asset liability
managemenl stralegy is 1o match assels with debt (in combinalion with derivatives) that have the same underlying
index and reset frequency or, when economical, have interest rate characteristics that we believe are hi

comelated, Interest eamed on our FFELP Loans is primarily indexed to daily one-month LIBOR and our cost of funds
is primarily indexed to rates other than daily one-month LIBOR. A source of variability in FFELP net interest income
could also be Floor Income we earn on cerfain FFELP Loans. Pursuant to the terms of the FFELP, certain FFELP
Loans can earn interest al the stated fixed rate of inlerest as underlying debl interest rate expense remains variable.
We refer to this additional spread income as “Floor Income.” Floor Income can be volatile since it is dependent on
interest rate levels. We frequently hedge this volatility to lock in the value of the Floor Income over the term of the
contract. Inferest earned on our Private Education Refinance Loans is generally fixed rate with the related cost of
funds generally fixed rate as well. Interest earned on the remaining Private Education Loans is generally indexed to
either one-month Prime or LIBOR rates and our cost of funds is primarily indexed to ene-month or three-month
LIBOR. The use of funding with index types and reset frequencies that are different from our assets exposes us o
interest rate risk in the form of basis and repricing risk. This could result in our cost of funds not moving in the same
direction or wilh the same magnitude as the yield on our assets. While we believe this risk is low. as all of these
indices are short-term with rate movements that are highly correlated over a long period of time, market disruptions
{which have occurred in prior years) can lead lo a o bah Indices iting in a negative
impact to our eamings.
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Properties
The follewing table lists the principal lacilities owned by us as of December 31, 2022

lwhm
Feet
Muncie, IN Processing Center Fm-‘l Edm-m Loans; Consumer Lending: 75,400
Business Processing
Big Flats, Pioneer Credt Recovery — Processing Cenler Business Processing 80,000
Arcade. NY Piorwer Credt Recovery — Processing Center  Business Processing 45,000
Perry, NY Pranesr Credt Recovery — Processing Cenler  Butiness Processng 40.000
The following table lists the principal facilities leased by us as of December 31, 2022
Approximate
Locatien Function Business Segment|s) e Feet
Fishars. INTT Loan Senveng and Dats Center memmm 79.000
Hernden, WA Adrmiristrative Ofices F.ﬂl!ﬂ Education Loans; Conmor Lending. 43.000
Business Processng;
TN Ktend — Revenue Cycle Business Processing 38,000
Management
Moorestown, 1) Pianeer Credd Recovery — Processing Center  Business Processing 30,000
Wilmington, DE Headquaners Federal Education Loans: Consumer Lending: 25,500
Busness Procesang,
Miwaukes, Wil Duncan Sohticns — Business Processing Busness Procasang 22.000
Guaynabe, PR PAM Puerio Rica — Business Processing Business Processing 21,000
Irving, TX Duncan Solutions — Business Processing Butiness Processng 21,000
Sal Lake City, UT Eamest — Loan Orginatans. Consumer Lendng 14,000

T Fushars bulding seid i July 2022 and leased back office and dala cemer space over & 10-yeat laase term
@ Appeoximately 22,000 square feet was vacated and the leate for this space terminated,
@ Mibwaukew placed in sbandanment status in 2022

None of the facilities that we own is encumbered by a mortgage. We believe that our headquarters, loan servicing
centers, data center and other business processing centers are generally adequate to meet our long-term needs and
goals. Our is currently in leased space al 123 Justison Street, Wilminglon, Delaware, 19801,

Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity
Securities

Our common stock is listed and traded on the NASDAQ under the symbol NAVIL As of January 31, 2023, there were
128,941,323 shares of our common stock outstanding and 260 holders of record.

We paid quarterly cash dividends on our common stock of $0.16 per share for each quarter of 2021 and 2022

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

The following table provides information relating to our purchases of shares of our commaon stock in the three months
ended December 31, 2022

Total Humber of Value
Shares of Shares that
Purchased May Yot Be
as Part of Purchased Under
Publicly Publicly
Total Number Average Price Announced Announced
of Shares Paid per Plans Plans or
r share data) Purchased™ Share or P{EEml‘. PIEEmlm
Oct 1 -0Oct 31, 2022 22 % 15.16 22 % 852
MNow 1 - Nov 30, 2022 21 15.74 21§ 619
Dec 1 - Dec 31, 2022 12 16.75 11 § 600
Total fourth quarter 55§ 15.72 54
11 The total raber of shaves parchased inchides sh hated undés the stock progeae dis ot 0 L
with d siock units,

@ In Crecember 2021, our boaed of directers W)St Esllon milt-year shaie repurchase program
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Stock Performance

The il graph c the yearly dollar change in our cumulative total shareholder return on our
common stck 1o that of the S&P 400 Financials and the S&P Midcap 400 Index. The graph assumes a base
investment of $100 at December 31, 2017 and reinvestment of dividends through December 31, 2022,

Five Year Return
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Controls and Procedures

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our with the particip of our Principal Executive and Principal Financial Officers, evaluated the
effectiveness of our disclosure conltrols and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as (the Exchange Act}) as of D 31, 2022. Based on this

evaluation, our Principal Executive and Principal Financial Officers concluded thal, as of December 31, 2022, our
diselosure controls and procedures were effective to ensure thal information required to be disclosed by us in the
reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is (a) recorded, pfocsssed swnmanzed and reporled \mmn the
time periods specified in the SEC's rules and forms and (b)
including our Principal Executive and Principal Financial Officers as appmpriate to allow Imeh- ueasmns raqarwng
required disclosure

Management's Report on Internal Control over Financial Hopcm‘hg

Qur is bie for ing and it internal control over ﬁnamal reporhnq (as
defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Exchange Act). Under the supervision and with the parficipation of

management, including cur Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer, we assessed ma eﬂooﬁwnm
of our internal conltrol over financial reporting as of December 31, 2022 In making this assessmenl, our management
used the crlterla established in internal Control — (ntegrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of

of the y Cor ion (COS0). Based on our assessment and those criteria,
juded that, as of D ber 31, 2022, our internal control over financial reporting was eﬂam
KPMG LLF, an public audited the effectivenass of the Company’s Internal

control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2022 as s!aned in their reporl which appears below.

Because of its inherent imitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevenl or detect misstatements.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness 1o fulure periods are subject to the sk thal conlrols may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Mo change in our internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the
Exchange Act) occurmed during the fiscal quarter ended December 31, 2022 thal has materially affected. or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting




Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The information required by this item will be contained in the 2023 Proxy Stalemenl, including in the sections tithed
“Proposal 1 — Election of Directors,” "Execulive Officers,” “Other Matters — Delinquent Section 16(a) Reports™ (it
applicable) and “Corporate Governance,” and is incorporated herein by reference.

Executive Compensation

The information required by this item will be contained in the 2023 Proxy Statemen, Including in the sections titied
“Execulive Compensation” and “Director Compensation,” and Is incorporaled herein by reference,

Security Ownership of Certain Beneflicial Owners and and Related Matters

The information required by this item will be contained in the 2023 Proxy Statement, including in the sections titled
“Cwnership of Common Stock™ and "Ownership of Common Stock by Directors and Executive Officers,” and is
incorporated herein by reference.

The table below as of D 31, 2022, relating to our equity compensation plans or
arrangements pursuant to which grants of options, restricled stock, restricted stock units, stock units or other rights to
acquire shares may be granted from time 1o time.

Humber of

Humber of Securities

Securities to  Weighted Remaining
e Average Available
Issued Upon Exercise Average for Future
Exercise of Price of Remaining lssuance

Ouistanding  Outstanding  Life {Years) Under Equity
Options and  Options and  of Options  Compensation

Plan Category Rights Rights Plans
Eguity compensation plans approved by security holders:
Navient Corporation 2014 Omnibus Incentive Plan
Traditional options - % -— =
Nel-Settied Options 145,647 1363 1
RSUs 2192517 — -
PSUs 1,358,064 - =
Total AT EE 1363 2 )
ESPP= — — — 1,660,310
Tatal apgroved by security hokders 3697228 31363 il 14,519,585
Total not approved by security holders — 3 — — —
upm-xumlu of a net-seited npunn cptianees m-nnn-d %0 receive the afier-tax spread shares only, The spread lh.nlqualﬂuqmn
of opticns granted less shanes for the opsion cost Accordingly. this column reflects the net-settied option spread shares issuable on
Dmmw 3, m: whare provded PSU:MM 2020 vast aftar a thees- Narwdmw WM!NED-NZZJ urlhdw pounul Nrw‘
ranging from 0% to 150% of the tapet award. Based on thewe-yoar
0 pre-astablshed periormance MoPSUnulml.llIlrefwmﬂmwwmlummnmﬂ =

ﬂ"ﬂm‘
mm;mmmmsmmmmeh;u Farm 10-5 for the year ended December 31, 2027 These 2020 PSUS are shown
above as ounstanding on December 11, 2022, based on the Snal achieved amount (ie.. 115% of the target amount),
Mumber of shares avallable for issuance under the Navient Corporation ESPP a3 of December 31, 2022 The ESPP was approved on Apnl 8,
2014 by the company now known as SLM Carporadion. then our scle sharshalder, 'I‘HESPP became eMectve May 1. 2012 The Company
amended the ESPP eflective November 1. 2018 1o alier the cffering perod for employees of recently acquired subsidiaries. The Company
qmmmﬁemisﬂ?mm! 2018, subject t2 sharehalder approval, to increase te shares Jwaiable for msuance under the plan by 7

m:nmmwmmwmcmunmnmmﬂ 2016 The Compary again amended the ESFF an
u-pzr 2020, the ac for paricds atier Juiy 31, 2020,

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

The information required by this item will be contained in the 2023 Proxy Statement, including under “Other Matters
— Certain Rel and T " and "Corp . and is P herein by reference.

Principal Accountant Fees and Services

'I'ho lnl'ormsmn required by this item will be contained in the 2023 Proxy Statement, including under “Independent
Reg d Public g Firm,” and is incorp d herein by refe
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Exhibits and F ial Statement Sched

(a)

b}
21

31

32

13

41
42

43

44

1. Financial Statements

The following ¢ lidated financial of Navient C and the Report of the Independent
Registered Public Accounting Firm thereon are included:

Report of d Public A v Firm ., S S— - i " F-2
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm ., sk b F-3
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 g " F-5
COnsohdated mlmems of Income for the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020...... F-6
ts of Comp Income for the years ended December 31, 2022,

2021 and 2020 F-7
‘Consolidated Statements of Chsnges m Slnckhnlmrs Eqully ro( me yeals anaed December 31

2020, 2021 and 2022 ... F-8
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows iol the \rears ended December 31 2022 2021 and 2020 F-11
Notes to Ci Financial Statements ... R F-12

2. Financial Statement Schedules

Alwmdmesaremmdbecaussﬂ!eymn i or the ired il ion is shown in the
financial of notes hereto.

3. Exhibits

The exhibits listed in the accompanying index to exhibits are filed or incorporated by reference as part of this
Annual Report on Form 10-K,

We will furnish at cost a copy of any exhibit filed with or incorporated by reference into this Annual Report on
Farm 10-K. Oral or wrillen requests for copies of any exhitils should be directed to the Secrelary

4, Appendices

Appendix A — Federal Family Education Loan Program
Appendix B — Form 10-K Cross-Relerence Index

Exhibits

The Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of October 16, 2014, between Navient Corporation and
Navient, LLC (incorporated by reference fo Exhibit 2.1 lo Navient Corporation’s Current Report on Form
8-K filed on Oclober 17, 2014).

and Certificate of Inc ion of Navient C by reference to
Exhibit 3.1 of Amendment No. 3 to Navient Corporation’s R t on Form 10 (File No.
001-36228) fled on March 27, 2014).

Second Amended and Restated By-Laws of Navient Corporation adopted April 4, 2018 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Navient Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 9, 2018).

Cetificate of Designations of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock of Navient Corporation
({incorporation by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Navient Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K filing on
December 20, 2021),

D i of i 's ies registered under Section 12 of the Exchange Act.
Indenture, dated as of July 18, 2014, between Navient Corporation and Bank of New York Mellon, as
trustee, (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Form S-3ASR filed on July 18, 2014).

First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of 6, 2014, Navienl Corp and Bank of
New York Mellon, as trustee, (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to Navient Corporation’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on November 11, 2006.

Second Supplemental Indenture daled as of March 27, 2015 between Navienl Corporation and Bank of
New York Mellon, as trustee (incorporaled by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to Navient Corporation’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on March 27, 2015,




45

46

47

4.8

49

411

412

413

414

415

416

1011

10.2¢

1031

10.4%

The Third Supplemental Indenture, dated as of July 29, 2016, between Navien! Corporation and The
Bank of New York Mellen as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to Navient Corporation’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July 29, 2016).

The Fourth . dated as of 16. 2016, between Navient Corporation and
The Bank of New York Mellon as frustee (incorporaled by reference to Exhibit 4 2 to Navient
Corporation's Current Reporl on Form 8-K filed on September 16, 2016)

The Fifth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of March 7, 2017 to the Indenture dated as of July 18, 2014
behween Navienl Corporation and The Bank of New York Mellon as trustee {incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.2 to Navient Corporation’s Current Repart on Form 8-K filed on March 7, 2017)

The Sixth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of March 17, 2017 to the Indenture dated as of July 18,
2014 between Navient Corporation and The Bank of New York Medlon as trustee (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.3 to Mavient Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 7, 2017),

The Seventh Supplemental Indenture, dated as of May 26, 2017 to the Indenture dated as of July 18,
2014 between Navient Corporation and The Bank of New York Mellon as trustee (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.2 to Mavient Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 26, 2017).

The Eighth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of June 9, 2017 1o the Indenture daled as of July 18, 2014
batween Navienl Corporation and The Bank of Mew York Mellon as trustee (incorporated by reference o
Exhibit 4.4 to Navient Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on June 8, 2017).

The Ninth al . dated as of [ 4, 2017 lo the dated as of July 18,
2014 between Navient Corporation and The Bank of New York Mellon as trustee (incorporated by
refarence lo Exhibit 4.3 to Navient Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 4,
2017).

The Tenth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of June 11, 2018 lo the indenture dated as of July 18,
2014 between Mavient Corporation and The Bank of New York Medlon as trustee (incorporated by
refarence to Exhibit 4.2 to Navient Corporation's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on June 11, 2018),

Tnn E | I dated as of .Ianual‘;-I 27 2020 (this “Supplemental Indentura®),

Navient Corporation, a Del (the pany”). and The Bank of New York
Mellon, a New York banking corpora‘non as uustee (the ’Tﬂmee ] {mootpmd by reference to Exhibil
4.2 on Form 8-K filed on January 27, 2020).

The Twelfth Supplemental Indenture, daled as of February 2, 2021, between Navient Corporation and
The Bank of New York Mellon as frustee (incorporaled by reference lo Exhibit 4.2 on Form 8-K filed on
February 2, 2021).

The Ti th il I Ind dated as of 4, 2021, b Mavient Ci
and The Bank of New York Mellon as rustee (incorporaled by reference to Exhibit 4.2 on Form 8-K filed
on November 5, 2021,

Rights Agreement dated as of December 20, 2021 between Navient Corporation and Computershare
Trust Company, N.A., which includes the form of Certificate of Designations as Exhibit A, the form of
Right Certificate as Exhibit B and the Summary of Rights to Purchase Preferred Shares as Exhibit C
{incorporated by reference lo Exhibit 4.1 on Form 8-K filed on December 20, 2021).

Form of Navient Corporation 2014 Omnibus Incenlive Plan, Stock Oplion Agreement, Net Setlled
Options — 2011 {incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.22 of the Company's Quarterdy Report on Form
10-Q filed on August 1, 2014)

Form of Navient Corporation 2014 Omnibus Incentive Plan, Stock Option Agreement, Net Settied
Options — 2010 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10,23 of the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q filed on August 1, 2014}

Form of Navient Corporation 2014 Omnibus Incentive Plan, Independent Director Stock Option
— 2011 {ind by reference to Exhibit 10.31 of the Company's Quarterly Report on
FulTn 10- fled on August 1, 2014).

Form of Navient Onrpomnen 2014 Omnibus Incentive Plan, Independent Director Stock Option
— 2010 by to Exhibit 10.32 of the Company's Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q filed on August 1. 2014).
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Form of Navient Corporation 2014 Omnibus Incentive Plan Stock Option Agreement — Net Settled
Options (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
filed on April 28, 2016).

Form of Navient Corporation 2014 Omnibus Incentive Plan Stock Option Agreement {incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Navient Corporation's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on April 27,
2017).

Form of Navient Corporation 2014 Omnibus Incentive Plan F @ Stock Unit
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 1o Navient Corporation’s Quarterty Report on Form 10-0 filed
on May 3, 2018).

Furm of Navient Corporation 2014 Omnibus Incentive Plan Restricted Stock Unil Agreement
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Navient Corporation’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q fled
on May 3, 2013}

Form of Navient Corporation 2014 Omnibus Incentive Plan Stock Option Agreement (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Navient Corporation's Quarterly Report on Form 10- filed on May 3, 2018),

Mavient Corporatien 2014 Omnibus | tive Plan, A ded and Restated as of May 24, 2018
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Navient Corporation's. Quarterly Report filed on Form 10-Q
filed on August 3, 2018

Navient Deferred Compensation Plan for Directors, as amended and reslated effective October 1, 2015
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10,1 of the Company's Form 10-K {File No. 001-36228) filed on
October 30, 2015).

Navient Corporation Change in Control Severance Plan for Senior Officers, Amended and Restaled as
of May 24, 2018 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 1o Navient Corporation’s Quarterly Report
filed on Form 10-Q filed on August 3, 2018,

Navient Corporalion Execulive Severance Plan for Senior Officers, Amended and Reslated as of May
24, 2018 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Navient Corporation’s Quarterly Report filed on
Form 10-Q filed on August 3, 2018.

Navient Corperation Deferred C. ion Plan, A ded and as of May 24, 2018
incorporated by reference lo Exhibit 10.2 to Navient Corporation's Quarterly Report filed on Form 10-Q
filed on August 3, 2018,

Form of Navient Corporation 2014 Omnibus | tive Flan, P @ Stock U t
{incorporated k;y reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Navient Corporation’s Quarterly Raporl m Form 10-0 Med
on May 3, 2019)

Form of Navient Corporation 2014 Omnibus Incentive Plan, Restricted Stock Unit Agreement
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Navient Corporation’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-0Q Fled
on May 3, 2019)

Form of Mavient Corporation 2014 Omnibus Incentive Plan, Independent Director Restricted Stock

{incorp by to Exhibit 10.3 to Navient Corporation’s Quarterty Report on Form
10-Gt fited on May 3, 2019).
/ ded and R Navient C E Stock Purchase Plan (Incorpotaneu by reference
to Appendix A to Navient Corps 's Deﬂnlllvs Pmy Statement filed on April 30, 2019,

Underwniting Agreement dated January 28, 2021 among Navient Corporation and J P. Morgan
Securities LLC, Bardlays Capital Inc. and RBC Capital Markets, LLC, as representatives of the
underwriters named therein (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 on Form 8-K filed on February 2,
2021).

Form of Navient Corporation 2014 Omnibus Incentive Plan F e Stock Unit /
{incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 on Form 10-Q filed on May 1, 2020).

Foemn of Navient Corporation 2014 Omnibus Incentive Plan Restricled Stock Unil Agreement
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 on Form 10-Q filed on May 1, 2020).

Form of Navient Corporation 2014 Omnibus Incentive Plan Independent Director Stock Agreement
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 on Form 10-Q filed on May 1, 2020).
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10.23

Underwriting Agreement dated November 1, 2021 among Navient Corporation and J,P. Morgan
Securibes LLC, Barclays Capital Inc. and RBC Capital Markets, LLC, as representatives of the
underwriters named therein (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1.1 on Form 8-K filed on November 5,
2021)

10.24* Consent Judgment and Orders dated January 13, 2022 between Navient Corporation, Navient
Solutions, LLC and Pioneer Credit Recww Inc and the Attomey General for the State of Washington
as a representalive e of the A iy the Navienl Parties and the State Attomeys
General for the States (incorporated Isy reference to Exhibit 10.24 and the list of States and Localities
that are a party to the Consent Judgment and Orders included on Exhibit 10.24.1, both exhibits of which
are included on Form 10-K filed on February 25, 2022)

10.25¢ Form of Navient Corporation 2014 Omnibus | tive Plan, Perf Stock U
{incorporatad by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Navient Corporation’s Quarterty Reporl on Form 10-0 filed
an April 28, 2021)

10.26 and C ion Agl uateam 14, 202251' and among Nav-enlcomotmn Mr.
Edward J. Bramson, snemorne LP LLC {tog
Sherborme LP and the Sherb D ', ited by refs InExthl‘t
99.1 to the Form 8-K filed on April 18, 2022),

10.27¢ Form of Navient Corporation 2014 Omnibus Incentive Plan, F Stock Unit A
{incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10,1 to Navient Corporation’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-0 filed
on April 27, 2022).

211 List of Subsidiaries,

231 Consent of KPMG LLP.

1.9 Cerification Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,

ez Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Cidey Act of 2002.

29" Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002

2z~ Certification Pursuant to 18 U.5.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-
Onley Act of 2002

101INS*  Inling XBRL Instance Document — the instance document does not appear in the Interactive Data File
because its XBRL tags are embedded within the Infine XBRL document.

101.8CH"  Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

101.CAL*  Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document

101.DEF*  Inline XBRL T }] D ion Linkbase [

101.LAB®  Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Documenl.

101 PRE* Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Documenl.

104 Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted as inline XBRL and contained in Exhibit 101),

Contract or lan or

“Filed herewith

Furnished herewith
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant 1o the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securiies Exchange Act of 1934 as amended, the
Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the und

Dated: February 24, 2023

NAVIENT CORPORATION

By is! JOHN F. REMONDI
John . Remandi
President and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirement of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, this report has been signed below
by the following persons on behall of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicaled

Signature Title Date
Isf JoHN F. REMOHDI President, Chief Executive Officer and February 24, 2023
John F. Remandi Director (Principal Executive Cfficer)
Il JoE FisHER Chiel Financial Officer {Principal February 24, 2023
Joe Fisher Financial and Accounting Officer)
fsf Linpa A MiLLs Chair of the Board of Directors February 24, 2023
Linda A. Milts
_fsf FREDERICK ARMOLD ; Diractor February 24, 2023
Frederick Amold
I5/ EDWARD BRAMSON Director February 24, 2023
Edward Bramson
Is/ Astua, ESCOBEDC CABRAL Director February 24, 2023
Anna Escobedo Cabral
Is! LaRRY A KLANE Director February 24, 2023
Larry A Klane
/s MICHAEL A. LawscH Director February 24, 2023
Michael A Lawson
/5! JanE J. THOMPSON Director February 24, 2023
Jane J, Thompson
s/ Laura 8. UNGER Director February 24, 2023
LCaura 5. Unger
sl Davio L. Yowan Director February 24, 2023

David L. Yowan
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Stockholders and Board of Direclors
Nawvient Corporation:

Opinion on Infernal Conlrol Over Financlal Reporting

We have audited Navient Corporation and subsidiaries’ (the Company) intemal control over financial reperting as of
December 31, 2022, based on criteria established in Internal Conlrol - Infegrated Framework (2013 issued by the

Ci of 5 of the Treadway Cc i . In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all
malerial respects, efl'ecwa internal contrel over rllan.aai reporting as of December 31, 2022, based on crileria
established in infernal Control — Integrated Framework (201 3) issued by the Committee of Sponsaring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission.

We also have audited, in accordance with the slandards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
SlatesJ {PGAOB} the consolidaled balance sheets of the Company as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the related
s of income, comp income, in stockholders” equity, and cash flows for each
cll the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2022, and the related noles (collectively, the consolidated
financial ﬂamﬁmn?s;] and our report dated February 24, 2023 expressed an ungualified opinion on those
lidated financi

Basis for Opinion

The Ci for flective internal control over financial reporting and for
its assessmanl of the el’ladnrmm of intemal cantrol over financial reporting, included in the accompanying
Management's Report on Internal Conlrol over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
Company's internal control over financial reporting based on our audit. We are a public accounting firm registered
with the PCAQB and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. lederal

securities laws and the rules and of the ties and E: C i and the
PCACE.

We conducted our audit in with the st of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to oblain about whether affecti mtemm cnnlml over financial repurhng was
maintained in all malerial respects. Cur audit of internal control over rtin luded obtai

understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk thal a material weakness msls and
testing and evaluating the ﬂesmn and ope(ahng effectiveness of mlsmal control based on the assessed risk. Our
audit also i du as we i in the circumstances. We believe
that our audit provides a reasonahla bws Ior our opinion.

Definition and Limitations of Intemal Conlrol Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal control over financial !epoﬂmg is a process designed to provide
regarding the rediability of inancial i olinanclal for external purposes in
i with ted i A ‘s internal control over financial reporting

includes those policies and pmceames that (1) perlaln to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detai,
accuralely and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company, (2) provide reasonabla
assurance that ransactions are recorded as necessary 1o permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepled accounlmn P“"ﬁm and that lewm and expendilures of the company are being made
only in accord: with aut t and of Iha company; arwd (3} provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or tlrnaly detection of ed ition, use, or d: ion of the s
assels thal could have a material effect on the financial stalements.

Be:ause of its inherent imitations, internal control wm financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements

of amy of ture periods are subject to the nisk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or mat lhe degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

s/ KPMG LLP

McLean, Virginia
February 24, 2023
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Stockholders and Board of Directors
Mavient Corporation:

Qpinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements
‘We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Navient Corporation and subsidiaries (the

C Jas of D 3, 2022 and D 31, 2021, the related consolidated stalements of income,

ive income, ch. in kholders' equity, an-d cashnm for each of the years in the |nreHsar period
ended Decamher 31, 2022, and the related notes (c lidated financial In our opinion,
the: d financial present fairly, in all fnatanal respects, the financial position of the Company as

of December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the
years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2022, in conformity with U.S. generally accepled accounting
principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the slandards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States) (PCAOB), the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2022, based on criteria
established in inferal Control — Infegrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission, and our report dated February 24, 2023 expressed an unqualified opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting,

Basis far Opinion

These i are the responsibility of the Comp 3 Qur ibility is to
express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. YWe are a public accounting firm
registered with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect lo the Company in accordance with the

U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and
the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to oblain reasonable assurance about whether the ¢ i financial statements are free of
matenal misstalement, whether due 1o efror o Iraud Our audits included performing procedures 1o assess the risks
of material of the consoli whether due to error or fraud, and performing
procedures that respond fo those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a lest basis, evidence regarding the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. Qur audis also included evaluating the accounting
principles used and significant tes made by as well as ing the overall p tion of the
conselidated financial statements. We buhwa thal cur audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Critical Audit Matter

The critical audit matter communicated below is a matter arising from the current period audit of the consolidated
financial statements that was communicated or required to be communicated to the audit committee and that: (1)
relates to accounts or disclosures thal are material to the consolidaled financial stalements and (2) involved our
especially challenging, subjective, or i ts, The ation of a critical audil matter does not alter
in any way our opinion on the i d financial taken as a whole, and we are not, by communicating
the critical audit matter below, providing a separate opinion on the critical audil matter or on the accounts or
disclosures to which it relates

Assessment of the allowance for loan losses on privale education loans

As discussed in Notes 2 and 4 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company’s total allowance for loan
losses for private education loans (private education ALL) was $800 million as of December 31, 2022, For the
private educaﬂun ALL, the expected credit losses are the product of a rate model the

C s ofp of default and prepayment as well as loss given default on an undiscounted
basis. The Company makes estimates regarding Iransition rates including prepayments and recoveries on
defaulis including expected future recoveries on previously fully charged-off loans (expected recoveries), The
model used to project losses ulilizes key credit quality indicators of the loan oomulo and predicls how those

aftributes are expected to parform at the loan level in ction with the: conditions over
the contractual lerm of the loans including any prepayments and extension oplions within the control of the
borrower. The private education ALL ince and forecasis of various macro-

economic variables and several forecast scenarios over the remaining life of the loans. The development of the
reasonable and supportable lnlacasls mcnrpmms an assumption that each macro-economic variable will
revert 1o a long-t P are based on faclors not reflected in the quantitative
model

F3




Wa identified the assessment of the private euucamn P.Ll. as a critical auml matier. A high degree of audit
fort, skills and ledge, and auditos t was involved in the
assessmanl. Specifically, the Enc an Dl' the private education ALL
methodology including the method and model used to estimate the projected losses and their significant
assumptions. Such significant assumptions included (1) the forecasted economic scenarios, including related
wekghtings, (2) the reasonable and supportable forecast periods, (3) the transition rates incuding estimated
[ (4) the exp . and {5} the qualitative adjustments. The assessment also included
an of the and p of Ihe model. In addition, auditor judgment was
required to evaluate the sufficiency of audit evidence oblained

The following are the primary procedures we performed to address this critical audit matter. We evaluated the
design and tested the operating effectiveness of certain intemal controls related to the Company’s
measurement of the privale education ALL eslimate including controls over

. d of the private education ALL methodolog

. continued use and appropriateness of changes made to the model

. Identification and ds i of ions used in the moded to estimate credit losses
. of the ive

. performance monitoring of the model

. analysis of private education ALL results, trends, and ratios.

We evaluated the Company’s process to develop the private education ALL estimale by testing certain sources
of data, factors, and assumptions that the Company used, and considered the relevance and reliability of such

data, factors, and assumptions. In addifion, we involved credit risk professienals with specialized industry
and who ted in

. luating the Company's private education ALL methodology for compliance with U.S. generally
accepled accounling principles

. evalualing the judgments made by the Company refative to the assessment and performance testing of
the model including transition rales used by the Company by comparing them to refevant Company-
specific metrics and trends and the applicable industry and regulatory practices

. ing the ¢ i d and perf testing of the model including transition rates by
the model to determine whether the model is suitable for their intended use

. mra!uaung the selection of the economic folecaslad scenanos mduumg 1he weighting of the scenarios,
a by t and relevant industry practices

. evalualing the length of reasonable and supportable lorecas! periods by comparing them to specific
portfolio risk characteristics and trends

. I j the d by comparing them to relevant Company-specific metrics and trends,
the Industry and reg . and to an d recoveries

range

- evaluating the methodology used to develop the qualitative adjustments and the effect of those
adjustments on the private education ALL compared with rebevant credit risk factors and consistency with
credit trends and identified limitations of the underlying quantitative model

We also the iency of the audil evid related to the C
ALL estimale by evaluating the:

. cumnulative results of the audit procedures
. qualitative aspects of the Company’s accounting practices
. potential bias in the accounting estimates.

pany’s private

s/ KFMG LLP
‘We have served as the Company’s auditor since 2012,

MclLean, Virginia
February 24, 2023
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NAVIENT CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
{In millions, except per share amounts)

December 31, December 31,
2022 2021
Assels
FFELP Loans (net of allowance lof losses of $222 and $262, respectively) $ 43525 § 52,641
Frivate Education Loans (net of for losses of $800 and 51,009,
res| 18725 20,171
Investments

Held-to-maturity 60 T4

Other 107 193
Total investments 167 267
Cash and cash equivalents 1.535 905
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 2 2673
Goodwill and acguired intangible assets, net 705 725
Other assets 2,866 3223
Tolal assets 3 70795 § 80,605
Liabilities
Short-term borrowings 5 5870 § 2,490
Long-term borrowings 61,026 74,488
Other liabilities 922 1,019
Tolal liabilities ﬁ,s 8 d
C nents and i
Equity
Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock, par value $0.20 per share,

2 million shares authorized at December 31, 2021; no shares issued

or outstanding = —

Oommon stock, par value 50,01 per share; 1.125 billion shares authorized:

461 million and 459 million shares issued, respectively 4 4
Mdmonal nald—h capital 3313 3,282
ALt ive loss (net of tax expense (benefit) of

$29 and ${4§1 respectively) a7 (133)
Retained eamings 4,490 /3,939
Total Navient C lbefore treasury stock 7,894 7,092

orporation stockholders’ equity ury
Less: Common stock held in treasury at cost: 331 million and 305 million
shares, respectively
Total Navienl Corporation stockholders” equity

Noncontrelling interest — 11
Total equity 2917 2,608
Tatal liabilties and equity 3 70795 § 80,605

Supplemental information — assets and liabilities of consolidated vanable interest enlities:
December 31,
022

a1
FFELP Loans 43, § 52,502
Private Education Loans 17,207 18,147
Restricted cash 3233 2649
Other assets, net 1,356 1,522
Short-term borrowings 4,458 2,188
Long-term borrowings 55,598 67,107
Net assets of consolidaled variable interest entities ] 5205 § 5,525

See financial

noles lo




NAVIENT CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
{in millions, except per share amounts)

Years Ended December 31
2021 2020

2022

Interest income:

FFELP Loans 3 1966 $ 1464 3 1.837

Private Education Loans 1,195 1,181 1445

Cash and investments 62 3 16
Total interest income 3223 2,648 3,298
Total interest expense 2,102 1,316 2,045
Net interest income 1121 1,332 1.252
Less: provisions for loan losses 79 éﬂ! 155
Met interest income after provisions for loan losses 1,042 1,393 1,007
Other income (loss):

Servicing revenue i 168 214

Assel recovery and business processing revenue 336 539 458

income: 32 30 20

Gains on sales of loans —_ 78 —

Gains (losses) on debt repurchases — (73) (6)

Gains (losses) on dervative and hedging activities, net 171 64 (256)
Total other income 616 806 430
Expenses:

 — @ m W

op Bxpenses
Tolal operating expenses e 1207 964
and acquired intangible assel i i and
amaortization expense 19 30 22

R glother 36 26 9
Tolal expenses 831 1,263 995
Income before income tax expense 827 936 532
Income tax expense 182 219 120
Net income s 645 § 717 § 412
Basic earnings per common share $ 454 3 423 § 2.14
Average common shares outstanding 142 170 193
Diluted earnings per commaon share 3 749 § 218 3 212
Average common and commeon equivalent shares outstanding 744 172 195
Dividends per common share 5 64 3§ 64 5 64

See ac noles to ¢ financial




NAVIENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(In millions)
Years Ended December 31
2022 2021 2020
Net income ] 645 § Ti7 § 412
Net changes in cash flow hedges, net of taxes!" ) 220 141 (183)
Total comprehensive income 3 865 § 858 § 229
ki - iy

See ‘Note T - Derivative Financial instruments,”

Ses accompanying noles 1o consolidated financial statements
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NAVIENT CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
(In millions, except share and per share amounts)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

F-8

Accumulated
otner Total

Comman Stock Shares Comman Paldin Compraheniive Retainad Treasury Stockholders'  Noncontroliing

i TeaBLIy Stock capital Income [Loss) _Eamings stock Equity Interest
451,094 879 (235,658,196) 215426583 5 4 5 388 5 o 3 3684 5 (4 33 5 17
— — — - - - 1620} - (620 -
= = - = = 412 = a2 ==
- — — — — (183) = 1 1183 -
- - - - - - 123) - (123 -
- - - - = - @ - [ -
2684056 o 2684098 — 10 = — - 10 =y
— - - 18 - - 18 -
- (30,628,580} (30.628.580) — - - - 14201 (403} —
- (1,189,745 (1,189.745) - - - - s {15 —
— _— — _ -_ _ —_ - — 1
453.778.975 INT.:IN.RI} 186302454 5 4 § M 5 E-l} § 3 0§ ek 5 248§ 14
el EEe——————= = = _— —_—— e

Tota

820)
a2

—5

(123




NAVIENT CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
{In millions, except share and per share amounts)

Accumuated
Additional Otner Total
Common Stock Shares Comman Paid-in Comprabensive Rotained Treasury  Stockholders'  Noncontrolling  Total
“TeaGed  Treasury  Outsnding $tock capital Income (Loss) 9 Stock Equity Intorest Equity
453770975 (267.476,521) 186,302458 3 & 5 . 5 e 5 A3 5 [pBs) § 241 5 W5
= = = = = = "7 = e = 7
= - = ” = 141 = = i = 141
ol 858 258
- - - - - - (107 - (107} - (107)
— - - - - - @ 2) 12)
4850409 = 4,850,409 = ] = = = M = k1
= = = L n - 2 3 2
= (34.371.073) 34371073 - = - - 1630) 1630} - 1699}
- 13,039.019) (3.038.018) - - - vt (40 “n - (an
= = = = = = = = = [E)] (0]
458.629. (304.895,613) 153.742771 3 4 5 3202 5 133 53939 5 (4485 3 2597 % 115 2608
= el A

See accompanying noles to consolidated financial statements.
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NAVIENT CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
{In millions, except share and per share amounts)

Accumulated
Additionsl Other Totsl
Commaon Slock Sharea Comman Pald-n Comprohenilve Rotained Treasury Stockholders’ Nencontrolling
~Tabued  Treasury  Oufelnding stock Capital Income {Loss) @ Stock Intorest

458.629.304 (304.885.613) 1| 5 4 3 3282 % nay s 38§ (4dsy 5 2587 % 1"
— —. — - - - 645 - 645 —

o — o - = 20 — — 220 -

- - - - -_ -_— - - w55 -_

- - - - - - 81 - L] -

- - - e - —_ ™ - je ==
2.458.206 - 2458208 - 12 - - - 12 -
- s — — 19 -— - - 19 —

— (24,811,009) (24.811.008) - - —_ — (400 (&30} -

S (1.180.530) (1.180.532) X = — — 22) 22} -

— —. — = — = = — — (1)
461,087.550 {330.878.152) 130.209.438 5 4 5 3313 & B7 & 4450 5 a7y 0§ 2977  § —

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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NAVIENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In millions)
Years Ended December 31,
Dperating activities
Net income 3 412
o reconcle net inooene lo net cash provided by cpersting adivites:
Gairs) on sale of education loans -_ (78} -
(Gains) losses on debt repurchases - 73 L]
Boodwill and acquired mtangible assel imparment and amortization expense 1% £ 2
‘Stosk-based compensatan expense 1w 2 18
Mark-to-market (gains Jiosses cn dervative and hedging actvites. net 500) (433} 340
Provisions for loan losses ™ ) 155
i de in d t {147) 47
jin payable 150 [55) (113}
Decrease o cther assets 387 145 177
(Decrease} increase in ciher Labilties (208) 268 (52)
Tetal adustments (340§ (15) 575
Tetal net cash provided by cperatng activities w5 T02 87
I sting activities
Edhucation ioans ariginated and acqured 2.081) 18.104) (4.041)
PPrincipal payments on educatan loans 12,540 11,137 1176
Procesds from saies of education loans M 1,588 o
Cther nvisting actvities. net B a3 (1]
Purchase of subsidiary, net of cash acquired = {18) =
Tetal net cash provided by investing actvities 10,585 eern 8,448
Finaneing activities
Barrowings collateralized by loans in trust - issusd 2,243 Te73 7.656
sefateralized by laans in trust - repaid (12,581) (11,183) {11,858}
Asiel-backed commaicial pape! sanduds. et 1.094 [2.180) {1,615}
Long-tem unsesured notes issued — 1.237 a8z
Long-erm unsecured notes repaid 115 {2.702) 1.832)
Cthes inancing activibes. net L 187 ez
Common stock repurchased 1400) 1800} 1400}
Common dvidends pasd {01) ll_? {123y
Total net cash used in financng activities 18.081) (7.334) (7.676)
Nt i [ ) h e 4 cash i
oash equvalents 1220 41 244y
Cash, . d cash e Ll at
beginaing ef pericd 3,578 3537 3,781
b , o cash at
wend of period 3 l,lﬁ ] 15_7! 3 3,537
Cash dsbursements made (refunds received) for.
Irterest ] 1504 5 1.378 '3 2056
Income taxes pae 5 0 5 % 5 i
Income taxes recehed ] 112; 5 {11) 3 —
of the of Cash Flows to
the Consolidated Balance Sheets:
Cash and cash equivalents 5 155 5 w05 3 1,182
cash and L1 3.272 2873 2.354
Total cash, cash d at
end of period 3 4807 5 &ﬂ 3 3.537
Supplemental cash flow information:
Norecash actvies
irvestng actvty - Held-te-maturty asset backed securtes retaned related to
sales of education lcans 5 5 81 s
Opersting activity - Servicing assets ; sales of ad leans = 2 =

See noles o
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NAVIENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Organization and Business

Navient's Business

Navient (Nasdaq: NAVI) p tec -enabled finance and business processing solutions that
simplify complex programs and help millions of people achieve success. Our customer-focused, data-driven services
deliver exceptional resulls for clients in education, health care and government. Leam more at navient.com.

With a focus on dala-driven insighls, service, compliance and innovative support, Navient's business consists of:

» [Federal Education Loans
We own a portfolio of $43.5 biflion of federally guaranteed Federal Family Education Loan Program (FFELP)
Loans. As a servicer on cur own portiolio and for third parties, we deploy data-driven approaches lo support
the success ol our customers. Our flexible and scalable infrastructure manages large volumes of complex
Transactions, simplifying the customer experience and ¢ efficiency.

« Consumer Lending
We help students and families succeed through the paying-for-college journey with inncvative planning
toois, student loans and refinancing products. Our $18.7 bilion Private Education Loan portfolio
demonstrates high customer success rates. In 2022, we originated $2.0 billion in Private Education Loans

« [Business Processing
We provide business processing solutions for approximately 500 public sector and healthcare urganlzaliom‘
and their tens of millions of clients, patients, and Our suite of 1
experience and revenue cycle solutions enables our chents o focus on their missions, oplimize their cash
flow and deliver essential services,

2. significant Accounting Policies

Use of Estimates

Our financial reporting and accounting policies conform to generally accepled accounting principles in the United
States of America cGMP} The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to
make esti that affect the of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assais and liabilities at the date of the hancnal statements and the mpumd amounts of revenues and
ewwses durhq the reporting period. Uncertain and volatile market and economic conditions increase the risk and

in these and actual resulls could differ from estimates, Accounting policies that
|ru:|ucla the rnosl sngrl'icanl Judgments, estimates and assumptions include the allowance for loan losses, goodwill
and intangible asset t and the ization of loan i and using the effects

interest rate method.

Caonsolidation

The consolidated linancial statements include the accounts of Navient Corporation and its majority-owned and
controlled subsidiaries and those Variable Interest Entities (VIEs) for which we are the primary beneficiary, after
eliminating the effecls of intercompany accounts and irancactions.




NAVIENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Significant A {c
We consolidate any VIEs where we have defermined we are the primary beneficiary. A VIE is a legal entity that does
not have sufficient equity al risk to finance ils own operations, of whose equity holders do not have the power lo
direct the activities that most affect the of the enlity, or whose equity holders do
not share proportionately in the losses or benefits of the erllrlmI The primary beneficiary of the VIE is the entity which
has both: (1) the power to direct the activities of the VIE that most significantly impact the VIE's economic

and (2) the o absorb losses of receive benelils of the entity that could polentially be
significant to the VIE. As it relates to our securitizations and other secured borrowing facilities that are VIEsS as of
December 31, 2022 that we consolidate, we are the primary beneficiary as we are the senvicer of the related
education loan assets and own the Residual Interest of the securitization trusts and secured borrowing facilities.

Fair Value Measurement

We use estimates of fair value in applying various accounting standards for our financial statements. Fair value
measurements are used in one of four ways

« In the balance sheet with changes in fair value recorded in the statement of income;

« In the balance sheet with changes in fair value recntded in the acc other ¢ income
section of the of in ' equity;

« Inthe balance sheet for instruments camied at lower of cost or fair value with impairment charges recorded
in the statement of income; and

= In the noles to the financial statements

Fair value is defined as the price to sell an asset of transfer a Hability in an orderly transaction between willing and
able markel participants. In general, our policy in estimating fair value is to first look at observable market prices for
identical assels and habilities in active markels, where available. When these are nol available, other inpuls are used
to model fair value such as prices of similar instruments, yield curves, volatilities, prepayment speeds, default rates
and credit spreads, relying first on observable data from active markets. Depending on current market conditions,
addiional adjustments to fair value may be based on laclors such as lguidity and credil spreads. Transaction cosls
are not included in the determination of fair value. When possible, we seek to validate the model's output to market
transactions. Depending on the availability of observable inputs and prices, different valuation models could produce
materially different fair value estimates, The values presented may not represent future fair values and may not be
realizable.
We calegorize our fair value esnmates aased on a hierarchical framework associated with three levels of price
utilized in al fair value. Classification is based on the lowest level of
input ﬂlat is significant to the fair value of the instrument. The three levels are as follows:

s Level 1 — Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or habiliies that we have the
ability to access at the measurement date. The types of financial instruments included in level 1 are highly
liquid instruments with quoted prices

* Level 2 —inputs from active markels, other than quoted prices for identical instruments, are used to
determine fair value. Significant inputs are direclly observable from aclive markets for substantially the full
ferm of the asset or hability being valued

» Level 3 — Pricing inputs significant to the valuation are unubsen-able Inpuls are developed based on the

best information available. However, significant is by us in developing the inputs
Loans
Loans, consisting of federally insured education loans and Private Education Loans, that we have the ability and
intent to hold for the f ble future are c as held- and are carmed at amortized cost

Amortized cost includes the unamortized premiums, discounts, and capitalized origination costs and fees, all of which
are amortized to interest income as further discussed below. Loans which are held-for-investment also have an
allowance for loan loss. Any loans we have not classified as held-for-investment are classified as held-for-sale and
carried al the lower of cost or fair value. Loans are classified as held-for-sale when we have the intent and ability to
sell such loans, Loans which are held-for-sale do not have the associaled premium, discount, and capitalized
origination costs and fees amortized into interest income. In addition, once a loan is classified as held-for-sale, any
alwaI;e Tor Ioan lesses that existed immediately prior 1o the reclassification to held-for-sale is reversed through
provis




NAVIENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Significant A (€
Allowance for Loan Losses
On January 1, 2020, we adopted ASU No. 2016-13, *Financial Instruments — Credit Losses,” which requires
and of an for loan loss that ther current ted credit

losses (CECL) for inancial assels measured at amortized cost held at the reporting date. Our pricr allowance for loan
loss was an incurred loss model. As a resull, the new guidance resulted in an increase to our allowance for loan
losses. The new slandard impacts the allowance for loan losses related to our Private Education Loans and FFELP
Loans.

Related to this standard:
» We have determined that, for modeling current expected credit losses, we can reasonably estimate
losses that i current and lmacaahed eoonom: conditions over a ‘reasonable and
" period. For Private Loans, we and ble forecast of
\lannus macro-gconomic variables over the remaining life of the loans The development of the reasonable
and supp forecast incorporates an ion thal each ic variable will revertto a

fong-term expectation starting in years 2-4 of the forecast and largely completing within the first five years of

the forecast. For FFELP Loans, after a three-year reasonable and supportable period, there is an immediate

reversion lo a long-term expectation, The modeis used to project losses ulilize key credit quality indicators of
‘with the

the loan portiolio and predict how those are to perform in
economic conditions. These losses are calculated on an undiscounted basts. For Private Education Loans,
we utilize a transition rate model that the of and defaull and apply the loss
given default. For FFELP Loans, we use L rates to and defaults,
The forecasted economic conditions used in our modeding of ted losses are p by a third party.
The primary econoanic melrics we use in the econemic forecast are unemployment, GDP, interest rales,
« loan cy rates and income. Several forecast scenarios are provided which

P it the basel i tions as well as favorable and adverse scenarios, We analyze and

evaluate the alternative scenarios for reasonableness and determine the appropriate weighting of these
alternative scenarios based upon the current economic conditions and our view of the Bkelihood and risks of
the allerative scenarios. \We project losses al the loan level and make estimales regarding prepaymenls,
recoveries on defaulls and reasonably expected new Troubled Debt Restructurings (TDRs).

= Separalely, as it relates to interest rate concessions granted as part of our Privale Education Loan
modification program, a discounted cash flow model is used to calculate the amount of interest forgiven for
Ioans currently in the program. The present value of this interest rate concession is included in our
allowance for loan loss.

» Charge-offs include the discount or premium refated to such defaulted loan
. CECL requires our expecled luture recoveries on previousty fully charged-off loans to be presented within

@ for loan loss . we accounted for our receivable for partially charged-off
|oans as part of our Private Education Loan pom‘oho This change is only a change in classification on the
balance sheet and did not impact retained ol CECL or prowi: and net income post-

adoplion.

« Once our loss model calculations are d, we determine if are needed for
factors nol reflected in the quaniitative model. These adjustments may include, but are not imited to,
changes in lending and servicing and collection policies and practices, as well as the effect of other extemnal
facters such as the economy and changes in legal or regulatory requirements that impact the amount of
future credit losses,




NAVIENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Significant A Policies (Continued)

Al the end of each month, for Private Education Loans that are 212 days past due, we charge off the estimated loss
of a defaulted loan balance by charging off the entire loan balanoe an.d estimating recoveries on a pool basis. These
estimated recoveries are referred to as future i fully charged-off loans.” If actual
periodic recoveries ane less than expected, the difference is inmadlalaty reflected as a reduction to expecled future
recoveries on previously fully charged-off loans. If actual periodic recoveries are greater than expected, they will be
reflected as a recovery through the allowance for Private Education Loan losses once the cumulative recovery
amount exceeds the cumulative amount originally expected to be recovered.

FFELP Loans are insured as to their principal and accrued inferest in the event of default subject to a Risk Sharing
level based on the date of loan These are supporied by contractual righls
against the United States. For loans disbursed after October 1, 1993, and before July 1, 2006, we receive 98%
reimbursement on all qualifying default claims. For loans disbursed on or after July 1, 2006, we receive 97%

For leans di prior to October 1, 1993, we receive 100% reimbursement. We charge off the
amount for which we do not receive reimbursement on the defaulted loan balance

Upon adoplion of CECL on January 1, 2020, the total allowance for loan losses increased by S802 million (excluding
the impact of the balance sheet reclassifications related to the expected future recoveries and PCD portfolio
discussed above). This had a comesponding reduction to equity of $620 milion,

Private
FFELP Education

(Dadtars in millions) Loans Loans Tatal
Allowance as of December 31, 2019 (prior to CECL) 5 64 $ 1,048 § 1112
Transition adjustmenis made under CECL on January 1, 2020

Currenl expected credit losses on non-PCD portfolio"! 260 542 802

Current expected credit losses on PCD portiolio™ — 43 43

Reclassification of the expecled future recoveries on

previously fully charged-off loans® — (588) 588)

Net increase to allowance for loan losses under CECL 260 3) 257
Allowance as of January 1, 2020 after CECL s 324 s 1,045 $ 1,369

"' Recorded net of tax through retained eamings. Resulted in a 3620 million reduction 1o equity.
@ Recorded as an increase in basis of the lcans. No impact to equity

* Reclassification of the expected future recoveries on previously fully charged-off loans (previously refered to as the receivable
for partially charged-off loans) from the Private Education Loan balance 1o the allowance for loan losses. No impact 1o equity
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Investments

Other inv are pr y for cash posted lo o
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalenis can include term federal funds, Eurodollar deposits, commercial paper, asset-backed
commercial paper (ABCP). CDs, treasuries and money market funds with original terms to maturity of less than three
manths

Restricted Cash and Investmenis

Restricted cash primarily includes amounts held in education loan securitization trusts and other secured borrowings.
This cash must be used to make payments related to trust cbiigations, Amounts on deposit in these accounts are
primarity the resull of timing differences between when principal and interest is collected on the trust assets and when
principal and interest is paid on trust liabilibes

Semrms pledged as cnllals(al related to our ﬁemawe portiolio, where the counterparty has rights lo replace the
are cl When th does not have these rights, the security is recorded in

and discl as pedged ln the notes. Additionally, certain counterparties require cash
collateral pledged to us 1o be segregated and held in restricted cash accounts.

Goodwill and Acquired Intangibie Asseis
Acquisitions are accounted for under the acquisition method of accounting which results in the Company allocating

the purdlase pnce 1o the fair value of the acquired assels, and non-co ing it any, with the
P price d to goodwill.
is not but is tested periodically for We test goodwill for impairment annually as of

October 1 at the reporting unit level, which is the same as or one level below a business segmenl. Goodwill is also
lested at interim periods il an event occurs or circumslances change that would indicate the carrying amount may be
impaired,

We complete a goodwill impairment analysis which may be a ive or a quanti analysis d ding on the
facts and circumstances associated with the reporting unit. In conjunction with a qualitative impairment analysis, we
assess relevant qualitative factors to determine whether it is “more-iikely-than-not” that the fair value of a reporting
unit is less than its carrying amwrlt The “more-Hikely- man nof thresheld is defined as having a likelihood of more

than 50%. If, based on first utiliziny approach, we ine it is “more-likely-than-
not” that tha fair value of the reporting unit i less than |ts l:a!nrlnn amounL we will also complete a quantitative
analysis. In conj 1with a analysis, we the fair value of the reporting

unit o the reporting unit's carrying value, including goodwill, If the carrying value of the reporting unit axceeds the fair
value, goodwill is impaired in an amount equal lo the amount by which the carrying value exceeds the fair value of the
reporting unit not to exceed the goodwill amount attributed to the reporting und,

Acquired intangible assets include. bul are not limited to, trade names, customer and other relationships, and non-
compele agreements. Acquired infangible assets with finile lives are amortized over their estimated useful lives in
proportion to their estimated economic benefit. Finite-lived acquired intangible assets are reviewed for impaiment
using an undiscounted cash flow analysis when an event occurs o circumstances change indicating the carrying
amount of a finite-lived asset or assel group may nol be recoverable. If the camrying amount of the asset or assel
group exceeds the undiscounted cash flows, the fair value of the asset or asset group is determined using an
acceptable valuation technique, An impairment loss would be recognized if the carrying amount of the assel or assel
group exceeds the fair value of the asset or asset group. The impairment loss recognized would be the difference
bebween the carrying amount and fair value.
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Securitization Accounting

Our secuntizaions use a two-step structure with a special purpose entity thal legally isolates the transterred assels
from us, even in the evenl of T g sale reatment are also structured to ensure that the
holders of the beneficial inferests issued are nol constrained fmm i of their . and that we
do not maintain effective control over the transferred assets. If these :nlaﬂa are nol met, then the transaction ks
accounted for as an on-balance sheet secured b ing. In all cases, of whather they quality as

accounting sales our securitizations are legally structured to be sales of assets that isolate the translered assels
from us. If a securitization qualifies as a sale, we then assess whether we are the primary beneficiary of the
securitization trust (VIE) and are required to consolidate such trust. If we are the primary beneficiary, then no gain or
loss is recognized. See "Consolidation” of this Note 2 for additional information regarding the accounting rules for
consolidation when we are the primary beneficlary of these trusts.

Irrespective of whether a securiization receives sale or on-balance sheet treatment, our continuing involvement with
our securitization trusts is generally limited to:

«  Owning equity certificates or other cerfificates of certain trusts and, in certain cases, securities retained for the
purpose of complying with risk retention requirements under securities laws.

«  Lending to certain trusts, under a revolving credit, amounts necessary to cover lemporary cash flow needs of the
trust. These amounts are repaid to us on subordinated basis with interest at a market rate

+  The servicing of the education loan assets within the securitization trusts. on both a pre- and post-default basis.

= Our acting as admink for the itizati 0N We sp d. which includes remarketing certain
bonds al future dates
=« Our responsibilities relative to ion and

= Temporarity advancing to the trust certain borrower benefits afforded the borrowers of education loans that have
been secuntized. These advances subsequently are returned 1o us in the next quarter.

«  Certain back-to-back derivatives entered info by us contemporaneously with the execution of derivatives by
cerlain Private Education Loan securitization trusts.

+  The option held by us to buy certain delinguent loans from certain Private Education Loan securitization trusts.

« The option 1o exercise the clean-up call and purchase the education loans from the trust when the asset balance
Is 10% or less of the original loan balance.

&  The option, on some trusts, 1o purchase education loans aggregating up to 10% of the trust’s initial pool balance.
«  The option {in certain trusts) to call rate reset notes in instances where the remarkeling process has failed.

The investors of the securitization trusts have no recourse 1o our other assets should there be a failure of the trusts to
pay when due. Generally, the only arrangements under which we have to provide financial suppor to the trusts are
reg and requiring the buyback of loans

Under the lerms of the transaction documents of certain trusts, we have, from time lo bme, exercised our options lo
purchase delinquent loans from Privale Education Loan trusts, lo purchase the remaining loans from trusts once the
loan balance falls below 10% of the original amount, to purchase education loans up to 10% of the trust's initial
balance, or to call rate reset notes. Certain trusts maintain financial arrangements with third parties also typical of
securitization transactions, such as derivative contracts (swaps).

We do not record servicing assets or servicing liabilities when our securitization trusts are consolidated. As of
December 31, 2022, we had 515 million of servicing assels on our balance sheet, recorded in connection with assel
sales where we retained the servicing,
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Education Loan Interest Income

For leans classified as held-fordnvesiment, we recognize educaltion loan interest income as eamed, adjusted for the
amortization of premiums (which includes premiums from loan purchases and capitalized direct origination cosis),
discounts and Repayment Borrower Benefits. These adjustments result in income being recognized based upon the
expected yield of the loan over its life after giving effect to expected prepayments (i.e., the effective interest rate
methed). We amortize premium and discount on educalion loans using a Constant Prepayment Rate (CPR) which
measures the rale at which loans in the portfolio pay down principal compared to their stated terms. In determining
the CPR, we only consider payments made in excess of contractually required payments. This would include loan
refinancing and consolidations and other early payoff activity, For Repayment Borwwet Benefits, the estimates of
their effect on education loan yield are based on h of historical b of whao are
cligible for the incenlives and its effect on the ultimale qualificalion rate for these incentives. We regularly evaluate
the used to esti the it speeds and the qualmcanon rates used for Repayment Borrower
Benefits, In instances where there are changes to the is ted on a basis to
reflect the change since the acguisition of the loan. We do not amortize any premiums, discounts or other
adjustments lo the basis of educalion loans when they are classfied as held-for-sale.

Interest Expense
Interest expense is based upon contractual interest rates adwshed for the amortization of debl issuance costs,
premiums and discounts. Our interest exp is also for net freceipts refated to interest rate and

foreign currency swap agreements that qualify and are designated as hedges, as well a5 Ihe mark-to-market impact
of derivatives and debt in fair value hedge relationships, Interest expense also includes the amortization of defemed

gains and losses on closed hedge Ir; i that g as hadges. ion of debt i cosls,
i s and hedge-basis adj ils are 0 using the effective interest rate

method

Servicing Revenue

We perform loan servicing functions for third parties in return for a servicing fee. Our compensation is typically based
on a per-unit fee arrangement or a percentage of the loans outstanding, We recognize servicing revenues associated
with these activities based upon the contractual arrangements as the services are rendered. We recognize late fees
on third-party serviced loans as well as on loans in our portiolio ding to the isions of the
promissory notes, as well as our expectation of collectability.

Asser ¥ and Busi F

We account for cerain assel recovery and business processing contract revenue (herein referred lo as rwenue from
with with ASC 606, "R from C with Ci " (Al B

Processing segment and ma majority of the Federal Education Loan segment asset recovery and business

processing revenue is accounted for under ASC 606.) Revenue eamed by our Federal Education Loans segment is

derfved from asset recovery activities related to the collection of delinquent education loans on behalf of third parties.

Revenue eamed by our Business Processing segment is derived from government services, which includes

e i and account processing soluliens, and healthcare services, which includes

revenue cycle management services.
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Mast of our revenue from contracts with customers is derived from long-term contracts, the duration of which is
expected lo span more than one year, These contracts are billable monthly, as setvices are rendered, based on a
percentage of the balance collected or the d, a flat fee per transaction or a slated rate per the
service performed. In accordance with ASC 606, the unit of account is a confractual performance obligation, a
promise to provide a distinct good or service to a customer. The transaction price is allocated to each distinct
performance obligation when or as the good or service is transferred lo the customer and the obligation is satisfied.

Distinct p 9 are based on the services specified in the contract that are capable of
being distinct such mat the customer can benefit from the service on its own or together with other resources that are
available from the Company or a third party, and are also distinct in the context of the contract such that the transfer

of the services is from other d in the contract. Most of our contracts include
integrated service offerings thal include obligations thal are nol separately identifiable and distinct in the context of
our contracts. Accordingly, our contracts have a single | e A limited number of full-

service offerings include muitiple performance obligations.

Substantially all our revenue is variable revenue which is recognized over time as our customers receive and
consume the benefit of our services in an amount consistent with monthly bilings. Accordingly, we do not disclose
variable consideration associaled with the remaining performance obligation as we have recognized revenue in the
amount we have the right to invoice for services performed. Our fees cnrrsspond o ihe value the :us!nmar has
realized from ouwr performance of each increment of the service (for le, an [ d or
coflection of a past due balance).

Transfer of Financial Assets and Extinguishmenmts of Liabilities

Our securmzabons and ollm samed borrowings are generally accounted for as on-balance sheel secured

See ing” of this Note 2 for further discussion on the criteria assessed to determine
whether a transter of financial assels is a sale or a secured borrowing, If a transfer of loans qualifies as a sale, we
derecognize the loan and recognize a gain or loss as the difference between the carrying basis of the loan sold and
liabidlities refained and the compensation received,

We periodically repurchase our outstanding debt in the open marke! o through public tender affers. We record a gain
of loss on the earty extinguishment of debl based upon the difference between the carmying cost of the debt and the
amount paid to the third parly and net of hedging gains and losses when the debl is in a qualifying hedge relationship.

We recognize the results of a transfer of loans and the extinguishment of debt based upon the settiement date of the
fransaction,

Derivative Accounting

Derivalive instruments that are used as parl of our interest rale and forelgn currency risk managemen! strategy
include interest rale swaps, cross-currency interest rate swaps, and interest rate floor :nnllacls The accounting for
derivative instruments requires that every derivative instrument, including certain in
other confracts. be recorded on the balance sheet as either an asset or Bability measured at its fair value. As more
fully described below, if certain criteria are met, derivative instruments are classified and accounted for by us as
either fair value or cash flow hedges. If these criteria are not met, the derp ial ins s are ted
for as trading. Derivative positions are recorded as net positions by counterparty based on master netting
arrangements exclusive of accrued interest and cash collateral held or pledged. Many of our derivatives, mainly fixed
1o variable or variable to fixed interest rate swaps and cross-currency interest rate swaps, quality as effective hedges
For these . at the ion of the hedge the ing is documented: the relationship
between the hedgm instrument and the hedged items (including the hedged risk, the method for assessing
effectiveness, and the results of the upfront effectiveness testing), and the risk management objective and strategy
for undertaking the hedge transaction. Each derivative is designated lo either a specific (or pool of) asset(s) o
liablity{ie=) on the balance sheet or expected future cash flows and designated as either a “fair value” or a “cash flow”
hedge. The assessment of the hedge’s effectiveness is performed at inception and on an ongoing basis. generaily
using regression testing. For hedges of a pool of assets or liabilities, tests are performed to demonstrate the similanty
of individual instruments of the pool. When it is determined that a derivative is not currently an effective hedge,
ineffectiveness is recognized for the full change in value of the derivative with no offsetting mark-to-market of the
hedged item for the current pericd. if itis also determined the hedge will not be effective in the future, we discontinue
the hedge accounting prospectively, cease recording changes in the fair value of the hedged item, and begin
amortization of any basls adjustments that exist related to the hedged item,
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Fair Value Hedges

Fatr value hedges are generally used by us to hedge the exposure lo changes in the fair value of a recognized fixed
rate asse! or liability. We enfer into interest rate swaps to economically convert fixed rale assets inlo variable rate
assels and fixed rate debt into variable rate debl. We also enter inlo cross-currency interest rate swaps to
economically convert foreign currency denominated fied and floating debt to U.S. doillar denominated variable debt.
For fair value hedges, we all of the derivative's gain and/or loss when assessing
hedge effectiveness and generally hedge changes in fair values due to interest rates of interest rates and foreign
currency exchange rates. For fair value hedges, both the denivative and the hedged item (for the risk being hedged)
are marked-to-market through net interest income with any difference reflecting ineffectiveness.

Cash Fiow Hedges

We use cash flow hedges to hedge the exposure lo variability in cash flows for a forecasted deb! issuance and for
exposure to variability in cash flows of floating rate deblt or assels. This stralegy is used primarily to minimize the
exposure to volatility from future changes in interest rates. For cash flow hedges, the change in the fair value of the
derivative is recorded in other comprehensive income, net of tax, and recognized in eamings in the same pericd as
the eamings effects of the hedged itlem. In the case of a forecasted debl issuance, gains and losses are reclassified

o eamings over the period which the stated hedged transaclion alfects Iwe d itis not p
that the anticipated transaction will occur, qalns and losses are rec ified to in
hedge effectiveness, all ¢ of each derivative’s gains or losses are included in the assessment,

'We generally hedge exposure 1o changes in cash flows due fo changes in interest rates or total changes in cash flow.

Trading Activilies

When derivative instruments do not quality as hedges, they are accounted for as trading instruments where all
changes in fair value are recorded through eamings with no consideration for the corresponding change in falr value
of the econcmically hedged item. Some of our derivatives, primarily Floor Income Confracts, basis swaps and cerlain
LIBOR swaps do not qualify for hedge accounting treatment. Regardiess of the accounting treatment, we consider
Ihese derivatives to be economic hedges for risk management purpeses. We use this strategy to minimize our
exposure 1o changes in interest rates

The “gains (losses) on derivative and hedging activities, net” line item in the consolidated statements of income
includes the mark-lo-market gains and losses of our derivatives that do not quality for hedge accounting, as well as
the realized changes in fair value related to derivative net settiements and dispositions that do not quality for hedge
accounting.

Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation

We recognize stock-based ¢ 1 cost in our stat of income using the fair value-based method. Under
this method we determine the fair value of the stock-based compensation al the time of the grant and recognize the
resulting compensation expense aver the grant’s vesting period. We record stock-based compens ation expense net
of estimated forfeitures and as such, only those stock-based awards that we expect o vest are recorded. We
eslimate the forfesture rate based on historical forfeitures of equity awards and adjust the rale to reflect changes in
facts and circumstances, if any. Ultimately, he lotal expense recognized over the vesting period will equal the fair
value of awards that actually vest.
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R ing and Other R D
From time fo time we implement plans to restructure our business. In conjunction with these restrucluring plans,
Iinvoluntary benefit arrangements, disposal costs (including contract termination costs and other exit costs), as well as

ceftain other costs thal are incremental and incurred as a direct result of our restructuring plans, are classified as
restructuring expenses in the consolidated stalements of income.

The Company isters the Navient C i Emplwee Sweranoe Plan and Ilre Na\nenl Corporation Executive
Severance Plan for Senior Officers I an). T des severance
benefits in the event of termination 01' lhe (:1:wnpan:|I ] lull-lrns amnlmmes and part-time smploym who work at least

24 hours per week. The benefits based on base salary, job level immediately
preceding lermination and years of senrloe upon ¥ ion of emy The benefits payable under
the Severance Plan relate to past service, and they and vest. A ingly, we

P fo be paid o the Plan when payment of such benefits is probable and can be

reasonably estimaled. Such benefits include severance pay calcutaled based on the Severance Plan, medical and
dental benefits, and outplacement services expenses

Conltract termination costs are expensed at the earlier of (1) lhe coniract Iermlnalrnn ﬁal& of {2) the cease use dale

under the confract. Other exit costs are expensed as i and if {1) the cost
is incremental to and incurred as a direct result of planned tbsﬂ'llt‘tuﬂﬂq achrmas and (2) lhe oost s not associated
with or d lo generale 1o our cor of the related restructuring activities

Other recrganization expenses include certain intemal costs and third-party costs incurred in connection with our cost
reduction initiatives.
During 2022 and 2021, the Comoalw Incwreﬂ 336 mlllon and $26 million, respectivedy, of restructuring/other

ation lated costs, facility lease terminations and the impairment of a
faciity held for sale. Expense in 2022 pumaﬂlr relates to severance in with the Company's lo exit
(primarity the FFELP asset recovery and ¢ certain lines and other efliciency initiatives

Expense in 2021 primarily relates to facility lease lerminations and the impairment of a facility thal was subsequently
zold as the Company reduced and consolidated its facility footprint to become more efficient.

Incame Taxes

We account for income taxes under the assel and lability approach which reguires the recognition of deferred tax
liabdities and assels for the expected fulure tax consequences of temporary differences between the carrying
amounts and tax basis of our assels and liabiities. To the extent tax laws change, deferred tax assels and liabilities
are adjusted in the period that the tax change is enacted,

“Income tax )" includes (i) tax senefit), which the net change in the
deferred lax asset or liability balance during lhe year plus any change in a valuation allowance and (i) current tax
, which the amount of tax currently payable to or receivable from a lax authority plus
ts accrued for gnized tax benefits. Income tax expense/(benefit) excludes the tax effects related to
adjustments recorded in equity.

If we have an uncertain tax position, then that tax position is recognized only if it is more likely than not 1o be

sustained upon examination based on the technical merits of the position. The amount of tax benefit recognized in

the financial statements is the largest amount of benedit that is more than 50% likely of being sustained upon ullimate

seltiement of the uncertain tax position. We laqulzu interest related to unrecognized lax benefits in income tax
(benefit) and ies, if any, in 9

Earnings (Loss) per Commaon Share

'We compute eamings (loss) per common share (EFS) by dividing net income allocaled lo common shareholders by
the weighled average common shares outstanding. Diluted earnings per common share is computed by dividing
income all d fo common by the weighted average shares ding plus amounts
representing the dilutive effect of stock options outstandi i stock, restricted stock units, and the
outstanding commitment to issue shares under the Employee Stock Purchase Pian, See "Note 10 — Eamings (Loss)
per Common Share” for further discussion_
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Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements
Effective in 2020 and Forward
Rate Reform

In March 2020 (and as amended in December 2022), the FASB issued ASU No. 2020-04, “Reference Rate Reform:
Facilitation of the Effecis of Reference Rate Reform on Financial Reporting,” which provides optional temporary relief
for comp wha are g for the disc of interest rates indexed to the London Interbank Offered
Rate (LIBOR). The ASU pi es ¢ with in the form of and exceplions related to
contract modifications and hedge accounting to ease the burden of and simplify the accounting associated with
transitioning away from LIBOR. Modifications of qualifying contracts are accounted for as the continuation of an
existing contract rather than as a new contract. Modifications of qualifying hedging refationships will not require
discontinuation of the existing hedge accounting relationships. One-month and three-month LIBOR will be
discontinued afler June 30, 2023. Our instrumenis that are indexed to one-month and three-month LIBOR will be
indexed to SOFR after that date. There is $16 billion of debt as of December 31, 2022, that is in either a fair value or
cash flow hedge refationship using LIBOR swaps. We will use the hedge accounting expedients in this ASU when
thase swaps transition lo SOFR. As a resull, these hedges will not result in the discontinuation of the existing hedge
accounting relationships.

Troubled Debl Restructurings

In March 2022, the FASB issued ASU No. 2022-02, “Financial Instrumants — Credit Losses: Troubled Debt
Restructurings and Vintage Di ~ which eli the debt i DRs} ition and
measurement guidance and instead requires an entity to evaluate whether the modification represents a new loan or
a continuation of an existing loan. The ASU also enhances the disclosure requirements for certain modifications of
receivables made to borrowers experiencing financial difficulty, This guidance is effective on January 1, 2023,
Currently, prior to adopting this new guidance on January 1, 2023, as it relates to interest rate concessions granted
as part of our Private Education Loan modification program, a discounted cash flow model is used to calculate the
amount of interest forgiven for loans currently in the program and the present value of this interest rate concession is
included as a part of the allowance for loan loss. The new guidance no longer requires the measurement and
recognition of this element of our allowance for loan loss for new modifications that occur subsequent to January 1,
2023 As of December 31, 2022, the allowance for loan loss included $77 million related fo this interest rate

i for loan loss. This $77 million will release in future periods as the borrowers

P of the
exit their current modification program.
3. Education Loans

Education loans consist of FFELFP and Private Education Loans

There are twe principal categories of FFELP Loans: Statford and Consolidation Loans. Generally, Stafford loans
have repayment periods of between 5 and 10 years. Consolidation Loans have repayment periods of 12 to 30 years.
FFELF Loans do not require repayment, of have modified repayment plans, while the customer is in-school and
during the grace period immediately upon leaving school. The customer may also be granted a deferment or
forbearance for a period of time based on need, during which time the customer is not considered to be in repayment.
Interest continues to accrue on loans in the in-school, deferment and forbearance period. FFELF Loans obligate the
customer to pay interest at a stated fixed rate or a variable rate resel annually (subject to a cap) on July 1 of each
year depending on when Ihe loan was originated and the loan type. FFELP Loans disbursed before April 1, 2006
earn interest at the greater of the borrower's rate or a floaling rate based on the Special Allowance Paymenl (SAP)
formuta, with the inlerest eamed on the floating rate that exceeds the inlerest eamed from the customer being paid
directly by ED. For loans disbursed after April 1, 2006, FFELP Loans eflectively only eam at the SAP rate, as the
excess interest eamed when the bomower rate exceeds the SAP rate (Floor Income) is required to be rebated to ED.

FFELP Leans are insured as to their principal and accrued interest in the event of default subject to a Risk Sharing
level based on the date of loan disbursement. These insurance obligations are supported by confraciual rights
against the United States. For loans disbursed after Oclober 1, 1993 and before July 1, 2006, we receive 98%
reimbursement on all qualifying default claims. For loans disbursed on or after July 1, 2006, we receive 97%
reimbursement.
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“In-school” Privale Education Loans are loans onginally made to borrowers while they are attending school whereas
“Refinance” Private Education Loans are loans where a borrower has fefinanced their education loans. Private
Education Loans bear the full credit risk of the cust Pmam Educati @ Loans lly have a fixed
interest rate with in-school Private Loans ity at a variable rate indexed to LIBOR or Prime indices.
The majority of in-school leans in our portfolio are coslgnsd Sl'l'liil to FFELF loans, Private Education Loans are
generally non-dischargeable in bankruptcy. Most loans have repayment terms of 10 to 15 years or more, and for
loans made prior to 2009 its are typically deferred until after . since 2009 we began lo
ge interest-only or fixed options while the customer is enrolled in school.

As of December 31, 2022, the balance of in-school loans that had been originaled since 2020 was $372 million,
These in-school Private Education Loans are generally ficed rate. In early 2020, Navien! entered info a loan purchase
agreemen! with a third party whereby Navient provid g services lo the third party for the purpose of
onginating in-school loans, and once disbursed in-full these loans are purchased by Navienl The difference belween
the marketing fee paid to Navient by the third party and the premium paid to the third party by Navient for the loans, is
deferred and amortized through loan income over the life of the loans, In October 2022, the agreement was amended
lo a Participation Agreement, whereby Navient purchases a participation interest in each loan immediately after
disbursement, thereby canying the loans on-balance sheet before holding legal titke to the loan, Once the loan is fully
disbursed, Navient purchases the remaining interest in the loan from the third party and full legal title to the loan is
fransferred to Navient,

The estimated weighted average life of education loans in our porticlio was approxi & years at D ber 31,
2022 and 2021. The following lable reflects the distibution of our education loan portfolio by program.

Year Ended
December 3, 2022
Ending %ol
[Dollars in millions) Balance
FFELP Statiord Loans et 5 Thee
FFELP Consolidation Loans, net 27834
Private Education Loans, net 18725 30
Total education loans, net § 62250
December 34, 2024
Ending % of
(Dollars in millions) _Balance _ _ Balance
FFELP Stafford Loans, nel $ 18219
FFELP Consolidation Loans, nel 34,422
Privale Education Loans, net 20,171
Total education foans, net § 72812 100% §  77.243 J42%

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, 84% and 87%, respectively, of our education loan portfolio was in repayment.
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4. Allowance for Loan Losses

Alfowance for Loan Losses Rollforward

Year Ended December 31, 2022

FFELP Education
[Dotlars in milions) Loans Loans Total
Allowance al beginning of period § 262 5 1,008 E ] T2
Total provision — 9 79
Gross charge-offs (40} {370} (410}
E: future on current period gi charge-offs — 14 57
Total ™ 40) 313) (353)
Adjustment resulting from the change in charge.off rate™ — (30) {30}
Net charge-offs [40) 343) (383}
Decrease in exp fuure on fully
charged-off — 55
Allowance at end of penad 3 222 3 800 3 1,022
Net charge-offs as a percentage of average loans in repayment,
exchding the net adjustment resulting from the change in
charge-off rate™ 0% 159%
et adjustment resulting from the change in charge-off rale as a
percentage of average loans in repayment™ —% A5%
Net charge-offs as a percentage of average loans in repayment 0% 174%
Ending total loans 3 43,747 s 19,525
Average loans in repaymant 5 40,332 5 19,796
Ending loans in repayment $ 34372 H 18,770

Chac-ofis 208 repord rt of dicpistid tbiwiies, For Privass Eduoaibion Lot v ohaipk o Bhe #sinaied 1083 of 3 debauled o balanoe
by charging off the entire defaulted loan balance and e36maling recoveries on a pool basis. These estimaied recoveries ar refeoed to 25
“eapectod A, el ulty ™ laars " For FFELP Loars, the recovery is roceived # the me of

An morease in the net charge-off rate on defaulted Private Education Loans in 2022 resulted in 3 330 million rediuction in the balance of
wxpacted future recoveries an previcusly fully charged-off loans.

Al the erd of @ach menth, foe Private Education Loars that are 212 days past due, we charge o the estmated loss of 3 delaulied loan balarce
by charging off the entire loan balance and estmating recaveries on a pocl basis. These estimated recoveries are rafemed to as “expected future.
u&emww’;mwam "mh:rw reccvenes are less th

wnpect

as
‘charged-off lgans. wmmmmanwm:m-mmﬂ thery will be
refiected a3 a recovery through the allowance for Private Educabion Loan losses onoe the cumulative recovery amount evceeds the cumulative
mﬂo\.ﬂoﬂw\ﬂymwwummnﬂ The foliowing table summarizes the actwity in the sxpected future recoveris s on previously fully

Year Ended

December 31

R

[Beginning of period future i fully charged-off loans 5§ in
Expected future recoveries of current period defaulls 57
Recoveries (cash collecled) (56)
Charge-offs (as a resuit of lower recavery & expectations) {56)
End of pevicd exp s fully charged-off loans H 274
Change in balance during period 5 {55)
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4. Allowance for Loan Losses (Continued)

Year Ended December 11, 2021
ate

FFELP Education

{DoMlars in millions) Loans Loans Total
Allowance al beginning of period 5 288 5 1,089 3 1307
Provision:
Ry I of loan sales™ - (107} (107}
Remaining provision e a6 45
Total provision - &) B1)
Charge-affs:
Gross charge-offs 126) (175) (201}
E d future on current period gross charge-offs - 22 22
Totar™ 128) (153) (179)
Adustment resulting from the change in charge-off rate™ — 16) Lgs}
Net charge-offs 286) 169) [§]
Decrease Inm:pamd Tulure recovenies on previoushy fully
charged-off loans" — 150 150
ABowance at end of period 3 262 3 1005 § 1271
Numawmaamamuemnm
excluding the net adjustment resulting from the change in
charge-off rate™™' 06% T6%
Net adjustment resuiting iomlhnolnnna hellalm-dl rale as a
percentage of average loans in repayment™ —% 08%
et charge-offs as a percentage of average loans in repayment 6% B4%
Ending total loans : 52,903 ] 21,180
Average loans in repayment 5 45781 5 20150
Ending loans in fepayment 5 44,390 3 20284
" i with the sale of ¥ 1.8 bilien of Private Education Loans in 2021
@ Charge-offs are reporied ned of expected recoweries. For Private Education Loans we charge ofl m-naodlvnda«d:uﬂlnan halam

by charging off the entire defaulied loan balance and essmatng recsveres on 2 pool basls. These estimated recove

“expected fullare recoweries on previously fully charged-off ioans.” For FFELP Loans, Wrwmmuwmwww

An increase in the net charge-off rate on defaulted Private Education Loans in 2021 resulted in 2 318 million reduction in the balance of expected
fusure ruceveries on previously fuly charged-off loans.

At the end of each month, for Frivate Education Loans that are 272 days past due, we charge off the estimated loss of 3 delauhed loan balance
by charging o the entire loan balance and estimatng recoveries on a pool basis muummwm;mmﬂhn “expociod future

recavaries on previously huly charged: off loans.” If actsal periodic recoveries are less ih od]
enpecied previously tully charged-off loans. wmmmmmpmwnnmm they will be
rafected a5 3 recovery through the allowance for Private Education Loan losses once the cumulative recovery amount sxcesds the cumalative
mmllrnwwuumwm The foliwing table summarizes the actvity in the expected future recoveries on previously fully
ans:
Year Ended
December 31,
(Doltars in millions) ___aon___
Beginning of period Rully ged-off loans. 5 479
Expected fulurs recoveries of curmsnt pariod Galauls 22
Recoveries (cash collecled) (&7)
Chﬂvo-dh {as a result of lower recovery expeciations) {35)
in expected ™
mwmumnmmmmwmmwmm 5 329
Change in balance during period 5 {150)

See "MNote 12 - 5 and " for furshes
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4. Allowance for Loan Losses (Continued)

Sea ‘Note 2 - Signifi i ing Policies” for di of the adoption of CECL on January 1, 2020.
Year Ended December 31, 2020
~ Frivale
FRELP Education
Doflars in millions) Loans Loans Total
Allowance al beginning of pericd E 2] 3 1,048 3 1112
Transition adjustment made uncer CECL on January 1, 2020 260 3 257
Asiowance at beginning of period afler transition to CECL 324 1 1,368
Total provision 13 142 155
Charge-offs:
Gross charge-ofts (49} (216) (265}
Expected future recoveres on curment period gross charge-offs - 32 32
Total® 48) (184) (233)
Adjustment resulting from the change in charge-off rate™ = (23) (23)
et charge-offs (] 1207} (256}
fuure on fulty
charged-off loans'® - 109 108
Abowance al end of period 5 288 3 1088 § 1377
deom“amdwmmmmm
g the changa in
charge-off rate™ 0% 8%
Het adjustment resulting from the change in charge-off rale as a
percentage of average loans in repayment™ —% 1%
et charge-olfs as a percentage of average loans in repayment 0% %
Ending fotal loans ] 58,572 5 22,168
Average loans in repayment 5 48,130 5 20,790
Enading loans in repayment ] 48,057 5 20841
Fwswmwwmduﬁu wom “Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policles.*
@ Charge-ofts d Fior Private Edu ion Loans we charge off the estimated loss of a defaulied loan balance
by charging mhammmmmmmnmgmmmamm: These estimated recaveries are refemed 1o a5
“enpected future fecovenes on previously fully charged-off loans * For FFELP Loans, the s receved at the time of charge-off.

recovery
Anincrease nmmﬂm—d‘rmuw!nhe Private Educasion Loans in 2020 resulted in 2 $23 million reduction in the balance of
y fully charged-olf laans.
Athe .ndufmamm o Procate Educabion Loans that are 212 days past dus. we charge off the estimased iows of 2 detaulied loan balance
charging a pool basis. Thy

by offf the engre & are refered wmmd
WWWMMWWM wmuﬂu&ewwﬂuwhumwmdﬁmh tely

reflacied as a redustion ped-off koans. | achual pencdic recoverses are greater than
nmlmmhnwuaw mmof&ﬁmuimhnemwwmmmwmm
nteeds the cumulstive Smaunt originally expectid bo be recovered. The follawing table summarizes the activity in e expected hitore
recoveries on previcusly fully charged-off loans.
Year Ended
apaRer
(Delars in millions) 2020
Beginning of period exp future on fully charged-off loans H B
Expected hulure recoveries of current period defauls 32
Recoveries (cash collected) 1107)
NM (@ @ result of lower recovery expectations) 1
pericd expecied future recoveries on previously fully charged-off loans 5
mmnmdmwiod H (109)
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4. Allowance for Loan Losses (Continued)

Troubled Debr Restructurings {TDRs)

We somelimes modily the terms of loans for customers experiencing financial difficulty. Certain Private Education
Loans for which we have granted either a lorbearance of greater than three months, an interest rate reduction or an
extended repayment plan are classified as TDRs. Approximalely 77% and 75% of the loans granted forbearance
have qualified as a TOR loan al December 31, 2022 and 2021, respeclively. The unpaid principal balance of TDR
Ioans that were in an interest rate red program as of D 31, 2022 and 2021 was $945 milion and $831
million, respectively.

The following table provides the amount of loans modified in the periods presented that resulted in a TOR,

Aocd it , the table charge-offs ring in the TOR portfolio, as well as TDRs for which a payment
default ccourred in the current period within 12 months of the loan first being designated as a TDR. We define
payment default as 60 days past due for this disclosure.

___ Years Ended December 31, -
(Dollars in millions) 2022 2021
Moditled Toans™ H =0 0% 1§ 264
Charge-offs™' 5 280 § 124 3 157
Payment default $ % 3 21 8 ar

g Represents period ending balance of ioans that have been modified during the pericd and resubied n 3 TOR
Represants koans shat charged off that were classified as TDRs
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4. Allowance for Loan Losses (Continued)

Key Credit Quality Indicators

We assess and the tability of our loan by g cerain risk A
we refer 1o as key credit quality indicators. Key credil quality are | P into the for loan
losses calculation.

FFELP Loans

FFELP Loans are substantially insured and guaranleed as to their principal and accrued interest in the event of
default. The key credit quality indicators are loan status and loan type.

FFELP Loa

December 31, 3027 December 31, 7021
(Bellars in millions) Halance L)
Loans in-schoolgraceidefement' 3 1772 5 2220
Loans in farbearance™ 7,803 8202
Loans in repayment and percentage of sach status:
Leans current 26.004 B4.4% 28.6T0 20a%
Loans delinguert 31-80 days™ 1.247 as 1,808 18
Loans delinguent 81-60 days™ 833 24 20
Loans delinquent greater than 00 days™ 2288 0.8 2112 48
IEEA EXELELOML BN B L e L | —
Total FFELP Loars 41,747 52,003
FFELP Loan aligwance for losses. % 282y
FFELP Leans. net 5 43! 52841
Parcentage of FFELP Loans in repayment TE A% B3 0%
Definquencies 5 8 percentage of FFELP Loans in
repayment 15 8% 10.6%
FFELP Loans in forbearance a5 & percentage of
faans in repayment and forbearance 16.1% 12.4%
— ——

o Leans foe cuntomers whe may stll be aBenting schasl ¢ engaging in sther parmitted educational sctvities and aie not ye! fegquired o make
payments on their loans, ¢ g, residency periods fer medical shudenils o 3 grace period for Bar éxam preparation. s well as loans for
customers wha have requessed and qualify for other permitted proge such as military, P ot sconcmic hardships

@ Loars feor cusiomers wha have used ther aliswable deferment time oo do not qually for delerment. that need additicnal tme 1o cbisn

have e making full dhu 1 hawdsbip of other actors such a5 disaster relel including COVID-10
and

who
relief programs, consistent with lean prog: 5
- The pericd of delinquency is bated on the number of days scheduled payments are contractually past dus,

Loan type:
December 31, December 31,
(Dollars in millions) _ 2022 - N
Stafford Loans £ 14019 § 16329 § 12.310)
Consolidation Loans 25522 31873 16,351)
Rehab Loans 4,206 4.701 495)
Total loans, gross § [ENZTA 52803 § ,156)
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Private Education Loans
The key credit quality indicalors are credit scores (FICO scores), loan status, loan seasoning. whether a loan is a
TDR, the existence of a cosigner and school type. The FICO score is the higher of the borrower or co-bormower score

and is updated at least every six months while school type is assessed al origination. The other Private Education
Loan key quality indicators are updated quarterty,

Private Education Loan Credit Qu, Indicators by Or

S NT2 085 42 0% 1515 S 142§ 820 5 8107 5 17827 1%
e a5 23 A5 1808 []
§ 7% 3§ 4614 3 1E® § 4 § B4 § 0802 3 1053 T00%

3 53 M os b | £ A 13 3 533 § 755 4%
1.887 4514 1.508 1428 533 a.ea1 18,356 L
e R L P £ Rt L |
H 1.7% 35 4814 35 183 S5 1487 § 548 5 0002 § dar 100%
s 1,714 § 880 S L LI 1 5 8 5 2877 14%
—_ ] 147 n L] w1 AT Fol
s iy 1,385 452 15 181 1663 10
— — - - 132 280 1340 7
= = — - 368 8780 9178 47
42 L] 18 217 354 2
§ 1786 3 4014 § 1838 5 1487 § Ti8 § 060z 5 1A T00%
H 1 35 713 45 s 3 7 3 B44T 5 8688 34%
1,748 4843 1.504 1300 511 2188 12,887 o
1,758 § 4614 3 1538 § 1467 § S48 3 0002 3 1 100%
3 122 3 100 3 H 10 3 — 3 B1B4 5 44 33%
1834 4.508 1511 1,457 548 3418 134078 a7
5 1,756 3 4614 3 1538 5 1487 § 548 % 0802 $ 19528 100%
— — — — —
Mat-for-profi ] 1055 5 4M7 3 1470 5 1388 0§ 503 5 028 5 1737 %
Far-prafit 101 207 o8 0 A5 1.578 2158 "
Tatal § 7% § 4814 § 1838 § iaer § 548 § 0002 § 1958 To0%
i s s e N A i —
Allowance for loan
{800
Tatal loans, net 3 18725
St
Number of months im actve fot which a scheduled vad.

Exchading Private Edusation Refinance Loans, which da nol have a codighed, v cosigher rabe was B5% for total loans at December 31, 2022
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aligwance for loan
lasses

Total loans, net

o Numibar of manths im astve repayment for which a scheduled payment was recenved

NAVIENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

021

Priv ion Loan Credit O i i
g T ey

Year as of December 31, 2
Prioe Total

T of Total

3 5188 § 1800 3 1862 3 a8 5 206 3 00808 5 10547 iy
42 15 a7 Fal 8 1.510 1.633 8
3 5.22T 3 2005 3 1808 § 718 § 217 3 11,118 § 21,180 100%
§ @ §_zom §aw I i 1 REIAL
3 4 3 o 3 M 3 17 % a3 TeR § 298 %
5,184 1673 1,680 a7 m 10,082 10087 I
2 2 5 2 — 288 207 2
; !i’ﬁ’ ; E.Eg i 1.5'55 ; ’li § i'? ; H.HE i }‘_‘ﬁ 1&
5 5208 3 1™ 5 awr s 5 5 13 133 § 5438 2%
— 1.824 14 3 150 285 12
— — 1.283 188 L] 248 1.708 a
— -_ - 524 e 80 (] L]
e, - —_ _ 141 2014 10,055 a7
1% 20 21 8 28 an 2
3 5227 § 2008 § 1800 5 e § 11996 § 21,980 100%
3 2 3 3 M s 28 3 758 § 7a2% 4%
5,228 17 se eas agss  13s o8
-] 5227 & 2006 3 1806 % kil £ 11118 § 21180 100%
3 sz .3 e0n B
5 LA 3 3 12 5 - 3 4 85 T8 5 Tam 5%
__sa10 _ aerz _ qssr  mie sy dmso _jasw 05
] 5227 § 2008 § 1806 § 718 § 217 § 11116 § 21,180 1
IR P—
5 4918 3§ 1918 5§ 1771 § 8ty 5 208 5 9241 5 1BTI2 5%
308 a9 128 57 @ 1.878 2.487 12
5 5227 3 Z.008 1600 3 T8 § 217 3 11,098 § 21180 1

Excluding Private Education Refinance Loans, which do not have a cosigney, the cosigner rabe was 85% for total loans at December 31, 2021,
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4. Allowance for Loan Losses (Continued)

Private Education Loan Del ies
TORs
December 31, Dwcembser 31,
2082 2021
Dollars in millions] Balance w Balance ]
Loans in. i 5 153 3 184
Leans in forbearance ™ n 446
Loans in repayment and percentage of each status:
Loans curent 5,356 86.5% 6,023 91.0%
Loans delinquent 31-60 293 & 199 3o
Loans delinquert 61-90 days™ 167 27 20 18
Loans delinquent greater than 90 days™ 378 1 74 42
Total TOR loans in repayment 6,194 100% 6,618 100%
Total TDR loans 6,668 7,256
TDR leans allowance for losses {620 B29)
TOR loans, nel H 5,048 § 6421
Percentage of TOR loans in repayment 92.9% 91.2%
Delinquencies as a percentage of TOR loans in
repayment 135% 9.0%
Loans in forbearance as a percentage of TDR
loans in repayment and forbearance 4.9% §.3%
Laans for cuntomers wiva ane attiending schael o P tivities and are 1o make pay on
thelr loans, @ intemahip pericds. a5 well a3 loans for cust whe b Qs qualify fer cther p prege
such 24 varkous miktary ebpitie deferments.

& Loars for custoerers whao have requested extension of prace period generally during employment mmwmlununwmumud
mhquwmmuwwmwmu;mmnmauunklmmcmﬂb G rebad

loan program servicing policies and procedures.
@ The pericd of deknguency is based on the number of days schedubed payments ire contiaciually past duk.

Dallars in million:

Loans

Loans in forbearance ™

Loans in repayment and percentage of each status:
Loans cument

Loans delinquent 31-60 days™

Loans delinquent 61-90 days™

Loans delinquent greater than 90 days™

Total non-TOR boans in repayment

Percenlage of non-TDR loans in repayment
Delinguencies as a percentage of non-TOR loans in
repayment

Leans in forbearance as a percentage of non-TOR
Ioans in repayment and forbearance

#
E

#
#

“1 Loans for customens wha aoe atlending schecl or ane in cther permitied educational activities and aee net yel requived t2 make payments on their

loans, &.9.. ship pesicds. as well a5 kans for customers whe have requesied and qually for other permitied prograa deferments such as
waricus military whgble deferments,
@ Loams for cuslemerns wha have requesied sxteniion of graze period genarally during employment transiion or wha have lemporanily ceased

making full payrments Mwhlmhe or cthey factors such as disaster rebef, inchuding COVID-10 eefied programs. consistent with estabiished laan
pregram servicang pelicies 3nd peocedunes.
| The pericd of delinquency is based on the number of days scheduled paymenis are cortractually past due.
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5. Business Combinations, Goodwill and Acquired Intangible

Goodwill
The following table summarizes our goodwill for our rting units and reportabl

—_— AsoiDecomberdt,
(Dallars in millions) 2022 2021

Education Loans reportable segment.
FFELP Loans $ 27 3 27
Federal Education Loan Servicing 5
Total 732 2
Consumer mm mnl
Privale Education Refinance e 77
Education Legacy In&mlLom 106 106
Private Education Recent In-School Loans™ 13 14
Total 196 a7
Business Processing reportable segment
Gavernment Services 136 136
Healthcare Services 106 106
Total 22
Tatal goodwill 5 670 3§ 671

" We wrate off 53 mallion of gocdwdl in connecson with the transter of cur ED cortract o 3 third party in October 2021, This gaodwil was
allccated to the ED Somurq:mmmnIWchnﬂEmmuansomm reparting unit based on relative fair valse. The 38 milion was
recorded as part of goodwill and acquired intangible asset e

@ In 2021 we completed an acquisivan Tor 3 purchase price of appaonmately 520 millon I‘M ary purchase price allocaton resulied in
goodnil of 514 milion. The final purshase price, which was completed in 2022, mmmusmm Mummﬁm
purzhade prico was primady allccated 16 developed technslogy.

Interim Triggening Event Assessments

During the second and third quarters of 2022, macroeconomic conditions most notably historically high inflation and
rising interest rates, impacted the industry and markets in which our reporling units with goodwill operate, their cost
structures and, to some degree, their expected 2022 financial performance. Additionally, our stock price declined
during the second and third quarters compared to March 31, 2022 and D ber 31, 2021, due p iy to
uncertainty associated with these macroeconomic factors and the implications of the Biden Administration's proposed
debt forgiveness program. As a result of these factors, we assessed whether a triggering event occumed for each of
our reporting units with goodwill as of September 30, 2022 and June 30, 2022

For each of our reporting units with goodwill including our FFELP Leans, Private Education Legacy In-School Loans
{those which were originaled prior 1o 2014), Private Educalion Refinance Loans, Privale Education Recenl In-Schoal
Loans {those which were originated in 2020 or laler) and Federal Education Loan Servicing reporting units
(collectively, the Loan reporting units) and our Government Services and Healthcare Services reporting units
{collectively, the Business Processing reporting unils), we relevant g ive factors to whether
it is “more-likely-than-not” that the fair value of an individual reporting unit is Iass than its carrying value. We
considered the amount of excess fair values for our FFELP Loans, Federal Education Loan Servicing, Private
Education Legacy In-School Loans, and Private Education Refinance Loans over their carrying values as of Oclober
1, 2019, the last time an independent appraiser estimated the value of these reporting units, since the fair value of
these reporting units was substantially in excess of their carrying amounts. The outiock and cash flows for the FFELP
Loans and Private Education Legacy In-School Loans reporting units have not changed significantly since our 2019
assessment despile worsening macroeconomic conditions in 2022, Likewse, the oullooks and cash flows for the
Federal Education Loan Servicing components remaining after removing the cash flows altributed to the ED Servicing
contract have not changed significantly since 2019.

For the Private Education Refinance Loans reporting unil, for new refinance loan originations.
as of June 30, 2022 were reduced and actual new loan oﬂnl'lallers declined considerably during the second and Ihird
quarters due to the impact of the rising rate volume

cumulatively during 2020 and 2021 resulting in the mmﬂlm unit helding a significantly higher balance of loans than
anficipated in conjunction with the determination of the reporting unit's fair value in 2019. We expect to hold this
portiolio for a longer period of ime than anticipated in 2019, While new originations declined due to the rising rate
environment, prepayment speeds for the reporting unit's existing portfolio also dediined resulting in a more stable
interest income stream partially offselting the impact of the decline in originations. We also considered Navient's
sel?ng liquidity position and its ability to issue Private Education Loan ABS comprised entirely of the reporling unit's
refinance loans,
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5. Business Combinations, Goodwill and Acquired Intangible Assets (Continued)

For the Business Processing reporting unils, we also considered the amount of excess fair value over the carrying
values of these feporting units as of Octaber 1, 2020, when we engaged an independent appraiser to estimate the
fair value of the reporting units, since the fair values of these reporting units was substantially in excess of their
camying values. We consmumd the financial parformance for Imm of these reporting units in 2021 and 2022 during
which the G and i 0 units significantly culperformed expectations due
largely to significant contracts acquired in 2020 and 2021 to l'nnlemem and administer programs under the CARES
Act and perform contact tracing and vaccine administration services. During 2022, these reporting units generated
additional revenue from these I d our B 1o win new busi and
benefited from an increase in demand for llamlunal senvice d’l‘emqs The ouﬂuok and long-term cash flow
projections for both the Govemnment Services and Healthcare Services reporting unis remain favarable and have nat
changed significantly since our 2020 i despite the ic impact of ]
macroeconomic conditions in 2022

The goodwill attributed to the Private Education Recent In-School Loans reporting unit is a direct result of our August
2021 acquisition of Going Merry. In the second and third quarters, we considered Going Merry’s strong performance
in its mission to match students with and assist them to apply for schelarships, institutional aid and government
grants as well as private education in-school erigination velume, which exceeded expectations.

Based on the qualitative factors we considered in relation to each of our reporting units with goodwill, we concluded it
was nol “more-likely-than-not” that the fair value of an individual reporting unit was less than its cammying value as of
Seplember 30, 2022 and June 30, 2022. As a result, the decline in Navient's stock price in the second and third
quarters and worsening ic conditions including rising interest rales and historically high inftalion, and
their impact on our individual reporting unils as we perceived them as of Seplember 30, 2022 and June 30, 2022 did
not constitute triggering events. No further impairment testing was performed during interim quarters in 2022,

Annual Goodwill Impaiment Testing - Oclober 1, 2022

We perform our goodwill impairment testing annually in the fourth quarter as of October 1. As part of the 2022 annual
impairment testing, we retained a third-party appraisal firm to assist in the valuations required to perform a
quaniifative impairment test of goodwill assoclated with our FFELP Loans, Federal Educalion Loan Servidng, Private
Education Legacy In-School Loans, Private Education Refinance Loans, Government Services, and Healthcare
Services reporting units as of October 1, 2022 No goodwill was deemed impaired in conjunction with these reporting
units as a resull of Ihe quantitative impairment test as the fair values of Ine g units were greater
than their respective carry values. Addit fair values ing from h 1 In more
conservative discount rates and growth rates for each reporting unit also yielded fair values in excess of the carmying
values of each reporting unit.

The income approach was the primary approach used to estimate the fair value of each reporting unit. The income
approach measures the value of each reporting unit's future ic banefit d by its d cash
flows derived from our projections plus an assumed terminal growth rate consistent with what we balieve a markel
participant would assume in an acquisition. These projections are generally five-year projections that reflect the
anticipated cash flow fluctuations of the respective reperting units. If a component of a reporting urét is winding down
or is assumed to wind down, the projections extend through the anticipated wind-down period and no residual value
is ascribed.

Under our guidance, the third-party appraisal firm developed the discounl rate for each reparting unit incorporating
such factors as the risk-free rale, a markel rate of return, a measure of volatilty (Beta) and a company-specific and
capital markets risk premium, as appropriate, lo adjust for volalility and uncertainty in the economy and to capture
specific risk related to the respective reporting units. We considered whether an asset sale or an equity sale would be
the most likely sale structure for each reporting unit and valued each reporting unit based on the more likely
hypothetical scenario. The discount rates reflect markel-based estimates of capital costs and are adjusted for our
assessmenl of a markel participant’s view with respect to execulion, source conceniration and other risks associated
with the projected cash flows of i P g unils. We revi and app the di rates provided by
the third-party appraiser including the factors incorporated to develop the discount rates for each reporting unit.

We and the third-party appraisal firm also considered a market approach for the Government Services and
Healthcare Services reporting units, Market-based rnuIIJplos related primarly to revenue and EBITDA, for comparable
pubdicly traded and similar asan of the value of the reporting units
1o assess the reasonableness of the estimated fair \‘HU& derived from the income approach
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We employed a qualitalive approach considenng relevant qualitative factors 1o test goodwill attributed to the Private
Education Recent in-School Loans reporting unit. As discussed above, the goodwill attributed to the Private
Education In-School Loans reporting unit is a direct result of our August 2021 acquisition of Going Merry. We and our
extemnal appraiser finalized the purchase price allocation for Going Merry in the third quarter of 2022. Since the
awusmun Going Merry has exceeded expectations to successiully enable students to match to and apply for

sch aid and grants. . In 2022, private education in-school eriginations
grew 52 pemanl di tati In-school originati are ted fo remain strong in 2023 with our
growth cutlock increasing. In conjunction with our annual goodwill impairment test, we considered these qualitative
factors and concluded that it is not “more-likely-than-not” that the fair value of the Private Education Recent In-School
Loans reporting unil was less than its carrying value at Oclober 1. 2022. Accordingly, goodwill attributed to the
Frivate Education Recent In-School Loans reporting unit was not deemed impaired afler consideration of these
qualitative factors.

We also considered the current regulatory and legislative environment, the current economic environment, our 2022
eamings, 2023 expecled eamings, marke! expectations regarding our stock price and our market capitalization in
relation to book equity. Although our markel capitalization was less than our book equity during 2022, it was
concluded thal our market capitalization in relation to our book equity does not indicate impairment of our reporting
units’ respeclive goodwill at December 31, 2022,

Acquired Intangible Assets
Acquired intangible assets include the following:

As of December 31, 2022 As of December 31, 201
mul Accumulated
Cost Impairment ancd Cosl Imipairment ancd

[Dodlars in mil Basis™ ization™* Net Basis™ e Net
Customer, services and lending

relationships'" $ 218 % 208 1§ 246 § (223) 3 23
Software and technology'™ 119 (108) 1 120 (105) 15
Trade names and 40 (27) 13 40 (23)
Total acquired inlangible assets § 377 § (342) 3 35 § 406 § (351) 3 55

o 10 2022 we impaired a custome relatanuhp asset in the Business Processing reportatle segment for $9 milion,
@ conpunction with the purchase price allocation associated with a 2021 acquisition in the Consumer Lending reportable segment, we recorded
S! nﬂonn!mwlminmrqnh mmm consisted prmariy of developed technology.
amounits cnly if the scquired inzangible assot has been deemed partialy

impaired mnmxmﬂwmunmm-ﬁwmn-dmwmm the cost basis and any accumulated
amortization related to the asset is written ofl
" We recorded amanizaticn of acquined intangible assets of $14 millon, $18 million and 521 milken in 2022, 2021 and 2020, mamr, We will

continug b2 amenmize our intangitle assets with definise useful ives cwer their remaining essmated usetul Ives. We estimate

expense associsted with these intangible assets will be 510 milion. 30 milkon, 50 mibon, 35 millon snd §4 milbon in 2023, 2!21 2025, Zm
and after 2028, respaciively
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6. Bomowings

Borrowings consist of secured borrowings issued through our sect through secured
facilities, unsecured notes issued by us, and other inlerest-bearing liabilities related pﬂmaﬂrf o obligations to return
cash collateral held.

The f table b .
December 31, 2022 December 31 2031
HAverape Average
Intarest Lang Iriternsl Inberest Laong Interest
!Mﬂlhm Term Term Rate™ Total Term Rate™ Total
dabe 1,30 500N 5 ATHH 5E2% 3 7012 § %5 TOM S83% § 701
A — = i | il
Total unsecured S ==t T T e e
130 500 T 582 o2 - - oM £1-] o4
‘Sacured bomowngs:
FFELP Lean
securitzations ' ™ am 208 408 278 - - g4 L
hean
securitizations 128 TA? 12.744 n 13499 543 242 14,074 182 e
FFELP Loan ABCP
w3 LE] E ] 53 1308 262 w7 150 W 432
Prrivate Education
Lean ABCP
tacilties 27: 555 = —  2TM L 108 1182 137 2618
—an 481 - - 121 30 018 - =
Total secured
45T B74 55,808 454 BOXB4 2480 124 ar.17 107 BeTOT
Total befcre hedge
s 2580 Lh ] s 40 AR W 124 T 12 e
ACTIFTENG
! at 450) o = — 57 ot =7
Total 5 !i‘!g E7E% 58 470% ST T3 § TAeE K% STHATS
i e | s e | e e e | e e s
Inchudes prancipal amount of 513 bllkon and 30 of shart-berm debt an of December 21, 2022 and 2021, respectively. inchides principal amount
un?ummﬂnmndwmm-muumbnn 2022 and 2021, respoctively
@ Inchodes § ndsoehnun-lmmmwﬂsaamndwmdmulmlenHELFLwﬂHSmmlm;
:P‘ELPLM Repurchase Facdities) as ol December 31 2022 and 2021, respecively.
o Inchades $1.8 bilion and $2.1 billlon of noneli. 5. doll debt as 1, 2022 and 2021, respectively, which has been

hedged with swaps converting 1o U.5. dollars.

b MMFFELPMWIMW!MMM“!?“MI! of December 31, 2022 as 3 resul of not
maturing by their respecsve contractual matrty dates. Nosses were delivered 1o the trustes, rating agencies and bondhalders alerting them ta
these maturity date defaults, At this Sme, i is expected the bonds will be paid in full between 2030 and 2035, There i no mpact ta the principal
amouni owed or the coupon at which the bonds accrue, and there is no revised contractual maturity date

a mlS??lmﬁmmﬂlime\‘ﬂwﬂmWIM»U’MNEMLNR”SWEWW\mem
Loan Repurchase Facilies) as of December 31, 2022 and 2001, respectively. Includes of leng-term debd relabed to the Privae
Education Lean Repurchase Faclites as of December 31. 2022 and 2021, Jup'anrf

o “Qher” primavily includus e obigation 1o relum cash collateral held related to derivalive expasure.

m Inchudes 5445 bilion and 5555 bilkon of leng-term fcating rate debt as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, respecively. and 5188 bilion and
$18.7 billion of long-term fxed rate debt 2y of December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

- \Weighted average interest rate is 33 of end of pericd.
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6. Bommowings (Continued)

As of December 31, 2022, the expected maturities of our long-lerm borrowings are shown in the following table,

Expected Maturity
Senior

Unsecured  Secured
(Dolars in millions) Debt  Borrowings™  Total™
Year of Maturity
2023 3 — 5 5175 § 5175
2024 1,353 5,669 7.022
2025 551 4,947 5.498
2026 523 4,676 5199
2027 691 4,493 5184
2028-2043 2593 30845 33438
Total before hedge accounting adjustments 5711 55,805 61,516
Hedge accounting adjustments (283)  (207)  (490)
Total § 5428 § 55598 § 61,026

i i S

o We view cur annmaunwwmuamaammlmudnanmumhmmnleim
Howaver. we have projected the expected principal paydowns based cn cur
speeds for purposes of this diaclosure 1o bester refect how we mmdoumhpaddmunrmn mp-qcmd
pmmpalwrlhm:mwx?ﬁ!éndlﬂ!“! billion related to the securitzation trust debt,
The aggregate principal amount of debl that matures in each period is $5.2 billion in 2023, $7.1 billon in 2024, 55.5 bilken in.
2025, 55.2 bilbon in 2026, §5.2 bilien in 2027 and 533.7 bilkon in 2078-2043.

Variable Imerest Entities

We consolidated the following financing VIEs as ol December 31, 2022 and 2021, as we are the primary beneficiary
As aresult, these VIES are accounted for as secured bormowings.

31, 2022
Carrying Amount of Assets Securing.
__Disbt O ding —_DebtOutstinding
_u_ngm in millions) Term Term Total Loans. Cash _ Assets, Net  Total
Secured Borrowings — VIEs:
FFELP Loan securitizations $ 76 § 42675 5 42751 5 42148 § 2705 § 1544 § 46397
Frivate Education Loan
securitizalions 725 12744 13,469 14,168 367 105 14,640
FFELP Loan ABCP facilities 923 386 1,309 1,317 39 44 1,400
FPrivate Education Loan ABCP
facilities 274 = 2734 3,039 122 (81) 3.080
Total before hedge accounting
adjustments 4,458 55805 60263 60,672 3233 1, 612 5,517
Hedge accounting adjustments — 207) (207 |‘.25G
Total § 4458 § 55598 § 60056 $ 50817 § 3783 _553
e B T
Amount of Assets Securing
Debt Outstandi
Other
[Doltars in miﬁma Cash _ Assets Net _ Total
ngs — VIEs:
FFELP Loan securitizations $ — $51841 S 51841 § 52086 § 2073 § 1520 5558559
Private Education Loan
securitizalions 543 14,074 14,617 15,506 505 150 16,161
FFELP Loan ABCP facilities 282 150 432 436 8 15 458
Private Education Loan ABCP
facilties 1363 1.152 2515 2541 63 32 2.736
Tolal before hedge accounting
adustments 2188 67217 69,405 ?0.6-19 2.649 1717 75,015
Hedge accounting adjustments — (110} (110} 195) (195)
Total $2188 § &7.107 S 59,205 5 70, 649 5- 2549 $ 1522 574820
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6. Bommowings (Continued)

Secured Facilities and Unsecured Debt

FFELP Loan ABCP Facilfies

We have various ABCP borrowing facilities that we use to nnanoe our FFELP Loans. quumlly ns avallable under
these secured credit facilities to the extent we have eligible coll; i and ]
capacity under these faciiities will vary and is subject to each ag I's i ti These include but

are not limited to the facility's size, curment usage and the availability and fair vaiue uf qualifying unencumbered
FFELP Loan collateral, Our borrowings under these facilities are non-recourse. The maturity dates on these facilities
range from Movember 2023 lo April 2024, The interest rate on certain facilities can increase under certain
urulmsiancss The facilities are subjecl to termination under certain circumstances. As of December 31, 2022, there
Was appr $1.3 billion g under these facilities, with approximately $1.4 billion of assets securing
these faciities. As of December 31, 2022, the maximum unused capacity under ihese faciities was $101 millon and
we had $68 million of unencumbered FFELP Loans,

FFELP Lpan Repurchase Facilities

We have a FFELP Loan Rep Facility that provides liquidity for the isition of certain Navient:

auction rate securities. Borrowings under the facility are secured by the auction rale securities, The lenders also have
unsecured recourse to Namm Corporation as Guaranlor for any shorifall in amounts payable. Because Ihe facility is
secured by N t-sp issued in previ we show the debt as part of FFELP
Loan sa:mmlmns in the vannus borrowing tables above, /s of December 31, 2022, there was approximalely 76
million outstanding under this facility.

Private Education Loan ABCP Facillies

We have various ABCP borrowing facilitbes that we use o finance our Privale Education Loans. Liquidity is avaliable
under these secured credil facilities lo the extent we have ebgible collateral and avallahlo capacity The maximum
borrowing capacity under these facililies will vary and is subject to each ag ions, These
include but are not limited 1o the faciity's size, current usage and the availability and fair value of qualifying
unencumbered Private Education Loan collateral, Our borrowings under these facilities are non-recourse. The
malurity dates on these facilities range from June 2023 to October 2023, The interest rale on certain facilities can
increase under certain circumstances. The facilies are subject to lerminalion under cerfain circumstances. As of

December 31, 2022, there was app $2.7 billien o g under these facilities, with approximately $3.1
billion of assets securing these facilities. As of December 31, 2022, the maximum unused capacity under these
facilities was 51.2 billion and we had $1.5 billion of d Private Loans,

FPrivate Education Loan Repurchase Faciities

These repurchase facilities are collateralized by the nel assets in previously issued Private Education Loan ABS
frusts. The lenders also have unsecured recourse to Navient Corporation as Guarantor for any shortfall in amounts
payable. Because these facilities are secured by the Residual Interests in previous securitizations, we show the debt
as part of Privale Education Loan securitizations in the various borrowing tables above. As of December 31, 2022,

there was 30.7 bilkon g under these facilities.

Semor Unsecured Dedl

We issued 50, $1.3 billion and $70:0 million of unsecured debt in 2022, 2021 and 2020, respectively.
Debt Repurchases

The following table summarizes activity related to our senior unsecured debt repurchases.

Years Ended Decemnber 31,
Dollars in millions| #22 2021
repur; 5 — 5 x
Gains (losses) on debt repurchases H — 5 73) 8 8)
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7. Derivative Financial Instruments

Risk Management Strategy

We maintain an overall inlerest rate nsk management stralegy that porates the use of

minimize the economic effect of nterest rate changes. Cur goal is to manage interest rate sensitivity by moditying me
repricing frequency and underlying index characteristics of certain balance sheet assets and liabilities so the net
interest margin is nol, on a material basis, ad iy affected by in interest rates. We do not use
derivalive instruments to hedge credit nisk. As a result of inlerest rate fluctuations, hedged assets and liabilities will
appreciate or depreciate in market value, Income of loss on the derivative instruments that are linked lo the hedged
assels and liabilities will generally offset the effect of this unrealized appleuanun of depreciation for the period the
item is being hedged. We view this strategy as a prudent of interest rate itivity. In addition, we
ulibize derr contracts 1o mini the impact of i foreign ge rates on certain
debt obligations that are denominated in foreign currencies. As foreign currency exchanqe rates fluctuate, these
liabilities will appreciale and depreciate in value. These fluctuations, to the extent the hedge relationship is effective,
are offset by changes in the value of the cross-currency interest rate swaps executed to hedge these instruments,
Management believes certain derivative transactions entered into as hedges, primarily Floor Income Contracts, basis
swaps and, at imes, certain other LIBOR swaps, are economically effective, however, those transactions do not
quality Tor hedge accounting under GAAP and thus may adversely impact eamings

Although we use denvatives to minimize the risk of interest rate and foreign currency changes, the use of derivatives
does expose us to both market and credil risk. Market risk is the chance of financial loss resulting from changes in
interest rates, foreign exchange rates and market liquidity. Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not perform its
obligations under a contract and it is limited to the loss of the fair value gain in a derivative that the counterparty owes
us. When the fair value of a contract is negative, we owe the and, therelore, have no credit
risk exposure 1o Ihe counterparty, , he i i has exp lous. We the cmdﬂ risk in
derivative instruments by entering into transactions with highly rated counlerparties thal are reviewed regularly by our
Credit D We also a policy of that all contracts be governed by an International
Swaps and Derivative A i Master Ag D on the nature of the derivative transaction, bilateral
collateral arlanqnmsnls related lo Navient Cotporaum contracts generally are required as well. When we have more
than one outst, with the party, and there exists legally enforceable nefting
provisions with the cmnlemny {i-e., alegal rlghl o nﬂsel(omvable and payable derivative contracts), the “net”
mark-to-market the ¢ party has posted to us, mpmuﬂs exposure with the
counterparty. When there i 15 a nel gati ws our exp s y to be zero, At
December 31, 2022 and 2021, we had a net msnw d tive gain ss llaleral which
has been posted by counterparties to us) related to Navient Corporation demlauvas uli1| mlllan and 58 million,
respectively,

Cur on-balance sheet securitization trusts have $1.8 billion of Euro d inated bonds ing as of D

31, 2022. To convert these non-US dollar denominated bonds into US dollar liabilities, Ihe trusts have entered into
foreign-currency swaps with highly rated counterparties. In adddion, the trusts haue enlarad Into 5468 million notional
of interest rate swaps which are primarily used lo convert Prime don tion loans to LIBOR
paid on the bonds. Our securitization trusts with swaps have ISDA documentation with protections against
counterparty risk. The collateral calculations in the ISDA ion of our securitization trusts
require collateral based on the fair value of the derivative which may be adjusted for additional collateral based on
rating agency crileria req dered within the collal The trusts are not required to post
collateral to the counterparties. Al December 31, 2022 and 2021, the net positive exp on swaps in i

trusts was 50 and 50, respectively.

The table below highlights credit exposure related to our derivati at D 31,2022,

Securitization
Corporate Trust

{Dollars in millions) Contracts C
Exposure, nel of collateral ] 11§ -
Percent of exposure o counterparties with credit ratings

below S&P AA- or Moody's Aa3 100% —%
Parcent of exposure to counterparties with credit ratings

below S&P A- or Moody's A3 —% —%
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yof D Fil ial § Impact

The following tables summarize the fair values and notional amounts of all derivative instruments and their impact on
net income and other comprehensive ncome.

Impact of Derivatives on Balance Sheet

Cash Flow Fair Vabusis Tea Totad
T 3 bee. E%T ‘Dee. Dec.

-!1. M, M. . . 31, n, ",
(Dedlars in millions) M ELTAl 032 FLFA] 022 i 2032 031
Far Valses'
Devivative Assels:
Inkecest rate swaps. Ingecest rate $ — 5§ — 5 85 % $ 1 % 25 8 5 I
Cross-curency interest rafe Farelgn currency and

FWEES Intarest rate - — - . —

Total derrvative sxsets™ - - B ] 3 £] 4
Denvative Luabilites
irtarest rate swags. Interest rate - - 2 - 2 %) (8 {5}
Floor Incame Intetest rate p —

and
Interest rade —

swaps =l )
Tatal dervatve fabiltes™ - 1255: ;lﬂm 70 260}
Hat total dervatives  pE | 1]
i _F'.nm;;nmnmnmunuulnrummwawmmmMmmumummmmm
of master netting on the b, Feet based on net p party wnder masier

naiting agreements and classibed in cther assets o other Rabilities depending mmm-umpmarmmnpnam
@ The fellowing table reconcies gross positons withaut the impact f master netsing ag

Other Assels Other Lisbilities
m . cember 31, Docem . .
% in millions) w022 2001 w022 200
peation § = E 7§ 25) § 1285)
Impact of master netling agreements — [.]] — [}
Derivative values with impact of master netbng
(a3 carried on balance sheet) 58 218 (288} (254)
Cash collatersl (heid) pledged 82} (244) a2 147
Net pasition ¥ (24} § 126) § [198) § 107}

O The folowing table shows the carrying vakue of Kabdfbes in fair vahue hedges and the related fair vahse hedging adjustments 1o these Kablites:

As of December 31, 2022 As of December 31, 2021
ai

ay Frfing W

[Doltar in millions) Value Adjustments Value Adjustments
Short-term barrowings. 3 1280 % (10) 5 - § -
Leng-term borawings 3 8188 3§ (404) 3 8503 § 252
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7. Derivative Financial Instruments (Continued)

The above fair values include adj ts when y for credit risk for both when we are exposed

lo the counterparty, net of collateral postings, and when Ihe counterparty is exposed to us, net of collateral postings.
& net adjustiments decreased the asset position at December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021 by $6 million and

38 rnllwn respectively. In addition, the above fair values reflect ad,|usrman1$ for iliquid denvalives as indicated bya

wide bid/ask spread in the interest rate indices to which the derivatives are indexed. These adjustments decreased

the mhr\?:;el assel positions at December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021 by $1 million and $2 million,

respec

Cash Flow Fair Value Trading
Dec. 31, Dec. 31, Dec. 1, Dec. 31, Dec 31, Dee. 31,

Interest rale swaps 5 83 § 121 $ 62 3 62 5 174 5 284 A
- - - - 60 125 60 125
Cross-curmency interest rate
swaps - —_ 18 21 — - 18 21
Total derivatives § 83 § 721 §_®0 § B3 § ;A ¥ a8 § 37 § w3

Mark-to-Market Impact of Dervatives on Stalements of income

Total Gains [Losses)
ded December

(Dollars in millions) 2072 2021
Fair Vailue i
Interest Rate Swaps
Gains (losses) i nel income L 5 610) § 310 5 301
Gaing (losses) recognized in nel income on hedged items 560 349 (327)
et fair value hedge Ineflectiveness gains (losses) 50 39 126)
Cross curency interes! rale swaps
(losses) income: 63) 104 281
Gains (losses) recognized in net income on hedged items. 96 (55} (272)
et fair value hedge ineffectiveness gains (losses) 33 2
Total fair value hedges' = 83 88 {7
Total cash flow hedges™ — _ -
Trading
Interest rate swaps 130 30 {47}
Floor Income Confracts 41 34
Total trading derivatives ' . L ==
Mark-to-market gains (losses| recognized H 258 § 52§

 incerest expe the of incoeme
@ The accrued inferest income {erpense) on Lar vakue hedges and cath fow hedges it recorded in interes! erpense and i exchuded from tis
table.

Recaeded in “gnins {losses) on dorvalive and hedging actrvtins, nel” in the consolidated statements of incoemd
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7. Derivative Financial Instruments (Continued)

Impact of D on Other C Income (Eqeity)

ars Ended December

2021
s s o

{Dollars in millkions)
Total gains (losses) on cash lm hedges

included in net income {4mﬂme:pm}‘ 26 865 50
et changes in cash flow hedges, nel of tax 5 220 3 141 5 [lﬁi

m Inchices net settement income/expense.

Collateral

The following table details collateral held and pledged related to derivative exposure between us and our derivative
counterparties.

(Desllars in llllllbnll December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
5 244

g

Collateral hebd
CaﬁllmwwnmhmerdeMnsmmwm} 3
at fair value {nat recorded in financial

statements)

Securities al fair value — on-balance sheet securidfization derivatives (not
recorded in financial statements /™

Total collateral held

Derivative assel at fair value including accrued inlerest

Collateral pledged to others:

Cash (right 1o receive refurn of cash collateral is recorded in nvesiments)

Total collateral phodged

Derivative Rabiity at fair value including accrued interest and premium
receivable 3

oy
e

A

12 lals lzle)
A
z

The Company has the ability o sell or re-piedge securities it holds a5 collateral.
@ The trusts do nct have the abikty 1o sell of re-pledge securises they hold as collateral

Our corporale derivalives contain credit conlingent features. At our current unsecured credit rating, we have fully

our come Eahmy position (including accrued interest and net of premiums receivable) of
$0.2 million with our ¢ i in our credit rating would not result in any additional
aollaiemmf:quhmonu Trust rehlad daﬁvallm do nol contain credit contingent features related o our or the trusts’
credi ratings.

F-41




NAVIENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8. Other Assets
The following table provides the detail of our other assels
December 31,  December 31,

{Dollars in millions| 2022 aw
d interesl receivable § 2031 B

Benefit and insurance-related invesimenis 452 462
Income tax asset, net 132 369
Derivatives al fair value 56 218
Accounts receivable 83 159
Fixed assels 74 a5
Other .. S |
Tolal S 2,866 $ 3223

9. Stockholders' Equity

Common Stock

Qur have auth d the of 1.125 billion shares of common stock. The par value of Navient
common stock s $0.01 per share. At December 31, 2022, 130 million shares were issued and outstanding and 19
milion shares were unk but for g stock options, restricted stock units, performance stock
units and i 1t units: for m‘iﬂﬂ and remaining authority for stock-based

compensation plans.

Dividend and Share Repurchase Program
The following table summarizes our common share repurchases, issuances and dividends paid.

{Dollars and shares in millions, except per share amounts) 022 2020
Common stock fepurchased 306
Common steck repurchased (in dollars) 3 3 400
Avarage purchase price per share!!! 3 3 13.06
stock ] 3 600
Shares repurchased related to employee M—bauu
compensation plans®! 12 30 1.2
Average purchase price per share™ 3 1784 5 1365 § 12.86
Common shares issued™ 25 49 27
Dividends paid 3 91 % 107 3 123
Dividends per share 3 64 3 B4 3 64
L Comencn shaves oar phare program. Our board of di authorzed 2 51 b year share
repurchase mm in December 2&21
o axarcinas and vesting of restricted stock for employess’ Lax withbolding clbbgatons and
ahares m\h-u by to satisty cpb

L Commeon shares issued under ow varicus compensation and benefit plans.

The closing price of our common stock on December 31, 2022 was $16.45.
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9. Stockholders’ Equity ( d)
Rigihts Offering
On December 20, 2021, the Board of Directors declared a dividend of one share night (a Right} for

each outstanding share of common stock of the Company, par value $0.01 per share, and adopled a shareholder
rights plan dated as of December 20, 2021 {the Rights Agreement). The dividend was paid on December 30, 2021
Each Right allows its holder to purchase from the Company one one-hundredth of a share of Series A Junior
Participating Preferred Stock {a Preferred Share) for $100 (the Exercise Price), once the Rights become exercisable.
The Rights will be exercisable only if a person or group acquires beneficial ownership of 20% or more of Navient
common stock {including certain derivative positions), subject lo certain exceptions. The Righls expired unexercised
on December 19, 2022,

In connection with the adoption of the Rights Agreement, the Board of Directors approved the Certificate of
Designations establishing the Preferred Shares and the rights, preferences and privileges thereol. The Company has
authorized 2 000,000 of the Preferred Shares, par value $0.20. Such number of shares may be m::leased or
gecreaseo by resolution of the Board of Directors subject to certain imitations set forth in the Certifical

esignations.

10. Eamnings (Loss} per Common Share
Basic earnings {loss) per common share (EPS) are calculated using the weighted average number of shares of

common stock outstanding during each peried. A reconciliation of the numeralors and dencminators of the basic and
diluted EPS calculations on a GAAP basis follows.

Years Ended December 34,
In millions, e share datal 2022 201
umerator:
Net income $ 645 § 77 § 412
Denominator:
Weighted average shares used to compute basic EPS 142 170 193
Effect of dilutive securities:
Dilutive effect of stock options, resincled slock, restricted
stock units, performance stock units and Employee
Stock Purchase Plan ("ESPP) " Z: 2
Dilutive potential common shares® 2 2
Weighted average shares used to compute diluted EPS 144 17, 195
Basic earnings per common share $ 454 § 423 § 214

Diluted sarnings per common share H 448 5 A18 S 212

hs..dnnupmnml.uMnrmuﬂlmmmmmumymnmhwlhhwomdmam-mwuam resicted stock,
restricted slock units, wnits and the 1o 34 shares undar applicable ESPPs, delermined by the
treasury stock method.
@ For N'ﬂr!mw . 2022 202'“2020 stock opsans-wmg approximately O milicn, O milkon and 2 millen shares,
P ] f diited warnings per shase because they were ans-dhutive
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11. Fair Value Measurements

We use estimates of fair value In applying various accounting standards in our financial statements. We categorize
our fair value estimates based on a hierarchical framework associated with three levels of price Iransparency umuzau

in measuring financial inslruments at fair value. The fair value of the items below are
in this footnote.
During 2022, there were no significant of financial levels, or changes in our

methodology used to value our financial instruments,

Education Loans

Our FFELP Loans and Private Education Loans are accounted for at cost or at the lower of cost or market if the loan
is held-for-sale. Fair values are determined by modeling loan cash flows using staled terms of the assets using
mastly ¥ i that are validated against markel transactions when available

FFELP Loans

The significant assumptions used to determine fair value of our FFELP Loans are prepayment speeds, defaull rates,
cost of funds, discount rate, capital leveis and expected Repayment Borrower Benefits to be eamed. In addition, the
Floor Income component of our FFELP Loan portfolio is valued with eption models using both observable market
inputs and internally developed inputs. A number of significant inputs info the models are internally derived and not
observable in active markets, While the resulting fair value can be validated against market iransactions where we
are a participant, these markets are not considered active. As such, these are level 3 valuations.

Private Education Loans

The significant assumptions used fo determine fair value of our Private Ed Loans I speeds,
defaull rales, recovery rates, cost of funds, discount rate and capital leveis. A number of smlﬂwnl inputs into the
madels are internally derived and not observable in active markels. While the resulling fair value can be validaled
against market transactions where we are a participant, these markels are not considered active. As such, these are
level 3 valualions,

Cash and In [ ing “Ri d Cash")
Cash and cash equivalenls are carried at cost Carrying value approximates fair value. The fair value of investmenlts
in commercial paper, ABCP_ of d d dep that have a term of less than 90 days when purchased

are estimated o equal their cost and, when needed, adjustments for hquidity and credil spreads are made depending
ﬂl'l markel conditions and counterparty credit nisks. No additional adjustments were deemed necessary. These
are level 2

Borrowings

Borrowings are accounted for at cost in the financial statements excepl when denominated in a foreign currency or
when designated as the hedged item in a fair value hedge refalionship. When the hedged risk is the benchmark
interest rate (which for us is LIBOR) and not full fair vaius the cost basis is adjusted for changes in value due lo
benchmark interest rales only. Foreign currency ings are re at current spot rates in
the financial statements, Fair value was determined through standard bond pricing models and oplion models (when
applicable) using the slated terms of the borrowings, observable yield curves, foreign currency exchange rales,
volatilities from active markets or from guotes from broker-dealers. Fair value for

debt are made based on indicative quotes from observable frades and spreads on credil default swaps specific to the
Company. Fair value adjustments for secured borrowings are based on indicative quotes from broker-dealers. These
adjustments for both secured and unsecured borrowings are material to the overall valuation of these items and,
currenlly, are based on inpuls from inactive markels. As such, these are level 3 valuations.
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11. Fair Value Measurements {Continued)

Derivative Financial Instruments
All derivatives are accounted for at fair value in the nnanual stalements. The fair value of a majority of dervalive
financial i was by pricing and oplion models using the stated lerms of the

contracts and observable market inputs and are therefore classified as level 2 fair values. n some cases, we ulilized
internally developed inputs that are nol observabie in the market, and as such, classified these instruments as level 3
fair values, Complex o that trade in less liquid markets require significant estimales
and judgment in determining fair value that cannol be corroborated with market transactions.

\When determining the fair value of derivatives, we take inlo account ¢ credi risk for positions where there
is exposure to the counterparty on a net basis by net of collateral held. See “Mote 7 - Derivative
Financial Insm.lmenls loriurmer discussion on methodology. ‘ﬂ\e net credit risk adjustment (adjustments for our

for the " exposure o us) decreased the valuations at

December 31 2022 by 56 mnr.on
Inputs specific to each class of derivatives disclosed in the table below are as follows:

« Interest rale swaps — Fair value is determined using standard derivative cash flow models. Dnmalmas that
swap fixed interest payments for LIBOR interest payments (or vice versa) and derivatives
quarterly reset LIBOR for daily reset LIBOR or one-month LIBOR were valued using the LIBOR swap yield
curve which is an ubsmah!n nput from an active market. These derivalives are level 2 fair value estimales
in the Cher di i g LIBOR interes! payments for anolher variable interest payment
{primarily Prime) are valued using the LIBOR swap yield curve and observable market spreads for the
specified index. The markets for these swaps are generally Bliquid as indicated by a wide bid/ask spread.
The adjustment made for liquidity decreased the valuations by $1 million at December 31, 2022 These
derivatives are level 3 fair value estimales.

+ Cross-cumrency inleres! rate swaps — Fair value Is using ¥ cash flow models.
D tives hedging foreign d bonds are valued using the LIBOR swap yield curve (for both USD
and the foreign-d y basis spreads and forward foreign currency

exchange rams These Inpuls are uhservable inputs fmm active markets. In addition, these amortizing
notional derivatives (derivatives whose nolional amounts change based on changes in the balance of, or
pool of, assels or debt) hedging trust debt use intemally derived asaumphons for the trus! assels’
prepayment speeds and default rates to mode! the notional it nent makes

g the ion features of derivatives hedging rate-reset notes denominated in a foreign
currency. Thesa inputs are not market ohservable; therefore, these derivatives are level 3 fair value
estimates.

Floor Income Confracts — Derivatives are valued using an option pricing model. Inputs to the model include
the LIBOR swap yield curve and LIBOR interest rate volatidties. The inpuls are observable inpuls in aclive
markets and these derivatives are level 2 fair value estimales,

The carrying value of borrowings designated as the hedged item in a fair value hedge is adjusted for changes in fair
value due to benchmark interest rates and loreig Tency rates. These valuations are determined
through standard bond pricing models and opticn models (when applicabie) using the stated terms of the borrowings,
and observable yield curves, forelgn currency exchange rates and volatilities,
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The table he of our fi ial instruments thal are marked-to-market on a recurting
basie. During 2022 and 2021, there were no significant fers of fin. | levels.
Fair Valu on a Recurring Basis
December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

(Dollars in millions) Levell  Lewveiz  Leveld Total Levell  Leveld Leveld
Assels
Derivative instruments '
Interest rate swaps - 55 1 56 - 23 1 224
Cross-currency inerest rate swaps - = — a— - = - = t
Total derivative assets™ — 55 1 £ - prE] 1 prI]
Total - - % § — § 23 5§ 1§ on

- T Dl R it B s e Sre——i
Derivative instruments’’
interest rate swaps 5 =35 @5 s 5% $ =3 s (5)
Floor Income Contracts = - 13 =

o e e . B g
T S BB = Bk

Fair value of derivative insyuments excludes accrued interesd and the value of collateral
Sew ‘Note T — Dedivatve Fenancial *for of positions withcut the impact of master nefing agrasments 1o the
balarce sheet classification.

o Barrowings which are the hedged item in a fair value hedge relasienship and which are adpusted for changes in vahue due 1o benchmark interest
rates coly are not carred 2 full fair value and not reflected in this table.
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11. Fair Value Measurements (Continued)

The following tables summarize the change in balance sheel carrying value associated with level 3 financial

instruments carried al fair value on a recurring basis.

[Doftars in miltions
of period
Tetal gansi{losses)
Included in sarmings'"!
Included in otfwr comprehensive mcame

Settlements

Trarsfers in and'cr oul of vel 3

Balance, end of period

Change in marksto-market gaine/{losses) rnlllnn L]
instruments still held at e reporting date

Included m cehar SoMOTEREnANE MCIME
Setllements

Tranafers in and'or out of evel 3

Balance, end of period

Chmnge in mark-ta-mare! gains/[lesses] relating to
Instruments still heid o the reparting date™

[Doltars in millions)

Total nllm-f[bun}

Included in sarnings’"

Included = wrwmmm incarne.

Sefllements

Trarsfers in and'or ot of level 3

Balance, end of period

Change in mark-to-market nllwtknm'l nldm L]
instruments stil held at tre reporting dat

1 -—
_1 42 : 43
R N W S N—
3 1 3 (83 § — % 82y

Year Ended Docember 31, 2021
- Gwss

Currency Total
Interest Interest
Hate Swaps Hate Swaps Other Instruments
H (L] (204) 5 - 3 1302}
3 B - B4
= z_a = 2
f_"l I - e
5 33 {187) § | 154}
Year Ended December 31, 2020
o
Cross
Currency Total
Imterest Interest Derivative

Ihh M n Rai- m;: Instruments
) i m§ 53)

8 m - 23

3 % _1 2

=i _] o

5 5 3 273 § 1 3 276

L “Irsciuded in sarmirngs” s compraed af the following amounts recorded in the specified line fem in the consskdated statements of
inccme

Dollars in millions)

Years Ended December 11,

{Dolisrs i il
Gairs (lesses) on dervalive and hedging actvilies. net

Interest supense
Tetal

L] Recarded in “gans (lased) on derrvalive and
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The following table presents the significant inputs that are unobservable or from inactive markets used in the
recurring valuations of the level 3 financial instruments detalled above,

Fair Value at Range and
December 31, Valuation Woh
:%Ilu in millions) 2022 Technique Input Average
vatives
Prime/LIBOR basis swaps Discounted cash  Constant Prepayment
$ (2) flow Rate 10%
Bid/ask adjustment lo
discount rate 0.08
Cross-currency interest rale Discounted cash Constant Prepayment
swaps (253) flow Rate 5%
Ofther -
Tatal 5 {255)

The significant inputs that are unobservable or from inactive markets related to our level 3 derivatives detailed in the
fable above would be expected lo have the following impacts to the valuations:

«  Prime/LIBOR basis swaps — These swaps do not actively trade in the markets as indicated by a wide
bidiask spread. A wider bid/ask spread will resultin a decrease in the overall valuation. In addition. the
uncbservable inputs include Constant Pr it Rates of the frust the swap
references. A decrease in this input will result in a longer weighted averaw life of the swap which will
increase the value for swaps in a gain position and decrease the value for swaps in a loss position,
everything else equal The opposite is true for an increase in the input.

« Cross-currency interest rate swaps — The unobservable inputs used in these valuations are Constant
Prepayment Rates of the underlying securitization frust the swap references. A decrease in this input wil
resull in a longer weighted average ke of the swap. All else equal in a typical currency markel, this will result
in a decrease lo the valuation due to the delay in the cash fows of the currency exchanges as well as
diminished lquidity in the forward exchange markels as you increase the term. The opposite is true for an
increase in the input.

Thmaqu table summarizes the fair values of our financial assels and Eabilities, including derivative financial
ins enis

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Carrying Carrying
(Dellars in millioms) Fair Value Valus Difference Falr Vahse Value Difference
Eaming assets
FFELP Loans S5 41426 § 43525 5 (2089) § 53632 5 52641 S5 991
Private Education Loans 17.880 18,725 (B45) 21,140 20171 969
Cash and investments 4874 4.974 — 3,845 3,845 —_
Total eaming assets 64,280 67224 2.944) TEE1T 76,657 1,960
Interest-bearing labilities
Shor-term borrowings 5.879 S.B870 @) 2,452 2,490 2)
Long-erm bomowings 57 552 61,026 3374 74,548 74,488 (80)
Total interest-bearing liabilities. 63,531 66,895 3,365 77,040 76,978 (82)
Derivative financial instruments
Fioer Income Confracts - — - (65) (65} =
Interest rale swaps 51 51 - 218 219 -
g:::&cumymmm (253) (253) - {190) (190) -
T —_— — — —

Excess of net asset fair value over

canmying value 3 421 s 1898
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12. C C and

Legal Proceedings

We and our subsidiaries and affiliates are subject to vanous claims, lawsuits and other actons thal arise in the
normal course of business. We believe thal these claims, lawsuits and other actions will not, individually or in the
aggregate, have a malerial adverse effect on our business, financial condition o results of operations, excapt as
otherwise disclosed. Most of these matters are claims including individual and class action lawsuits against our
servicing or business Pprocessing subsidiaries alleging the viclation of stale or federal laws in connection with

g o on their ion loans and other debls

In the erdinary cou!se of our business, the Company and our subsidiaries and affiliates receive information and

ds from various enfities including Slammtnmeys General, US,

dividual of © and These req may
be infomananal reguiatory or anrorr.emenl in mature and mav relate to our i . Ihe s In which
we operate, of companies wilh whom we conduct business, Generally, our practice has been and continues 10 be to
cooperate with these bodies and to be respensive to any such requests.

The number of these inquiries and the volume of related information demands continue to increase and therefore
continue to increase the ime, cosls and resources we must dedicate to timely respond to these requests and may,
depending on their outcome, result in nts of fines and

Certain Cases

In January 2017, the Consumer Financial Protection Bureau (the CFPB) and Attorneys General fof the State of
linois and the State of Washington initiated civil actions naming Navient Corporation and several of its subsidiaries
as defendants alleging violations of certain Federal and State consumer protection statules, including the CFPA,
FCRA, FDCPA and various slate consumer protection laws. The Allormeys General for the States of Pennsylvania,
California, Mississippi, and New Jersey also inifiated actions against the Company and certain subsidiaries alleging
visdations of various state and federal consumer prolection laws based upon similar alleged acts of failures lo act. In
addifion to these matters, a number of lawsuits have been filed by nongovernmental parties or, in the future, may be
filed by additional g tal or nongo parties seeking damages or other remedies related to similar
Issues raised by the CFPE and the State Attorneys General. In January 2022, we entered into a series of Consenl
Judgment and Orders (the “Agreements”) with 40 Stale Attormeys General to resolve all matters in dnspule redated to
the State Attorneys General cases as well as the related investi civil iImvestig ds and
inquiries from various other state regulators. These Rgraemnts do not resolve the litigation involving the Company
and the CFPB. The Company has cancelied the loan balance of approximately 66,000 borrowers with qualifying
Private Education Loans that were originated largely between 2002 and 2010 and later defaulted and charged off
The loans cancelled have aggregate of appr $1.7 billion. The expense to the
Company to cancel these loans was awruxlnam!\' $50 million which represents the amount of expected future
recoveries of these charged-off loans on the balance sheet. In addition, the Company agreed to make a one-time
payment of approximately $145 mallion to the states. In the fourth quarter of 2021 when such loss bacame probable,
the Company recognized tolal regulatory expenses of approximately $205 milion related lo this matler.
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12. C C and (Continued)

As the Company has previously staled, we believe the allegations in the CFPB suit are Tavse and that they improperly
seek 1o impose penalties on Navient based on new, ed servicing st ]
refroactively against only one servicer. We therefore have denied these allegations and are vigorously defending
against the allegations in that case. At this point in time, it is reasonably possible that a loss conlingency exists;
however, the Company is unable o anhll:‘loaﬁe the timing of a resolution or the impact Ihat an adverse ruling in the
CFPE case may have on the Ci | position, lquidity, results of operation or cash flows.
As aresull, it is not possible at this time Io estimale a range of polential exposure, if any, for amounts that may be
payable in conmection with this matter and reserves have not been established. Itis possible that an adverse ruling or
rulings may have a material adverse impact on the Company.

The Company has been named as defendant in a number of pulative class aclion cases alleging violations of various
state and federal consumer protection laws including the Telephone Consumer Protection Act (TCPA), the Consumer
Financial Protection Act of 2010 (CFPA), the Fair Credit Reporting Act (FCRA), the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act
(FDCPA), in adversarial proceedings under the U.S, Bankruplcy Code, and various state consumer protection laws,
Al this point in time, the Company is unabile to anticipate the timing of a resclution or the impact that these legal
proceedings may have on the Company’s consolidated financial position, liquidity, results of operation or cash flows.
As a result, it is not possible at this time o estimate a range of potential exposure, if any, for amounts thal may be
payable in connection with these matlers and reserves have not been established. It is possible that an adverse
ruling or rulings may have a material adverse impact on the Company

Regulatory Matters

In addition, Navient and its are subject to or regulation by various federal reguiatory, state
licensing or other regulalory agencies as part ol its ordinary course of business including the SEC, CFPB, FFIEC and
ED, llems or mallers similar to or different from those described above may arise during the course of those

We

y receve or from various regi entities or bodies or government
agencies conceming our business or our assets, Generally, the Company endeavors to cooperate with each such
inquiry or request. The Company has CIDs or from multiple State Attorneys General,

inciuding for the District of Columbia, Kansas, quon Colorado, New Jersey, New Y ork and Indiana that are similar
to the CIDs or subpoenas that preceded the lawsuits referenced am Those Cle im:l subpoenas have been
resolved as part of the Company’s setllement with the State A neral. Hess, we have and, in the
future, may receive additional CIDs or subpoenas and other hqurlas I'rom theze or other Attorneys General with
respect to similar or different matters

Under the terms of the ion and D between the Company and SLM BankCo, Navient
agreed lo indemnify SLM BankCo for claims, aclmns damages, losses of expenses thal may arise from the conduct
of activities of pre-Spin-Off SLM BankCo occurring pricr to the Spin-Off other than those specifically excluded in that
agreement. Also. as part of the Separation and Distribution Agreement, SLM BankCo agreed to indemnify Navient for
certain claims. aclions, damages, losses or expenses subject to the terms. conditions and hmitations sel forth in that
agreement. As a result, subject lo the terms, conditions and lmitations set forth in thal agreement, Mavient agreed lo
indemnify and hold harmless Sallie Mae and its subsidiaries, including Sallie Mae Bank from liabdities arising out of
the regulatory matters and CFFB and State Attoreys General lawsuits mentioned above. In addition, we asserted
various claims for indemnification against Sallie Mae and Sallie Mae Bank for such specifically excluded items arising
out of the CFPB and the State Aftorneys General lawsuits if and to the extent any indemnified labilities exist now or
in the future. Navient has no related lo matters with SLM BankCo as of December 31, 2022
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O1G Audit
The Office of the Inspector General (the O1G) of ED an audit reg. g Special A

{SAP) on September 10, 2007. In September 2013, we received the final audi delarmmllon of Fedelal Student Aid
{the Final Audit Determination) on the final audit report issued by the OIG in August 2009 related to this audit. The
Final Audit Determination concurred with the final audit report issued by the OIG and instructed us to make
adjustment to our government biling to reflect the policy determination, In August 2016, we fled our notice of appeal
1o the Administrative Actions and Appeals Service Group of ED, and a hearing was held in April 2017, In March 2019,
the administrative law judge hearing the appeal affimed the audit's findings, holding the :rnﬂxlsmg Dear Colleague
letter relied upon by the Company and other industry participants was inconst with the st;
creating the SAP rules applicable to loans funded by certain types of debt obligations at issue, \We appealed the

alive law judge’s decision to the Secretary of Education given Navient's adn 1o ED-issued
and the potential impact on participants in any ED program student loan servicers if such guidance is deemed
unreliable and may not be relied upon. In January 2021, the Acr.mn Secre!anr oi Education upheld the decision of the
administrative law judge. In Marcn 2021 we filed a complaint for d in federal court seslunq to sel
aside the Acting S i to believe that our SAP billing p were propes
then-existing ED uudnnce and lack of awucabae regulations. We filed a lawsuit in federal court maﬂemlnu the
Acting S y's decision. On D ber 16, 2022, the court determined that ED falled to adequately assess our
reifance upon the issued Dear Coll letter, granted our Motion for Summary Judgment and ordered
that the Acting Secretary's decision dated January 15, 2021 be vacated and remanded to ED for further proceedings.
We conlinue 1o believe that our SAP billing practices were proper, considering then-existing ED quidance and lack of
applicable regulations. The Company first established a reserve for this matter in 2014 and increased the reserve in
2020 in response to the decision by the Acting Secretary. We do nol believe, at this ime, that an adverse ruling upon
remand will have a material effect on the Company as a whole.

Contingencies

In the ordinary course of business, we and our subsidiaries are defendants in or parties to pending and threatened
legal actions and proceedings including actions brought on behall of various classes of claimants. These actions and
proceedings may be based on alleged violations of consumer protection, securities, employment and other laws. In
certain of these actions and proceedings. claims for substantial monetary damage are asserted against us and our
subsidiaries. We and our subsidiaries are also subject to potential unasserted claims by third parties.

In the Uﬂinanr CDIIM of business, we and our i are subject | g . Information
L 3 liries and ir q . In connection with formal and rnlomal inquiries ll'l these cases, We
and our ies receive requ and orders for its, lestimony and inf n 1

with various aspects of our regulated achwhss

We are required to establish reserves for litigation and :egualon- matters where those matters present loss
contingencies that are both probable and ible. When ies are not both probable and
we do not establish reserves.

In view of the inherent difficulty of predicting the outcome of litigation and regulatory matters, we may not be able to
predict what the eventual outcome of the pending matters will be, what the timing or the uitimate resolution of these
matters will be, or what the eventual loss, fines or penaities, if any, related to each pending matter may be,

Based on current have been est for certain litigation, regulatory matters, and
unasserted contract claims where the loss ts both probable and estimable. Based on current knowledge,
management does not believe thal loss contingendes, if any, arising from pending investigations, iigation or
regulatory matters will have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position, liquidity, results of
operations or cash flows, except as otherwise disclosed.
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13. Income Taxes

Reconciliations of the statutory U.S_ federal income tax rates to our effective tax rate for continuing operations follow:

__ Years Ended December 31, __
201
Stalutory rate 210% 21.0% 21.0%
MNon-deductible regulatory-related expenses ' R 1.4 R
ized tax benefits, state, net of federal benefit {1.3) 2 9
State tax, net of federal benefit 22 1.0 T
Other, net A {.2) —
Effective tax rate 22.0% 23.4% 22.6%
T Feguistory expenses for 2021 inchude 5204 million related o the reschution of State Atcmeys General ligation and imvestigations, of
whizh $50.7 millon is e tnx purpeses. See "Nole 12 - Commitments. Contingerscass and

Guarantens’ for further Sscusson

Income tax expense consists of

{Dollars in millions) e 4 2020
Current provision/(Denefit):

Federal ] (2) § 47 3 98

State (25) 19 14

Foreign 1 — ]
Total current provision/(benefit) (26) 166 ERE]
Deferred provision/(benefit):

Federal 173 56 12

State a5 {3) {3)

Foreign e L B
Total deferred provision/{benefit) 208 53 9
Provision for income tax expense/{benafit) § 82 § 218 § 120
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The tax effect of temporary differences that give rise to deferred tax assels and liabiiities include the folloving

December 31,

(Dollars in millions) 2022 2021
Defe fax assets:

Loan reserves 5 297 § s
Education loan mmlums and discounts, net 4 40
Accrued 33 49
Operating loss aldaadnmlrywm 12 12
Stock-based compensation plans 5 5
Other 19 23
Total deferred tax assels A07 510

Deferred tax liabilities:
Market value adjustments on education

leans, investments and dertvatives 201 30
Acquired intangible assels 22 18
Original issue discount on borrowings 13 12
Other 1 8
Total deferred tax liabiities 247 68
Net deferred tax assets s 160 § 442

Included in cperating loss and credil carmyovers s a valuation allowance of 579 million and $69 million as of
December 31, 21}22 and 2021 rosped]vely agannsl a pomon of the Company's federal and stale deferred tax assets,
The d tax assets for federal and state net operating loss
camyovers and slaheIRC § 163u: disallowed hlnrlm expense camyovers that management believes it is more likely
than not will expire prior lo being realized. The ultimate realization of the deferred tax assets is dependenl upon the
generation of future taxable Jncome of the appropriate character (L.e. capital or ordinary) during the period in which
the tempaorary differences becom Famnrs o d by g include ibut are not
limited ta): any ch. Ineonrmmlc cliti duled is of deferred lax liabilities, and the history of
positive taxable income in evaluating the rBBlIZBh'Il)‘ of the deferred tax assels.

The operating loss and credit carryovers consist of.

December 34, 2022

Operating
Corresponding Loss

Tax- Valuation and Credit
(Dollars in millions) Gross Effected Expiration Allowance' Carryovers
Federal operating loss carryovers  § ELR & Begins in 2032 5 1% it
Federal credit carryovers 3 Begins in 2027 — 3
Stale operating loss camyovers 523 36 Begins in 2024 34 2
State IRC § 163()) disallowed
interest expense carmyovers 2,586 44 indefinite 44

5 91 3 79 5 12

The waluation allowance afiibutable to defermed Lax 291els bor federal and wtate et cperating bous carrpavers, and sate IAC § 1&3{0
disallowsd interest axpense CAMYCVETS. 3re AMounts that managemant believes more Boply than nct will expire prior to baing realized
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Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes

The | g table nunr tax benefits:
December 31,

(Dodlars in millions) 2022 20N 2020
Unrecognized tax benefits at beginning of year 3 588 § 578 § 536
Increases resulting from tax posiions taken during a prior period 10.8 64 76
Decreases resulting from tax positions taken during a prior period {18.8) 42) -
Increases resulting from tax positions taken dusing the current period 6.7 6.4 35
D related to with taxing (1.0 {3) (-2}

related to with faxing = .,. —
Reductions related to the lapse of statute of Emitations (6.0} (74) (6.6}
Unrecognized tax benefits at end of year " 3 50.7 § 588 § 578

50.7 million of gross unrecognized tax benefits at December 31, 2022 are 340.1 million of unrecognized tax benefits that
recagnized, would taverably impact the effective tax rate

The C: or one of its subsidiaries files income tax returns at the U_S. federal level, in most U.S. states, and
various loreign jurisdictions. All periods prior to 2019 are closed for federal examinations purposes, Various
combinations of subsidiaries, tax years, and jurisdictions remain open for review, subject to statute of limitations
periods (typically 3 lo 4 prior years). We do not expect the resolution of open audits 1o have a malerial impact on our
unrecognized tax benefits,

14, Revenue from Contracts with Customers Accounted for in Accordance with ASC 606

The following tables illustrate the disaggregation of revenue from conlracts accounted for under ASC 606 with
customers according to service type and client type by reportable operating segment

Revenue by Service Type
FLr]
Busrdey Totsl
Huvenue
s -3 =
161 191
N SR S i -
§ 35§ aE
I
Businass Total
Proce Hevence

§ 1w § ez

122 122
51 51
13 113

—— 304 a8

As of December 31, 2022, 2021, and 2020 there was $67 milion, 582 million, and $90 million, respectively, of net
accounts receivable related to these contracls. Navient had no material contract assels or conlract habilities.

F-54




NAVIENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15. Segment Reporting

We monitor and assess our ongoing operations and results based on the following four reportable operating
segments: Federal Education Loans, Consumer Lending, Business P:ocesslnq and Other,

These seg ts meet the i h for Accordingly, the results of
aperations of these reportable aperating segments are presented ‘separately. The underlying operating segments are
used by the Company's chief ision maker to manage the busi review op 9 and
allocale resources, and qualify 1o be agqraga!ed as part of the primary 15, As

further below, we measure the profitability of our operamg segments based on Cure Eamms net income.
Accordingly, 4 our g netincome is ona Core

basis.

Federal Education Loans Segment

Mavient owns FFELP Loans and performs servicing on this portfolio. We also service FFELP Loans owned by other
institutions. Our servicing quality, data-driven strategies and omnichannel educalion about federal repayment options
translate into positive results for the millions of borrowers we serve. We generale revenue primarily through net
interest income on our FFELP Loans and servicing-redated fee income.

The following table includes asset information for our Federal Education Loans segment

December 34,
(Doltars in millions) 72 0

LP Loans, net § 435255 52641
Cash and investments'" 2,746 2,071
Other 2,229 2183
Tolal assels § 48500 § 56,895

Inctudes restricted cash and investments,

Consumer Lending Segment

Navient owns, originalles and services in-school and refinance Private Education Loans. “In-school” Private Education
Loans are loans originally made to bommowers while they are attending school wh Private

Leoans are loans where a borrower has refinanced their education loans. We generate revenue primarily through net
interest income on our Private Education Loan portfolio.

Navien! helps students and families through the going-lo and paying-lor-college joumney. Our digital lools empovier
people to find grants and scholarships, compare financial aid offers and complete the FAFSA. Our Private Education
Loans offer easy-to-understand payment options. After graduation, we offer student loan refinancing to help people
simplify their repayment and eam a better rate. We believe our 50 years of experience, product design, digital

gies, and origi and servicing platform provide a unigue compettive advantage.
The following table includes assel infermalion for our Consumer Lending segment

{Doltars in millions)

Private Education Loans, net
Cash and investments'"
Other

Tolal assels

Includes resiricted cash and investments.
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15, § Reporting (Continued)
Business Processing Segment

Navien! p such as conlact cenler services, workflow processing,
and revenue cycle We ge the same ise and tools we use to deliver successhul

results for portfolios we own. Our support enables our clients to ensure better constifuent outcomes, meet rapidly
changing needs, improve technology, reduce operaling expenses, manage risk and oplimize revenue opportunities
Our clients include;

« Government: We offer cur solutions to federal agencies, state governments, tolling and parking authorities,
other public sector clients,

« Healthcare: Our clients include hospitals, hospital systems, medical centers, large physician groups, other
healthcare providers and public health departments.

Al December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Business Processing segment had total assels of $390 million and $397 milkon
respectively.

Other Segment

This segment consists of our corporate liquidity portfolio, gains and losses incurred on the repurchase of debt,
unallocated expenses ol shared services (which includes regulatory ) and restru g
expenses

Unallocated shared i BXPEnses are pri: of costs primarily related to information technology costs
reiawedwmlraslruclue aﬂﬁ noecalnons s!odc—basen compensation expense, accounting, finance, legal, compliance
and risk . human resources, certain executive management and Ihe board
of directors. Rowlalm-mlamd SAPENSEs lnclude actual setflement amounts as well as third-| pany pmlassaonal fees
we incur in connection with such reguiatory matters and are net of any i ts for
covered costs related to such matters.

Al December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Other segment had lotal assels of $2.1 bilion and $1.5 billion, respectively
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15. & Reporting (Continued)

Measure of Profitability

We prepare financial statements and present financial results in accordance with GAAP. However, we also evaluate
our business segments and present financial resulls an a basis that differs from GAAP, We refer to this different basis
of presenlation as Core Earnings. We provide this Core ings basis of on @ basis and
for each business segment because this is what we review internally when making decisi
our performance and how we allocate resources. We also refer to this information in our presentations with :redrl
rating agencies, lenders and investors. Because our Core E basis of 1o our
financial wmnlms we are raq':l‘mﬂ by GAAP 1o umlﬂa Core Earnings disciosure in the notes to our

t our

Core arenota for results under GAAP. We use Core Eamings to manage our business
segments because Core Eamings reflect to GAAP financial results for two items, discussed below, that
can create significant volatility mostly due to timing factors generally beyond the control of management. Accordingly,
we believe that Core Eamings provide management with a useful basis from which to better evaluate results from
ongoing operations against the business plan or against results from prior periods. Consequently, we disclose this
information because we believe it provid with | Information regarding the and
performance indicators that are most closely d by b VWhen pared to GAAP results, the two
items we remove to result in our Core Eamings presentations are:

1. Mark-lo-market gainsfiosses resulling from our use of derivative instruments to hedge owr economic risks
that do not qualify for hedge accounting treatment or do qualify for hedge accounting freatment but result in
ineffectiveness;. and

2. The accounting for goodwill and acquirod intangible assels.

While GAAP provides a uniform, asis of ac for the reasons described above, our Core
[Earmings basis of presentation does nol. Core Eammrs are subject 1o certain general and specific limitations that
investors shoubd carefully . For le, there s no ive guidance lor management
reporting. Cur Core Eamings are not defined terms within GAAP and may not be comparable to similarly titled
by other ¢ les. Accordingly. our Core Eamings presentation does not represent a

basis of ac ting. | may not be able to compare our performance with that of
other financial services companies based upun Core Eamnings. Core Earnings resulls are only meant to supplement
GAAP resulls by ing additional g the and performance indicators thal are most
closely used by management, our board of directors, credil rating agencies, lenders and investors 1o assess
pel .
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15. Reporting (Continued)

Segment Results and Reconciliations 1o GAAP

‘Year Ended December 31, 2022
Federal Totsl
Education Conpumes Business Com Reclassd: Aaditons Ll Total
n Loars _m'_ m Ncations m! &M‘
Eaucaten s 5 18885 5 L1 s — = [ ] u: s 28 s "o .n:;
Tetal rires! income T i = = o —n: —ﬁ‘;: E— 3
el nieeal ncoTe [1obe) Lid : i L] —(II —t? _f‘“
=, i} = = ™ - = = b |
et insieal rtere (184 et
ﬂm\rmm Eil] s — iLi] 47 i ] 8 o 1042
{oss}:
] 12 = - b s = . ™
Asye! feccvary ans BuETees
5 - ™ - 2% - - 2
RCOTH (281 3 1 = 32 18 184 hial 203
Total o income (05%) —u T W T =" _h'l) SE— | SSe—
Carect cperatng expenies 108 s m - £ - - ~ (2T
Lralocated s seniioes
Riainadd - - — a2 a2 - - - 242
Operatng T S m—— = ==
GoATAll NS e
atiel mparment
avorrzation - - - - - - w w "w
rwerg wxpeni = 3% » = »
Totll axpinies T T S i | e, | i T, . (R |
e arats s o o8 se w0 W om
tan exgerie 1 -
ﬂﬁ;‘ﬂmm 108 80 10 6 122 — 80 o 182
Yonl incoma {0k g ¥ 3§ L] N L — I L5 1 LL L T
Care Earmings adusiments o GAAR:
Year EFcea December 31, 2022
Deftvative Acquired
Csiars In millions| " Totsl
* ‘L | 0an e r""—"‘mg it
Tola e Income (ioid) i e M
AN ASSUNES INLANG I 8se! TSI ARG AT - i 1%
Tols Core Eamisgs adjsitments 1o GANP |3 E I T w
RO LK eNpents (el 1]
et income (oss) | E— 1

a Inzome taxes are based on 3 percentage of net income bedore tax for the individual repornable segment.
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15. Reporting (C
Year Ended December 31, 3001
Federal
Education  Comsurws  Business
%mm L Landing
[Eouzaton ans 5 A% 3 Illzl 3 e e
Tota rleres! meome IJ; g =
Total rieres! #Epeme 1 7o
Ml iteresd Income flossy i) &I L
L provions for 6an i
W Inderea i [1088) MNE = —® -
POV 15 100 088 s T3 1]
AT SO (O8] 2 s
Assat 1ecovary ad DuRPASS. & S
[ Fopc Ay 28 - T
Gana on N Of ot - ”n -
Lesas Gn ect repurThases = = 73
Tokal ot InComa (1044 T m W _vlﬁll
[Direct Sgeraing expenies = " =
462
S — -
i T8 ]
GEOTWIE M2 dcures
ansal mearTent
and amonzabin = - = -
#xpenses = — — 26
ot ppinees - — - — | ]
NEOme (084} Defore ncorme
et R —"
COT AT SN J ! {137
- s g g

T Core Eamings adusimants to GAAR:

In mutions|
L o o
TOE ST INCOME (48]
Tt Cone EAMings JpARments 1 GARP
IRCOME WX IZENkE (Devaf)
Net ineeme dess)

o Income taxes are based on 3 parcentage cof net income befare tax for the indvidual reportable segment.
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Esucaticn cane LI L YT ]
3

L — e,

rmmmmnm' ]
Tota Cott Eamings adjatments 12 GAAP 3 ] £ 2] T
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15. Reporting (Continued)
y of Core E. Adj to GAAP
Years Ended December 31,
(Dollars in millions) 2022 2021 2020
Core Eamings net income § 458 § 551 § 631
Core Eamings adjustments to GAAP:
Nel impact of derivative accounting'” 266 235 (265)
Net impact of goodwill and acquired intangible assets’® {19) 130) (22}
Netincome tax effect™ (60) (39) 68
Total Core Eamings adjustments 1o GAAP 187 166 1219)
GAAP net income 5 645 5 717 717 §_4a12
L Derivative accounting: Core Earmings sxchude pericdic gains and losses a1 are caused by the mark-2o-market valuatons on
el atves Ntdulmwlw hedge acceuning reatment under GAAR as well as the pencck: mask-to-market gams and
losses that ae a resull of ineflectveness iecopnited related to effective under GAAP, Uinder GAAP, for our detivasives

that ane held to maturity, The mark-to-marke! gain of koas over the Be of the contract wil equal 50 except for Floor Income
Coniracts where the mark-io-market gain will equal the amount for which we said the contract n our Care Earnings
prosentation, mm-hmmmwhuhﬂw Mmhwurlyu(mlmm,nﬂummumplﬁnr
received being recognized ratably as an interest
" Goodwill and acquired intangible assets: Our Care zmnmmmwwnmmw
ameetization of acquired intangible astaty
L Met tax effect: Such tax effect is based upon cur Core Eamings eSective tax rate for the year,
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APPENDIX A
DESCRIPTION OF FEDERAL FAMILY EDUCATION LOAN PROGRAM

The Federal Family Education Loan Program (FFELP) was authorized under Title IV of the Higher Education Act
{HEA). No new FFELP loans were authorized to be made after July 1, 2010 The terms and conditions of existing
FFELP loans continue to be governed by the HEA statute, implementing regulations, and guidance from the
Depariment of Education (ED).

This appendix describes or izes the material provisions of HEA's Title IV, the FFELP and related statutes and
mqulahons In place as of Dx her 31, 2022. 11, h . Is not and is g in its entirety by reference
lo each actual statute and regulation. Both the HEA and the related regulations have been the subject of exlensive
amendments over the years. We cannot predict whether future amendmenis or modifications might materially change
any of the progr in this ix or the statutes and regulations that implement them,

General

The FFELP provided for loans to students who were enrolled in eligible institutions, or o parents af dependent
students who were enrolled in ebgible institulions, to finance their educational costs. As lurther described below,
payment of principal and interest on the education loans is insured by a state or not-fer-profil guaranty agency
against:

default of the borrower;

the death, bankruplcy or permanent, total disability of the borrower,
closing of the borrower's school prior to the end of the academic period;

« false of the 's eligibility for the loan by the school; and
an unpaid school refund.

Claims are paid from federal assets, known as “federal student loan reserve funds,” which are federal assets but are
maintained and administered by slate and nol-for-profit guaranly agencies. In addition, the holders of education loans
are enfitied to receive interest subsidy payments and special allowance from ED on eligible

Ioans.

Special allowance payments raise the yield to education loan lenders when the statutory borrower infterest rate is
below an indexed market value.

Four types of education loans were authorized under the HEA:
+ Subsidized Stafford Loans lo who d d rec 1 need,

Unsubsidized Stafford Loans to students who either did not demonstrate financial need or required
additional loans to supplement their Subsidized Stafford Loans,

= Federal PLUS Loans to (effective July 1, 2006) or parents of dependent
students whose estimated costs M aﬂendﬂu school exceed other available financial aid; and
« C Loans, which into a single loan a ‘s obligati under various federally

authorized educalion loan programs.

Before July 1, 1994, the HEA also authorized loans called “Supplemental Loans to Students” or "SLS Leans” o
independent students and, under some crcumstances, dependent undergraduate students, to supplement their
Subsidized Stafford Loans. The idized Staflord Loan progi replaced the SLS program.




Special Allowance Payments

HEA provides for q y special o be made by ED to holders of education leans to the extent
necessary to ensure that Ihay receive at least spauiad market interest rates of refurn. The rates for special
aliowance payments depend on statulory lormulas that vary according 1o the type of loan, the date the loan was
made and the type of funds, tax-exempt or taxable, used to finance the loan. ED makes a special allowance payment
for each calendar quarter, generally within 45 to 80 days after the receipt of a bill from the lender.

The special allowance payment equals the average unpaid principal balance. including interest which has been
capitalized, of all eligible loans held by a holder during the quarterty period multiplied by the special allowance
percentage.

For education loans disbursed prior to April 1, 2006, if the special allowance formula is below the borrower rate, the
special allowance payment is zero. For education loans disbursed on or afler April 1, 2006, lenders are required to
pay ED any interest paid by borrowers on education loans that exceeds the special allowance support levels
applicable to such loans.

Consolidation Loan Fees

Loan Rebale Fee A loan rebale fee of 1.05% is paid annually on the unpaid principal and inlerest of each
Consolidation Loan disbursed on or after October 1, 1993,

Stafford Loan Program

For Stafford Loans, the HEA provided for:

federal reimbursement of Stafford Loans made by eligible lenders lo qualified students;

federal interest subsidy payments on Subsidized Stafford Loans paid by ED to holders of the loans in lieu of the
borrowers’ making interest payments during in-school, grace and deferment pesiods or, in cerlain cases, during
enroliment in an income-based repayment plan; and

special all payments an subsidy paid by ED lo the holders of eligible Stafford Loans

‘Wae refer to all three types of ce as lederal x

Interest. The borower's interest rate on a Stafford Loan can be fixed or variable, depending on the academic year in
which the loan was disbursed.
Interest Subsidy Payments. ED is responsible for paying interest on Subsidized Stafford Loans:

« while the borrower is a qualified student,

« during the grace period,

» during prescribed deferment periods, and

* in certain cases, during a borrower's enroliment in an income-based repayment plan.
ED makes quarterly interest subsidy payments to the owner of a Subsidized Statford Loan in an amount equal o the
interest that accrues on the unpaid balance of that loan before repayment begins or during any deferment periods.
ED also makes quarterly interest subsidy payments to the owner of a Subsidized Stafford Loan in an amount equal to
the unpaid Inlam:t payable ﬂtﬂﬂﬂ up lo three conseculive calendar years of a period of financial hardship during

liment in an i Wt plan. The HEA provides that the owner of an eligible Subsidized Statford
Loan has a contractual ngh‘t against the United Stales to receive interest suhmhr and spma] alnwanne payments.
with the

However, receipl of interest subsidy and special is an
requirements of the HEA, including the following:

+ salisfaction of need criteria, and
« continued ekgibility of the loan for federal insurance or reinsurance

If the loan is not held by an eligible lender in with the r of the HEA and the applicable
guaraniee agreemenl, the loan may lose its eligibility for federal assistance.

Lenders generally receive interest subsidy payments within 45 days to 60 days after the submission of the applicable
data for any given calendar quarter to ED. However, there can be no assurance that payments will, in fact, be
received from ED within thal period
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Ri R of on a Stafford Loan does nol begin while the borrower remains a qualified
student, but only after a 6-month grace period. In general, each loan must be scheduled for repayment over a period
of nol more than 10 years afler repayment begins. New borrowers on or after October 7, 1998 who accumulated
FFELP loans totaling more than $30,000 in principal and unpaid interest are entiled to extend repayment for up to 25

years, SIIDIM o amounts. C fidation Loan may be for W up lo
30 years di di n the b r's ‘Outlined in the table below are the maximum repayment periods
available based on mo ) FFELP

Maximum Consolidation Loan Repayment
Outstanding FFELP Period

37,500-39 999 12 Years
$10,000-519,999 15 Years
$20,000-$39,999 20 Years
$40,000-559,999 25 Years
$60,000 o more 30 Years
Kote Maximum repayment period eschudes of determent and
In addition to the FFELP | d i described above, the HEA currently requires

minimum annual payments of $600, unless the borrower and the lender agree o lower payments, axcept that
negalive amortizalion is not allowed, excepl for loans paid under an income-based repayment plan. The HEA and
related regulations require lenders 1o offer a choice ameng standard, gradualed, Income-sensitive, income-based,
and extended repayment schedules, if applicable, to all borrowers entering repayment. For borrowers in income-
based repayment, ED repays or cancels any outstanding principal and interest under certain criteria after 25 years of
qualified payments.

Grace Perlods, Defe Periods and F e Perfods. Alter the borrower stops pursuing at least a half-time
course of study, the borrower generally must bagin to repay principal of a Stafford Loan following the grace period.
However, no principal repayments need be made, subject 1o some . during def: t and We
periods.
thonowsrswnosaﬁfstmmaredrshursednnmal’hor.l;ly1 1993 t of principal may be deferred while
the borrower retums to school at least half-ime. A s are ‘when the is:

« enfolled in an approved i P orr prog

seeking, but unable to find, full-time employment, subject to a maximum deferment of three years, or

having an economic hardship, as defined in the HEA, subject lo a maximum deferment of three years, or

serving on active duty during a war of other military operation o national emergency, o performing
qualitying National Guard duty during a war or other military or national

receiving cancer treatment (for loans that entered repayment on or before Seplember 28, 2018 for periods
of treatment that occur on or after September 28, 2018).

The HEA also permits, and in some cases requires, “forbearance” periods from loan collection in some
circumstances, Interest that accrues during a forbearance period is never subsidized. When a borrower ends
forbearance and enters repayment, the account is considered current. When a borrower exils grace, deferment or
rurbeattmoe. any interest Ihat has not been subsidized is generally capitalized and added to the outstanding principal
amount.

PLUS and SLS Loan Programs

The HEA aultmﬂzed PLUS Loans to be made to parents of eligible di i and te and

prc and authorized SLS Loans lo be made lo the categories of students later served by

the Unsubsidized Stafford Loan program. Borrowers who had no adverse credit history or who were able to secure an

endorser without an adverse credit history were eligible for PLUS Loans, as well as some bomrowers with extenuating
The basic p 15 to PLUS and SLS Loans are similar to those of Stafford Loans for

federal insurance and lﬁﬂswaﬂl’.ﬂ However, interesl subsidy payments are nol available under the PLUS and 5LS

programs and, in some instances, special allowance payments are more resiricted.
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Interest, The interest rates for PLUS Loans and SLS Loans depend on the year in which the loans were disbursed.

Repayment, Deferments. Borrowers begin o repay principal on their PLUS and SLS Loans no later than 60 days
alter o fina disbursemenl, unloss they use dafermant available for the in-school period and the six-month post

Wl period. D and loan i periods, plans and
mlmml.ln paymsnl amounts for PLUS and SLS loans are ganmlhr the same as those for Stafford Loans, although
is not for parents ing under the PLUS program.

Consolidation Loan Program

Prior to July 1, 2010, HEA authorized a program under which borrowers could consofidate one or more of their
education loans into a single Consolidation Loan that is insured and reinsured on a basis similar to Stafford and
PLUS Loans. Consolidation Loans wera rnade kn an amount to pay ot ipal, unpaid interest,
late charges and collection costs on all federally reinsured education loans incurred under the FFELF that the
borrower selects for consofidation, as well as loans made under various other federal education loan programs and
loans made by different lenders. In general, a b s eligibility o ¢ i federal education loans ends upon
receipt of a Consolidation Loan. With the end of new FFELP originalions, borrowers with multiple loans, including
FFELP loans, may only consolidate their loans under the FOLP,

Consolidation Loans generally bear interest at a ficed rale equal lo the weighted average of the inferest rales on the
unpaid principal balances of the consolidated loans rounded up to the nearest 1/8th ol' a %, subject to interest rate
caps depending on the year in which the ¢ loan was ber 13, 1997 and
September 30, 1998 interest rates were variable.

Guaranty Agencies under the FFELP

Under the FFELP, guaranty agencies guarantee loans made by eligible lending institutions, paying claims from
“federal student loan reserve funds.” The rate of reimbursement depends on the type of claim (death, disability, or
default) and can range from 97% to 100%.

These leans are d as to 100% ol p | and accrued inlerest against death or discharge.
To be eligible lor federal reinsurance, FFELF loans must meet HEA and its lat ]
these regulations require thal holders must establish repayment terms wilth the borrower, properly administer
| ts and credit the b for made, and raport the lean's status 1o cradit reporting
g Nab becomes in repaying a loan, a lender must perform collection procedures that vary
depending upon the length of time a loan is delinquent. The collection procedures consist of lelephone calls, demand
letters, skip tracing procedures and @ from the agency.

A lender may submit a default claim lo the guaranty agency after the related education loan has been deknquent for
at least 270 days. The guaranty agency nmust review and pay the claim within 90 days after the lender filed it. The
guaranty agency will pay the lender interest accrued on the loan for up lo 450 days after dedinquency. The guaranty
agency must file a reimbursement daim with ED within 30 days afer the guaranty agency pald the lender for the
default claim. Following payment of claims, the guaranty agency endeavors to collect the loan. Guaranty agencies
also must meel stalutory and regulatory requirements for collecting loans.

Education Loan Discharges

FFELP loans are not i ble in . Under the United States Bankruptcy Code, before an
education loan may be discharged, MB borrower must demaonsirale that repaying it would cause the boarmower or his
family undue hardship. When a FFELP borrower files for bankruplcy, collection of the loan is suspended during the
time of Ihe proceeding. If the borrower files under the “wage earmer” provisions of the United States Bankruplcy Code
or files a pefition for discharge on the grounds of undue hardship, then the lender transfers the lcan to the guaranty
agency which guaranieed that loan and that agency then participates in the bankruptcy proceeding. When the
proceeding is complete, unless there was a finding of undue hardship, the loan is transferred back to the lender and
coflection resumes
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Education loans are discharged if the borrower dies or becomes totally and permanently disabled. If a school closes
while a student is enrolled, or within 120 days affer the student withdrew, loans made for that enroliment period are
discharged. If a school falsely certifies that a borrower is eligible for the loan, the loan may be discharged, and if a
school fails to make a refund lo which a studenl is entitled, the loan I discharged to the extent of the unpaid refund.
Effective July 1, 2006, a loan is also eligible for disch ifitis ined that the b s eligibility for the loan

was falsely cerified as a result of a crime of identity theft.

Rehabilitation of Defaulted Loans

EDis 1o enter into ts with a guaranty agency under which such guaranty agancy may sell
defaulled loans thal are oimlhle for rehabditation 1o an eligitle lender. For a loan 1o be eligible for rehabiltation the
related guaranty agency must have received and gi for 12 months which was
reduced to 9 payments in 10 months effective July 1, 2006, and then the borrower may request that the loan be
rehabilitated. Because monthly payments may be greater afler rehabilitation, not all borrowers opt for rehabilitation.
Upon rehabilitation, a borrower is again eligible for all the benefits under the HEA for which the borrower is nol
eligible as a borrower on a defaulled loan, such as new lederal aid, and the negalive credit record of defaull is
expunged. No education loan may be rehabiltaled more than once.

Department of Education Oversight

If ED determines that a guaranty agency is unable to meet its insurance obligations, the holders of loans insured by
that guaranty agency may submit claims directly to ED and ED is required to pay the full reimbursement amounts
due, in ac with claim p ne more than these applied by the affected guaranty
agency. However, ED's obligation to pay guarantee claims directly in this fashion is contingent upon ED determining
a guaranty agency is unable 1o meet its cbligations, While there have been situations where ED has made such
determinations regarding atfected guaranty agencies, there can be no assurances as to whether ED must make such
determinaticns in the future or whether payments of reimbursement amounts would be made in a timely manner.
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GLOSSARY

Listed below are definitions of key terms that are used throughout this dwumant See also Appendix A “Description
of Federal Family Education Loan Program™ for a further discussion of the FF

Constant Prepayment Rate (CPR) — A variable in ife-ol-oan estimates that measures the rale at which loans in
the portiolio prepay before their stated matunity. The CPR is directly cormelated to the average life of the portfolio.
CPR equals the percentage of loans that prepay annually as a percentage of the beginning of period balance.

ED — The U.S. Department of Education.

FFELP — The Federal Family Education Loan Program, formerly the Guaranteed Education Loan Program, a
program thal was discontinued in 2010

FFELP Consolidation Loans — Under the FFELP, borrowers with multiple eligible education loans may have
oonsolu!amu them info a single education loan with one lender at a ficed rate for the life of the loan. The new loan is

d a FFELP C 1 Loan. The rate on a FFELP Consolidation Loan is generally ficed for the
lerm of lhe loan and was sel by the weighted average interast rale of the loans being consolidated, rounded up to the
nearest 1/8th of a percent, not to exceed 8 25%. Before October 1, 1998, maximum loan rates could have exceeded
8.25%. B 13, 1997 and 30, 1998, interes! rates were variable. Holders of FFELP
Consolidation Loans are eligible fo eam interest under the Special Allowance Payment (SAP) formula. In April 2008,
we suspended originating new FFELP Consolidation Loans.

FFELP Loans — loans lo paren! d under
the FFELP. The loans are primarily Stafford loans but also Ilclude PI.US 5LS, Cumulﬂaljon and HE#.L loans. The
FFELP was discontinued in 2010

Fixed Rate Floor Income — Fixed Rate Floor Income is Floor Income ted with ed loans with b
rates that are fixed to term (primarily FFELP Consolidation Loans).

Floor income — For loans disbursed before April 1, 2006, FFELP Loans generally eamn interest at the higher of
either the borrower rate, which is fixed ower a period of time. or a floating rate based on the SAP formula. We
generally finance our education loan portfolio with floating rate debl whose interest is matched closely to the floating
nature of the applicable SAP formula, If interest rates decline to a level at which the borower rate exceeds the SAP
formula rate, we continue to eam interest on the foan al the fixed borrower rate while the floating rate interest on our
debt continues to decline. In these interest rate environments, we refer to the additional spread it @ams between the
fixed borrower rate and the SAP formula rate as Floor Income. Depending on the type of education loan and when it
was originaled, the bomower rate is either fored to term of is reset to a market rate each July 1. As a resull, for loans
where the borrower rate is fixed 1o term, we may eam Floor Income for an extended period of ime, and for those
loans where the borroveer interest rate is reset annually on July 1, we may eam Floor Income to the next reset date.
In accordance with legislation enacted in 2006, lenders are required to rebate Floor Income te ED for all FFELP
Loans disbursed on or after Apnil 1, 2006

The followi ie shows the mech of Floor Income for a typical fived rate FFELP Consolidation Loan {with
a LIBOR-based SAP spread of 2 64%);

Fixed Borrower Rate 4.25%
SAP Spread over LIBOR (2.64)
Floor Strike Rate" J&s

T The interest rate al which the underlying index [LIBOR, Treasury marowmmu.nl
paper} plus the fxed SAP spread equals the fived bomower rate. Floor income is
wamned anytime the interest rate 2f the underlying index decines l»kw s rate.

Based on this example, il the quarterly average LIBOR rate is over 1.61%, the holder of the education loan wall eam
al a floating rate based on the SAP formula, which in this example is a fixed spread 1o LIBOR of 2.64%. On the other
hand, if the quarterty average LIBOR rate is below 1.61%, the SAP formula will produce a rate below the fixed
borrower rate of 4.25% and the foan holder eams at the borrower rate of 4.25%.




Graphic Depiction of Flaor Income:

6.00%

Flxed Borrower Rate = 4.25%

1.00% +——— Floor Strike Rate @ 1.61%
0.00%
0.00% 1.00% 2.00% 3.00% 4.00%

LIBOR Rate

Floor Income Contracts — 'We enter inlo confracts with counterparties under which, in exchange for an upfront

fual payment repl ting the present value of the Floor Income that we expect to eam on a nofional amount
of underlying education loans being economically hedged, we will pay the counterparfies the Floor Income eamed on
that notional amount over the life of the Floor Income Conlracl. Specifically, we agree to pay the counterparty the
diff if positive, bet the fixed rale less the SAP spread and the average of the applicable interest
rate index on that noienal amount, regardiess of the actual balance of undedying educalion loans, over the life of the
contract. The contracts generally do not extend over the Ife of the underlying education loans. This conlract
effectively locks in the amount of Floor Income we will eamn over the perod of the contract Floor Income Contracts
are not considered effective hedges under ASC 815, “Derivatives and Hedging.” and each quarter we must record the
change in fair value of these confracts through income

Guarantor(s) — State agencies of non-profit companies that guarantee (or insure) FFELP Loans made by eligible
lenders under The Higher Education Act of 1965 (HEA), as amended

HCERA — The Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act of 2010.




Private Education Loans — Education loans fo students or their families that bear the full credit risk of the customer
and any cosigner. Privale Education Loans are made primarily fo hriﬁga the gap between the cosl ul' hl'gllar min‘.alim
and the amount funded through financial aid, laderul loans or " and families’ r

Loans include loans for higher and g degrees) and for aumnam educalion, such
as career training, private kindergarten through $900|Iﬂal'\f eﬂucabon schools and tutorial schools, Certain higher
education leans have repayment terms similar to FFELP Loans, whereby repayments begin after the bommower leaves
schoel while others require repayment of interest or a fixed pay amounl while the borrower is still in school. Our
higher education Private Education Loans are not dischargeable in bankruplcy, excepl in certain Emited
circumstances. Navien! owns, originates and services refinance and in-school Private Education Loans

! Private Education Loans are ion loans made to cerfain customers that have simplified their
payments by consolidating private and/or lederal education loans into a single Private Education Loan. These loans
are expected to have low default rates as a result of a number of factors including high FICO scores, employment
record and educational history

“In-school” Privale Education Loans are loans onginally made to borrowers while they are attending school

Repayment Borrower Benefils — Financial incentives offered to borrowers based on pre-determined qualitying
factors, which are generally tied directly to making on-time monthly payments. The impact of Repayment Borrower
Benefits is dependent on the estimate of the number of borrowers who will eventually qualify for these benefits and
the amount of the financial benefil offerad to the borrower.

Residual Interest — When we securilize education loans, we retain the right to recefve cash flows from the
education loans sold to trusts thal we sponsor in excess of amounts needed lo pay derivative costs (if any), other
fees, and the principal and interest on the bonds backed by the education loans.

Risk Sharing — When a FFELP Loan first disbursed on and after July 1, 2006 defaulis, the federal government
guaraniees 97% of the principal balance plus accrued interest (98% on loans disbursed on and after October 1, 1993
and before July 1, 2006) and the holder of the loan is at risk for the remaining amount not guaranteed as a Risk
Sharing loss on Ihe loan. FFELP Loans eriginated after Oclober 1, 1993 are subject to Risk Sharing on loan default
:::: payments unless the default results from the borrower’s death, disability, bankrupicy, closed school or false

Variable Rate Floor Income — Variable Rate Floor Income is Floor Income that is earned only through the next dale
al which the borrower inlerest rate is resel to a market rate. For FFELP Stafford Loans whose bofrower interest rate
resets annually on July 1, we may eam Floor Income based on a calculation of the difference between the borrower
rate and the then curment interest rate
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